#### NOTICE TO BIDDERS

### CHAPPAQUA CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 66 ROARING BROOK ROAD P.O. BOX 21 CHAPPAQUA, NEW YORK 10514

The Board of Education of the Chappaqua Central School District, hereby invites submission of bids for:

#### **CCSD BID # B2018-14**

#### **Food Service Management Program Operation**

Mandatory Pre-Bid Conference on July 19, 2018 at 8:00am at Horace Greeley High School. Direct all questions to (914) 238-7200, Ext. 1007.

Sealed bids will be received until **July 30, 2018 by no later than 2:00pm** at the Purchasing Office, Education Center, 66 Roaring Brook Road, Chappaqua, New York – mailing address: Chappaqua Central School District, P.O. Box 21, Chappaqua, New York 10514-at which time and place all bids will be opened and read publicly. Specifications and Bid Forms may be obtained at the school district website <a href="www.ccsd.ws">www.ccsd.ws</a> as follows:

- District
- Departments
- Business Office
- Procurement
- School Year 2018-2019
- Bids
- CCSD Bid # B2018-14: Food Service Management Program Operation

If further information is needed, call the Purchasing Office at 914 238-7200, Ext. 1007 for e-mail at jochow@ccsd.ws.

The Board of Education reserves the right to reject any and all bids which do not seem to be in the best interest of the School District.

## Chappaqua Central School District Mandatory Site Visit Verification Form Food Management Service Thursday, July 19, 2018, 8AM At Horace Greeley Cafeteria

FSMC Name:			
Signature of Represe	ntative:		
Printed Name of Rep	resentative:		
Site Name	Supervisor's Signature	<u>Date</u>	
Horace Greeley			
Bell Middle			
Seven Bridges		<u></u>	
Douglas Grafflin			
Roaring Brook			ANT-SAC-SAC-SAC-SAC-SAC-SAC-SAC-SAC-SAC-SAC
Westorchard			
Note: The tour will in elementary school.	nclude at least the cafeteria of the high	school, one mide	lle school and one
******	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		**********
I, in the Chappaqua Ce	certify that I have visited ntral School District.	d at least three of	the above schools
Tour to begin at 8:00 70 Roaring Brook Roa	am on Monday, July 19, 2018 at the Ho ad, Chappaqua, NY.	orace Greeley High	າ School Cafeteria,
Attendance at tour is	mandatory.		
No photographs or vi	deotaping will be allowed.		

The Chappaqua Central School District (SFA) is committed to providing a healthy approach to school lunch through an appetizing, and nutritious and reasonably priced School Lunch Program that will attract strong participation among students and staff. To this end, the district is seeking a Food Service Management Contractor (FSMC) with proven experience in the efficient operation of multi-unit food service facilities that emphasizes the use of high quality fresh ingredients prepared into appealing and nutritious offerings and achieves high customer/client satisfaction.

#### STANDARD OF QUALITY

These specifications describe the "Portion Sizes," "Procurement Specifications" and "Meal Plan Specifications" for food portion and quality standards to be performed under the contract. Items necessary to provide and maintain the high quality food services SFA requires are included in these specifications. Bidders are encouraged to describe how they will exceed the minimum requirements set forth in this bid specification.

#### **BID ACCEPTANCE**

SFA will award the contract, excluding the vending machine service, to the lowest responsible bidder whose bid, in the sole judgment of SFA, is the most advantageous to the Chappaqua Central School District. Financial, as well as other factors will be considered in the evaluation. The Chappaqua Central School District reserves the right to reject any and all bids it finds unacceptable or incomplete, and to waive any of the requirements detailed in this document if most advantageous to the SFA.

Any FSMC submitting a bid agrees to all the terms and conditions of the bid specification.

#### AWARD

It is the intent of the Chappaqua Central School District to award the contract to the FSMC that submits the lowest responsible bid that is determined by the Board of Education to represent the best interest of the District, its students, and staff. Such responsibility will be determined by the Board of Education and will take into consideration each of the following criteria and requirements:

- The quality of food and service to be provided as determined by visits to other school districts and/or client references of past and present accounts. The FSMC must submit with their bid proposal written detail of successful FSMC operations that demonstrate the FSMC's ability to provide the programs described in this bid specification.
- 2) The financial stability of the FSMC as evidenced by their <u>audited financial</u> <u>statements</u> for fiscal years 2015, 2016 and 2017.
- The understanding that the FSMC will place an experienced Food Service
  Director who must be a Registered Dietitian and licensed in the State of New
  York, and an experienced Assistant Food Service Director as the management
  team in the Chappaqua Central School District whose qualifications meet the

criteria set forth in this bid specification. FSMC should anticipate having its Food Service Director and Assistant Director work each summer in preparation of school opening on September 1. The names of these two positions along with their resumes must be submitted along with the bid.

- The submittal of a comprehensive marketing plan specifically tailored for Chappaqua Central School District. Actual marketing and merchandising concepts the FSMC intends to implement in the various Chappaqua Central Schools should indicate how and to what extent the FSMC intends to increase program participation and the financial submittals must indicate the extent of increased revenue they expect to generate when operating in the Chappaqua Central School District.
- The proposal's compliance with SFA's "wellness" initiatives as specified in the SFA's adopted Wellness Policy and the Wellness Regulations. Here is the link to the policy and regulations: <a href="https://www.ccsd.ws/board-of-ed/policies-and-regulations/policies-and-regulations-0100-district-philosophy/policy-0125-wellness-policy">https://www.ccsd.ws/board-of-ed/policies-and-regulations-0100-district-philosophy/policy-0125-wellness-policy</a>
- The submission of recipes for each food item in the three sample menus provided by the SFA. <u>FSMC's bid proposal must include a recipe for each food item</u>. FSMC is encouraged to be creative but practical in its recipe submittal.
- 7) Copy of FSMC's actual HACCP program and proof that it is currently in use in client districts.
- The scope and nature of specific training and development programs that FSMC has at their disposal in use in the District to improve food quality. These programs should work to insure ongoing innovative food preparation and presentation; to monitor staff; to insure employee sensitivity to children; to insure safe food handling, safe food storage, safe food preparation (including minimizing the chance of cross contaminative ingredients for the safety of students/staff with food allergies), and safe food presentation; and to insure efficient, prompt, courteous child-friendly service and high levels of customer satisfaction essential to the operation of a successful lunch program.
- 9) The capability and personal qualifications of the FSMC's organization.
- 10) For Schedule G, prospective bidders are required to present their hourly labor schedules by buildings. The schedule provided by SFA in the bid document are the minimum requirements.
- The overall responsiveness to specification requirements and the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the FSMC in their bid proposal package, including all required submittals and their projected Food Service Budget for the period from September 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019.

- 12) The current food service has purchased a van to transport food and supplies between all six (6) CCSD schools. Food service awarded the contract must make similar provisions.
- 13) The mandatory walk through meeting scheduled is required in order for the FSMC's proposal to be considered.

## The University of the State of New York NEW YORK STATE EDUCATION DEPARTMENT Child Nutrition Programs Administration 89 Washington Avenue, Room 375 EBA Albany, NY 12234

Telephone: (518) 473-8781 Fax: (518) 473-0018 Web Address: www.cn.nysed.gov

gov Docutrax Stamp Here
SED Use Only

Date Received SED Use Only

#### TYPE II 2018-2019 Food Service Management Company Contract

This solicitation document is an Invitation for Bid (IFB), also known as competitive sealed bidding, where the primary consideration is cost. The expectation of this IFB is that bids will be received and an award will be made to the responsive and responsible bidder whose bid is the lowest price. An IFB is a formal method of procurement that uses sealed bidding and results in a fixed price contract. This document is <u>not</u> a Request for Proposals (RFP), which allows for the evaluation of other factors in addition to cost and results in a "best value" contract.

School Food Authority:	Chappaqua Central School District	t LEA Code:	661004060000
Program(s) - Please che	eck all that apply:		
	ool Lunch Program		
☐ School Break	•		
☐ Afterschool S	-		
	od Service Program		
SFA Contract Manager I	Information:		
SFA Contract Ma	lanager: John L. Chow		
Title: Assistant	t Superintendent for Business		
Phone Number:	: 914-238-7200 x1006		
Email:jochow(	@ccsd.ws		
Food Service Managemy	nent Company Information:		
Bid Price:			
	NYSED U	Jse Only	
☐ Pre-Approval		☐ Executed Contract	

#### **Table of Contents**

TABLE OF CONTENTS	2
TYPE II 2018-2019 FOOD SERVICE MANAGEMENT COMPANY CONTRACT CHECKLIST	4
FORM #1 – 2018-2019 SFA AMENDMENTS TO NYSED PROTOTYPE CONTRACT	5
2018-2019 AMENDMENTS TO NYSED PROTOTYPE CONTRACT CONTINUATION SHEET(S)	6
FORM #2 – COVER PAGE	8
FORM #3 – BID SUMMARY FORM	
FORM #4 – BOARD MINUTES FORM	10
FORM #5 – NOTARIZED AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION FORM	11
FORM #6 – DEBARMENT OPTION A (SFA FORM)	12
FORM #7 – DEBARMENT OPTION B	13
INSTRUCTIONS FOR FORM #7	14
FORM #7A – CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING	15
INSTRUCTIONS FOR FORM #7A	16
FORM #7B – DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES	18
FORM #8 – PREPARATION OF BID SPECIFICATIONS FORM	19
FORM #9 – CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE FORM	20
FORM #10 – PERFORMANCE SECURITY	21
FORM #11 – SUMMER FOOD SERVICE PROGRAM	22
FORM #11A – SUMMER FOOD SERVICE PROGRAM	23
FORM #11B – SUMMER FOOD SERVICE PROGRAM CONTINUATION SHEET	24
SUMMER FOOD SERVICE PROGRAM QUALITY CONTROL PLAN	25
FORM #12 – AFTERSCHOOL SNACK PROGRAM	26
AGREEMENT SECTION	27
CORPORATE AFFIDAVIT	41
BIDDING REQUIREMENTS/ SPECIFICATIONS SECTION	42

FINAL RULE NUTRITION STANDARDS IN THE NATIONAL SCHOOL LUNCH AND BREAKFAST PROGRAMS
(SCHOOL YEAR 2018-2019)49
IMPLEMENTATION TIMELINE50
2018-2019 BID FORM (OPTION 1)53
EXHIBIT #1: 2018-2019ANNUAL FINANCIAL BUDGET PROJECTION54
2018-2019 BID FORM (OPTION 2)55
EXHIBIT #2A: 2018-2019 ANNUAL FINANCIAL BUDGET PROJECTION56
EXHIBIT #2B: 2018-2019 ANNUAL FINANCIAL BUDGET PROJECTION57
EXHIBIT #2C: 2018-2019 ANNUAL FINANCIAL BUDGET PROJECTION58
SCHEDULE A60
SCHEDULE B61
SCHEDULE C62
SCHEDULE D163
SCHEDULE D264
SCHEDULE E65
SCHEDULE F
SCHEDULE G67
SCHEDULE H68
SCHEDULE I69
APPENDIX A70
APPENDIX B72
MON COLLIENT DIDDING CERTIFICATION FORM

#### TYPE II 2018-2019 Food Service Management Company Contract Checklist

\* Required - Fill out this form completely, sign and return it with the entire packet for all pre-bids or executed contracts.

Ensure that your packet contains all the items required by checking each one to certify that they are included in the bid documents submitted. The items below indicated by an asterisk (\*), must be completed and submitted with the pre-bid.

Complete Pre-bid Contracts must be emailed to cn@nysed.gov 30 days prior to letting bids.

	REQUIRED FO	ORMS	
	SFA Amendments - Form #1 & Form 1A		Preparation of Bid Specifications – Form #8
	(submit only if changing SED prototype with any		
	additions and/or deletions)*		
	Cover Page – Form #2*		Certificate of Insurance – Form #9
	Bid Summary – Form #3		Performance Security (if applicable) – Form #10
	Board Minutes (if not lowest bidder) – Form #4		SFSP Site List – Form #11A and B
	AGREEMENT S	ECTIC	DN
	Agreement Section		Term of Contract (MM/DD/YYYY)*
	(Date of Agreement/SFA/FSMC names)		
	Agreement Section		Original Signature of Board President and Date
	(Awarded FSMC submitted proposal date)		
	Circle Responsible Part (See Table of Contents)*		Original Signature of FSMC/Title and Date
	Complete All Required Blanks (See Table of Contents)*		Original Corporate Affidavit for FSMC signing contract
			Contract
	BID SPECIFICATION	N SEC	TION
	Indicate Child Nutrition Programs currently		Food Based Menu Plan and Implementation
	participating in*		Timeline
	Specify any Child Nutrition Program SFA anticipates entering*		Purchase Specifications
	Prior year's participating and meal pricing		Performance Security (See Table of Contents)*
	information*		Colort Did Ontion 4 on 2*
	Insert student and adult meals and a la Carte prices*	Ш	Select Bid Option 1 or 2*
	Specify meal service locations and times*		Attach applicable information in Schedules A – I*
	Specify additional non-nutritious foods (if applicable)*		Original signatures on Non-Collusive Bid Statement
	Ty that the above items have been checked for accuracy and tted for review.	are in	cluded in the agreement and bid specifications
	0 2 20 1		
Signat	ure: John I Chow/mm	_ т	itle: Assistant Superintendent for Business Pate: 7/05/2018
Printe	d Name: John L. Chow	_ [	Pate: 7/05/2018

Submit two (2) copies of the executed contract for review and approval. The final contract includes all documents included by the SFA in the invitation to bid and all documents submitted by the FSMC that have been mutually agreed upon by both parties (i.e., work sheets, attachments, and operating cost sheets). Omissions and inaccuracies in the contract will cause delays in approval and your receipt of reimbursement.

#### Complete All Blanks or Specify N/A If Not Applicable.

#### Please put an "X" through non-applicable sections. Do not delete page(s) from the document. FORM #1 – 2018-2019 SFA Amendments to NYSED Prototype Contract

(This form is <u>required</u> for School Food Authorities altering, adding and/or deleting to sections of the NYSED Prototype Contract)

Regulations require that any changes by the SFA to the 2018-2019 SED Type II Contract Prototype be approved by SED prior to executing the contract. Therefore, any changes by the SFA to the agreement section and/or the specifications section of the SED prototype contract must be specified below on this form referencing the applicable page number and section specifying the proposed amendment. E-mail this form with the entire attached Type II contract to cn@nysed.gov for review and approval 30 days prior to letting bids. Once the amendments are approved by SED, this page must be resubmitted with the executed contract signed by the Board President and the FSMC awarded the contract agreeing to the approved amendments.

Changes to the SED prototype contract are to be kept to a minimum. <u>Please note:</u> Reordering pages including additional pages and/or boilerplate attachments to the existing SED prototype contract for SED review/approval is not allowable; doing so will result in your submission being returned in its entirety unapproved.

Please complete the following information (refer to table of contents for page number, section, section name and section number).

School Food Authority:	Chappaqu	a Central Sch	nool District	LEA	Code:	66100	)4060000	
SFA Amendments: Sul	omitted by:	ohn L. Chow		Date:	Date	Phone:	914-238-	7200
1. The contract is amer	•	•		nt Section Section Na	_	Requirements r Page	s/Specifica	tions
Added Cover page	ument to this sect	ion. Fage	ή·	Section Na	ille.	. 1 48		
2. The contract is amer SFA proposed Amen	·	•	□ Agreeme #: 46	nt Section Section Na		Requirements	s/Specifica ection #:	tions 9
The contract is amer     SFA proposed Amen	•	·	_	nt Section Section Na	<del>-</del>	Requirements	s/Specificat	tions
Added menus for ea	ch level							

Please use Form #1A (Continuation Sheet) if additional space is required.

#### 2018-2019 Amendments to NYSED Prototype Contract Continuation Sheet(s)

FORM :	#1A (Continuation Sheet):	Page #	of	<u></u>		
School	Food Authority: Cha	ppaqua Central Sc	hool District	LEA Code:	66	004060000
	he contract is amended as foll FA proposed Amendment to t		☐ Agreeme	nt Section 🛮 Bio	lding Requireme Plan	nts/Specifications Section #: F
	Food Safety Plan: Added Food S	afety Letter of Assu	rance			
	he contract is amended as foll FA proposed Amendment to t	•	☐ Agreeme	nt Section 🛛 Bio	lding Requireme Requireme	nts/Specifications Section #: G
	Staffing Requirements: Added Pro	escribed Mandatory	Staffing Require	ements		
	he contract is amended as foll FA proposed Amendment to t Additional Schedules: School Cal	nis section: Page	☐ Agreeme e #:6	nt Section 🗵 Bid	Iding Requireme Additional	nts/Specifications Section #: 1
	ne contract is amended as foll FA proposed Amendment to t		☐ Agreeme e #:	nt Section	lding Requireme	nts/Specifications Section #:
	9 70 H - G - 1900 D -		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
	ne contract is amended as foll A proposed Amendment to tl	•	☐ Agreeme e #:	nt Section	ding Requireme	nts/Specifications Section #:
одинализация (принция деления)						
	ne contract is amended as foll A proposed Amendment to the	,	☐ Agreeme	nt Section	ding Requireme	nts/Specifications Section #:
						···
	ne contract is amended as follows		☐ Agreeme	nt Section	ding Requireme	nts/Specifications Section #:
					· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	****					
		NYSED Date reviewed	) Pre-Reviewe by NYSED:	a UNLY		
Th	ne parties below agree to the app			rt of the contract. (Ori	ginal signature re	quired in blue ink)
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			C Representative:		
SFA Na	ame:		FSM0 Date	C Name:		

FORIVI #1A (Continuation Snee	τ): Page #	от	
School Food Authority:	Chappaqua Central Scho	ool District LEA Code:	661004060000
The contract is amende	d as follows (check one):	☐ Agreement Section	☐ Bidding Requirements/Specifications
SFA proposed Amendment to	this section: Page #:	Section Name:	Section #:
The contract is amende  SFA proposed Amendment to the	d as follows (check one): this section: Page #:	☐ Agreement Section Section Name:	☐ Bidding Requirements/Specifications  Section #:
The contract is amende	d as follows (check one): this section: Page #:	☐ Agreement Section  Section Name:	☐ Bidding Requirements/Specifications  Section #:
3rA proposed Americanient to 1	inis section. Fage #.	Section Name.	Section #.
The contract is amende	d as follows (check one):	☐ Agreement Section	☐ Bidding Requirements/Specifications
SFA proposed Amendment to t	this section: Page #:	Section Name:	Section #:
The contract is amended	d as follows (check one):	☐ Agreement Section	☐ Bidding Requirements/Specifications
SFA proposed Amendment to t	his section: Page #:	Section Name:	Section #:
The contract is amended	d as follows (check one):	☐ Agreement Section	☐ Bidding Requirements/Specifications
SFA proposed Amendment to t	his section: Page #:	Section Name:	Section #:
The contract is amended	d as follows (check one):	☐ Agreement Section	☐ Bidding Requirements/Specifications
SFA proposed Amendment to t	his section: Page #:	Section Name:	Section #:
		re-Reviewed ONLY	
The parties below garee to the	Date reviewed by approved amendments by		(Original signature required in blue ink)
Board President:		FSMC Representative	
SFA Name:		FSMC Name:	

The University of the State of New York NEW YORK STATE EDUCATION DEPARTMENT Child Nutrition Programs Administration 89 Washington Avenue, Room 375 EBA Albany, NY 12234

Telephone: (518) 473-8781 Fax: (518) 473-0018 Web Address: <u>www.cn.nysed.gov</u>

#### **FORM #2**

NYS Required 2018-2019 Cover Page for Food Service Management Company Contract and Bid Specifications

#### Form #2 - Cover Page

(This form is required for all executed contracts)

FOR	<b>:</b>			
	School Food Authority	Name:	Chappaqua Central	School District
	LEA Code:		66100406	0000
	Street Address:		66 Roaring Brook Road	
	City, State, Zip:		Chappaqua, New York 10514	
	Telephone Number:		914-238-7200	
	Superintendent/ CEO	Name:	Dr. Christine Ackerman	
	Email Address:		chackerman@ccsd.ws	
SUB	MITTED BY:			
	Food Service Manager	ment Company Name:		
	Street Address:			
	City, State, Zip:			
	Telephone Number			
		NYSE	D USE ONLY	
		NYSE	D Reviewed	
		Date:	Initial:	

The University of the State of New York NEW YORK STATE EDUCATION DEPARTMENT Child Nutrition Programs Administration 89 Washington Avenue, Room 375 EBA Albany, NY 12234

Telephone: (518) 473-8781 Fax: (518) 473-0018 Web Address: www.cn.nysed.gov

#### FORM #3

NYS Required 2018-2019 Cover Page for Food Service Management Company Contract and Bid Specifications

#### Form #3 - BID SUMMARY FORM

S	chool Food Authority:	Chappaqua Central Scho	ol District	LEA Code:	661004060000
1)		d Service Management Compa ceived) and check the compan			
	FSMC	Name	Bid Amount	:	Contract Awarded (check)
		. 40.2			
_					
		n below and attach to Form ding the food service contr		he Board of	Education
3)	If only one bid was received	l, provide an explanation belo	W.		J
	Original Signature of SFA	Representative (blue ink only)			Date

The University of the State of New York
NEW YORK STATE EDUCATION DEPARTMENT
Child Nutrition Programs Administration
89 Washington Avenue, Room 375 EBA
Albany, NY 12234
Telephone: (518) 473-8781 Fax: (518) 473-0018
Web Address: www.cn.nysed.gov

#### FORM #4 NYS Required 2018-2019 Board Minutes

Board Minutes only need to be attached if FSMC was not the lowest bidder as indicated on Form #3

#### Form #4 - Board Minutes Form

(Attach board minutes only if the lowest bidder was not awarded the FSMC contract)

	School Food Authority: Chap	ppaqua Central School District L	.EA Code:	661004060000
--	-----------------------------	----------------------------------	-----------	--------------

The University of the State of New York NEW YORK STATE EDUCATION DEPARTMENT Child Nutrition Programs Administration 89 Washington Avenue, Room 375 EBA Albany, NY 12234

Telephone: (518) 473-8781 Fax: (518) 473-0018 Web Address: www.cn.nysed.gov

#### <u>FORM #5</u>

NYS Required 2018-2019 Notarized Affidavit o
Publication

#### Form #5 - Notarized Affidavit of Publication Form

Attach Notarized Affidavit of Publication Here

School Food Authority: Chappaqua Central School District LEA	EA Code:	661004060000
--	----------	--------------

Please Note: This form, current advertisement and notarized affidavit of publication is required for all executed contracts.

- 1) Advertisements shall contain the time and place where bid will be received and publicly opened and read. At least 5 days shall elapse between the first publication of advertisement and the date for opening and reading bids. For example, bids advertised on the first of the month, may be opened on the 6th. SED recommends two weeks between advertisement and the bid opening.
- 2) If the advertisement was placed in more than one newspaper, an affidavit of publication must be attached here for each advertisement.
- 3) If the advertisement was placed on different dates for any reason, specify the reason for the different dates and attach each affidavit of publication here.
- 4) If the local newspaper does not provide an original advertisement, a scanned advertisement with the notarized affidavit is acceptable to be attached here.

## The University of the State of New York NEW YORK STATE EDUCATION DEPARTMENT Child Nutrition Programs Administration 89 Washington Avenue, Room 375 EBA Albany, NY 12234

Telephone: (518) 473-8781 Fax: (518) 473-0018 Web Address: www.cn.nysed.gov

#### FORM #6 NYS Required 2018-2019 Debarment Option A (SFA)

#### Form #6 - Debarment Option A (SFA Form)

(This form is required for all executed contracts)

	checked the System of Award Management List on	
	SFA Representative Name and Title Date	
<u>h</u>	ttp://www.sam,gov_and this prospective contractor	
	Name of FSMC and Principal/ President of Company	
W	vas not on the list as being suspended, debarred or disqualified.	
Т	o the best of my knowledge, I certify the above information is true and correct.	
	Original Signature of SFA Representative (blue ink only)  Date	
	Please Note the Following Regarding Debarment Option A or Debarment Option B:	
we 20: ma	hough we have included a list of the FSMCs that have not been debarred (with an asterisk) as a part of our annual FSM b posting, it was based on our office checking on the Excluded Parties on the System of Award website as of January 16. However, since, by the time the SFA goes out to bid or extend, circumstances regarding the FSMC's debarment stay have changed, it is the SFA's responsibility to check the list before submitting your contract or extension to SED for proval.	
The	erefore, either:	
1)	The SFA must look on the EPLS website and complete the Debarment Option A form to be submitted with the Contract/Extension packet.	
	<u>OR</u>	
2)	The FSMC must complete the Debarment Option B (Appendix C) form to be submitted with the Contract/Extension packet.	
	<u>ase note</u> : only the Debarment Option A or Debarment Option B form must be submitted with the contract or extension not submit both forms.	)n -

#### Form #7 - Debarment Option B

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions

SFAs are required to ensure that all sub-contractors and sub-grantees are neither excluded nor disqualified under the suspension and debarment rules found at 2 CFR 200.212 by doing any one of the following:

- Checking the Excluded Parties List found at the System for Award Management <u>www.SAM.gov</u>;
- Collecting a certification that the entity is neither excluded nor disqualified. Since a Federal certification form is no longer available, the grantee or sub-grantee electing this method must devise its own;
- Including a clause to this effect in the sub-grant agreement and in any procurement contract expected to equal or exceed \$25,000, awarded by the grantee or a sub-grantee under its grant or sub-grant;
- Sub-grantee and contractors must obtain a DUNS Number. All Federal Government awards are required to have a
  DUNS number. To obtain a DUNS number, contact Dun and Bradstreet at 1-or visit their website at
  <a href="https://eupdate.dnb.com/requestoptions.asp">https://eupdate.dnb.com/requestoptions.asp</a>. There is no charge for a DUNS number. The DUNS number serves
  as a means of tracking and identifying applications for Federal assistance and is required on all applications for
  Federal assistance.

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension. 2 CFR 200.212 Suspension and Debarment. The regulations were published as Part III of the December 26, 2013, <u>Federal Register</u> (pages 78590-78691). Copies of the regulations may be obtained by contacting by contacting the Department of Agriculture agency with which this transaction originated.

#### (BEFORE COMPLETING CERTIFICATION, READ INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE)

- 1. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency.
- 2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

Organization Name	PR/Award Number or Project Name
	_
Name and Title(s) of Authorized Representative(s)	
Signature (Blue Ink Only)	Date

#### Instructions for Form #7

#### INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION — LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

#### **DEBARMENT OPTION B**

- 1) By signing and submitting this form, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the certification set out on the reverse side in accordance with these instructions.
- 2) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.
- 3) The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.
- 4) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," `lower tier covered transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact the person to which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations.
- 5) The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this form that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction originated.
- 6) The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this form that it will include this clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.
- 7) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List.
- 8) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.
- 9) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and /or debarment.

#### Form #7A - Certification Regarding Lobbying

(Applicable to Grants, Subgrants, Cooperative Agreements, and Contracts Exceeding \$100,000 in Federal Funds)

Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction and is imposed by the Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352). This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

- No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for
  influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or
  employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of a Federal
  contract, the making of a Federal grant, the making of a Federal loan, the entering into a cooperative agreement,
  and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of a Federal contract, grant, loan, or
  cooperative agreement.
- 2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, in connection with this Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying", in accordance with it instructions.
- The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all
  covered sub awards exceeding \$100,000 in Federal funds at all appropriate tiers and that all subrecipients shall
  certify and disclose accordingly.

Name/Address of Organization	
Name/Title of Submitting Official	
Signature (blue ink only)	
Date	

#### Instructions for Form #7A

#### LOBBYING CERTIFICATION

#### (INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF SF-LLL, DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES)

This disclosure form shall be completed by the reporting entity, whether Subawardee or prime Federal recipient, at the initiation or receipt of a covered Federal action, or a material change to a previous filing, pursuant to title 31 U.S.C. section 1352. The filing of a form is required for each payment or agreement to make payment to any lobbying entity for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with a covered Federal action. Complete all items that apply for both the initial filing and material change report. Refer to the implementing guidance published by the Office of Management and Budget for additional information.

- 1. Identify the type of covered Federal action for which lobbying activity is and/or has been secured to influence the outcome of a covered Federal action.
- 2. Identify the status of the covered Federal action.
- 3. Identify the appropriate classification of this report. If this is a follow-up report caused by a material change to the information previously reported, enter the year and quarter in which the change occurred. Enter the date of the last previously submitted report by this reporting entity for this covered Federal action.
- 4. Enter the full name, address, city, state and zip code of the reporting entity. Include Congressional District, if known. Check the appropriate classification of the reporting entity that designates if it is, or expects to be, a prime or subaward recipient. Identify the tier of the subawardee, e.g., the first subawardee of the prime is the 1<sup>st</sup> tier. Sub awards include but are not limited to subcontracts, subgrants and contract awards under grants.
- 5. If the organization filing the report in item 4 checks "Subawardee", then enter the full name, address, city, state and zip code of the prime Federal recipient. Include Congressional District, if known.
- 6. Enter the name of the Federal agency making the award or loan commitment. Include at least one organizational level below agency name, if known. For example, Department of Transportation, United States Coast Guard.
- 7. Enter the Federal program name or description for the covered Federal action (item 1). If known, enter the full Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number for grants, cooperative agreements, loans, and loan commitments.
- 8. Enter the most appropriate Federal identifying number available for the Federal action identified in item 1 (e.g., Request for Proposal (RFP) number, Invitation for Bid (IFB) number; grant announcement number; the contract, grant, or loan award number; the application/proposal control number assigned by the Federal agency). Include prefixes, e.g., "RFP-DE-90-001."
- 9. For a covered Federal action where there has been an award or loan commitment by the Federal agency, enter the Federal amount of the award/loan commitment for the prime entity identified in item 4 or 5.
- (a) Enter the full name, address, city, state and zip code of the lobbying entity engaged by the reporting entity identified in item 4 to influence the covered Federal action.(b) Enter the full names of the individual(s) performing services, and include full address if different from
- 11. Enter the amount of compensation paid or reasonably expected to be paid by the reporting entity (item 4) to the lobbying entity (item 10). Indicate whether the payment has been made (actual) or will be made (planned). Check all boxes that apply. If this is a material change report, enter the cumulative amount of payment made or planned to be made.
- 12. Check the appropriate box(es). Check all boxes that apply. If payment is made through an in-kind contribution, specify the nature and value of the in-kind payment.
- 13. Check the appropriate box(es). Check all boxes that apply. If other, specify nature.
- 14. Provide a specific and detailed description of the services that the lobbyist has performed, or will be expected to perform and the date(s) of any services rendered. Include all preparatory and related activity, not just time spent in actual contact with Federal officials. Identify the Federal official(s) or employee(s) contacted or the officer(s), employee(s), or Member(s) of Congress that were contacted.
- 15. The certifying official shall sign and date the form; print his/her name, title, and telephone number.

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0046), Washington, D.C. 20503

#### FORM 7B

Form AD-1048 (1/92) Approved by OMB 0348-0046

Comple	DISCLOSURE OF LO	ng activitie	s pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352
(See reverse for pub			
1. Type of Federal Action:	2. Status of Federal Acti		3. Report Type:
a. contract	a. bid/offer/applic	ations	a. initial filing
b. grant	b. initial award		b. material change
c. cooperative agreement	c. post-award		for Material Change only:
d. loan			Year: Quarter:
e. loan guarantee			Date of last report:
f. loan insurance			
4. Name and address of Reporti	ng Entity:	5. If R	eporting Entity in #4 is Subawardee, Enter Name
☐ Prime ☐ Sub-	awardee	and Ad	dress of Prime:
	, if known:		
Congressional District, if known:		Congre	ssional District, if known:
Congressional District, y known.		Congre	Signal Bistret, y wienn.
6. Federal Department/Agency:		7. Fed	eral Program Name/Description:
			Number, if applicable:
8. Federal Action Number, if known:		9. Awa	rd Amount, if known:
		\$	
10a. Name and Address of Lobbying Entity (if individual, last name, first name, MI):			viduals Performing Services (including address if
		1	nt from #10a.)
		(last na	me, first name, MI):
11. Amount of Payment (check as	ll that apply):	1	e of Payment (check all that apply):
\$ \ \text{\textsum} \text{\text{\textsum} \text{\text{\textsum} \text{\text		□a.	retainer
		☐ Db. one-time fee	
		□c.	commission
		□d	contingent fee
		□e. deferred	
value		□f.	other; specify:
14. Brief Description of Services Performed or to be Performed			
employee(s), or Member(s) conta			
	,,		
15.			
Information requested through this for			
U.S.C. section 1352. This disclosure o		Signatur	'e:
material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed by the tier above when this transaction was made or entered into. This disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This information			(Sign in Blue Ink Only)
		Print Na	ma.
will be reported to the congress semi-a			me:
for public inspection. Any person who		Title:	
disclosure shall be subject to a civil pe	nalty not less than 10,000	Telepho	ne: Date:
and not more than \$100,000 for each s			
Federal Use Only:			Authorized for Local Reproduction Standard From – LLL
			2



The University of the State of New York NEW YORK STATE EDUCATION DEPARTMENT Child Nutrition Programs Administration 89 Washington Avenue, Room 375 EBA Albany, NY 12234

Albany, NY 12234
Telephone: (518) 473-8781 Fax: (518) 473-0018
Web Address: <u>www.cn.nysed.gov</u>

#### FORM #8 NYS Required 2018-2019 Preparation of Bid Specifications

#### Form #8 – Preparation of Bid Specifications Form

(This form is required for all executed contracts.)

S	chool Food Authority:	Chappaqua Central Schoo	1 District	LEA Code:	6610040	60000
1)	Did the SFA hire, discu	uss or consult with anyone in the pre	paration of bid sp	ecifications other t	han SED staf	f?
	☐ Yes	⊠ No				
	If yes, please com	plete 2 and sign 3 below. If no, plea	se sign 3 below.			
2)		the name, title and company name of specifications for bidding purposes.		ies that were hired	by the SFA to	o assist in
	Name	Title	Name of	Company	in the Pro	Participate ocurement cess?  check the riate box)
_					☐ Yes	□ No
					☐ Yes	□ No
_					☐ Yes	□ No
					☐ Yes	□ No
					☐ Yes	□ No
3) <b>SF</b> /	To the best of my kno  A Representative:	wledge, I certify the above informati	on is true and cor	rect.		,
		John L. Chow		John L	Chow/	mm
	Assist	Printed Name ant Superintendent for Business		() Signat	ure (Blue ink loi 2018	niy)
		Title	*		Date	4

The University of the State of New York
NEW YORK STATE EDUCATION DEPARTMENT
Child Nutrition Programs Administration
89 Washington Avenue, Room 375 EBA
Albany, NY 12234
Telephone: (518) 473-8781 Fax: (518) 473-0018
Web Address: www.cn.nysed.gov

#### FORM #9 NYS Required 2018-2019 Certification of Insurance

#### Form #9 - Certificate of Insurance Form

(This form is required for all executed contracts)

Attach a copy of the Certificate of Insurance

School Food Authority:	Chappaqua Central School District	LEA Code:	661004060000	

The University of the State of New York
NEW YORK STATE EDUCATION DEPARTMENT
Child Nutrition Programs Administration
89 Washington Avenue, Room 375 EBA
Albany, NY 12234
Telephone: (518) 473-8781 Fax: (518) 473-0018
Web Address: www.cn.nysed.gov

#### FORM #10 NYS Required 2018-2019 Performance Security

#### Form #10 - Performance Security

(A copy of the perform	ance bond or a copy of the authorization must under Section 14)	be attached here i	f B1 or B2 is selected
School Food Authority: _	Chappaqua Central School District	LEA Code:	661004060000

#### Form #11 - Summer Food Service Program

□ Check if not applicable

School Food Authorities (SFAs) which contract with a Food Service Management Company (FSMC) for food service operations during the school year are required to go out to bid separately for the Summer Food Service Program (SFSP) unless the contract includes provisions to operate the SFSP. The bid specifications and contract provisions for the "year round" contract must include terms and conditions applicable to both the SFA and the FSMC which provide for the operation of the SFSP in compliance with 7CFR Part 225 of the federal regulations. In addition to the general terms and conditions contained in the contract agreement form, the following provisions are herein made part of this bid specification/contract form:

- 1. The SFA shall specify estimated participation in the SFSP, by meal type, and other site information as detailed on Form 11A attached.
- 2. The SFA shall maintain responsibility for the administration and management of the SFSP and sign all agreements, claims for federal reimbursement and/or other program documents.
- The FSMC shall serve reimbursable meals pursuant to the SFSP regulations 7 CFR Part 225 and the menu planning
  option used by the SFA as specified in the SFSP Annual Application Agreement Form and in accordance with the
  attached menu (Schedule A).
- 4. The FSMC shall prepare, store and serve food items in accordance with State and local health standards. The contractor shall provide for meals, which it prepares to be periodically inspected by the local health department or an independent agency to determine bacterial levels in the meals being served. Such levels shall conform to the standards, which are applied by the local health authority with respect to the level of bacteria, which may be present in meals served by other establishments in the locality. The results of the inspections must be submitted promptly to the sponsor and State agency. The requirements of the attached Quality Control Plan must be met.
- 5. The FSMC shall provide food services, meal counting systems and record-keeping in compliance with 7 CFR Part 225, 7CFR Part 3016, 7 CFR 3019 and 2 CFR Parts 400, 415, 416 et al (79 FR 75981) as applicable, also known as the "Super-Circular".
- 6. The FSMC and SFA shall maintain records in accordance with federal and State record retention policies, supported by invoices, receipts, purchase orders, production records, payroll records or other evidence for inspection and reference, to support the operating costs listed on monthly claims for reimbursement.
- 7. The FSMC and SFA shall maintain separate expenditure and revenue records for the SFSP for both operating and administrative costs.
- 8. The FSMC shall bill the SFA separately for expenses incurred in the SFSP under this contract.

Original Signatures and Da (Original Signatures m	te of Both Parties Required oust be in blue ink only)
Signature President, Board of Education	Authorized Signature of FSMC and Title
Chappaqua Central School District	
Name of School Food Authority	Name of Food Service Management Company
Date	Date

## Page | 23 of 76

## Form #11A – Summer Food Service Program

Check here if N/A

Delivery Time for Each Meal Type (7) Total # Meals (6) **FSMC Name:** Estimated Average # Meals/ Day (5) Summer Food Service Program — Only complete if participating in the SFSP Types of Meals (4) AM Snack PM Snack AM Snack PM Snack AM Snack PM Snack Breakfast **Breakfast** Breakfast Supper Supper Supper Lunch Lunch Lunch Contact Person/Phone #: Total Days Operating (3) SITES WHERE PROGRAM WILL OPERATE: Days of Week #1 #1 #1 ## ##| #1 ᇔ ##1 #1 ## 배 淋 #1 瑞 7#.| End Date (2) Date Begin Date (1) Date **Holding Facilities ≥ 2** □ **2** □ **2** □ **2** □ **%** □ % □ **%** □ 8 | % □ **2** □ % □ **№ %** □ **%**□ □Yes **Address**: **Authorized Designee** Name and Site/Address & Sponsor Name:

# Form #11B - Summer Food Service Program Continuation Sheet

Check here if N/A

Name and Site/ Address & Autho	Authorized Designee	Holding Facilities	ing	Begin Date (1)	End Date (2)	Days of Week	Total Days Operating (3)	Types of Meals (4)	Estimated Average # Meals/ Day (5)	Total # Meals (6)	Delivery Time for Each Meal Type (7)
		□Yes	oN 🗆	Date	Date	#1		Breakfast			
		□Yes	% □	Date	Date	Ħ		AM Snack			
		□Yes	ON 🗆	Date	Date	#		Lunch			
		□Yes	% □	Date	Date	##1		PM Snack			
		□Yes	oN	Date	Date	7#1		Supper			
		□Yes	ON 🗆	Date	Date	##.I		Breakfast			
		□Yes	ON 🗆	Date	Date	##.]		AM Snack			
	- "	□Yes	ON 🗆	Date	Date	##1		Lunch			
		□Yes	ON 🗆	Date	Date	##		PM Snack			
		□Yes	°N □	<u>Date</u>	Date	#		Supper			
		□Yes	% $\square$	<u>Date</u>	Date	#		Breakfast			
		□Yes	ON 🗆	<u>Date</u>	Date	#1		AM Snack			
		□Yes	ON 🗆	<u>Date</u>	Date	#1		Lunch			
		□Yes	ON []	Date	Date	#		PM Snack			
:		□Yes	ON 🗆	<u>Date</u>	Date	##1		Supper			
	Announces are an area and a second property of the second property o	□Yes	ON 🗆	<u>Date</u>	Date	##		Breakfast			
		□Yes	oN 🗆	<u>Date</u>	Date	<b>#</b> #.l		AM Snack			
Y MORE PINE COLUMN PER		□Yes	oN 🗆	<u>Date</u>	Date	<b>∓</b> ‡.l		Lunch			
		□Yes	ON 🗆	Date	Date	##.		PM Snack			
		□Yes	oN 🗆	Date	Date	#		Supper			

#### SUMMER FOOD SERVICE PROGRAM QUALITY CONTROL PLAN

□ Check here if N/A

Providing children with safe, nutritious and appetizing meals is one of the primary objectives of the Summer Food Service Program. Quality control in food production involves each stage of processing from procurement to service.

To ensure that health and sanitation requirements are met at all times in the preparation and delivery of the summer meals; each FSMC must submit the following documents with the bid:

- 1) A copy of the FSMC's quality control assurance plan that provides complete details on quality assurance procedures for meal preparation, packaging of food items, transportation and delivery schedules.
- Quality assurance procedures shall identify the food production monitoring methods used to ensure that all foods are handled in a safe and sanitary manner. Quality assurance procedures will include but shall not be limited to the following:
- 3) The production/handling procedures for food (meal assembly) shall identify specific measures designed to monitor and assure the maintenance of personnel hygiene, sanitary conditions of the facility and the length of time associated with meal production periods.
- 4) Food product temperature monitoring procedures must provide a description of the procedures utilized to assure maintenance of safe food temperatures during all phases of handling, production, storage and shipment of meals. A log must be used for monitoring and recording food temperatures.
- 5) After the contract has been awarded and the program is in operation, the FSMC is responsible for submitting a copy of a log used for monitoring and recording food temperature during handling, production, storage, and delivery of the meals.
- 6) The SFA is also responsible for submitting samples of weights taken during program operations.
- 7) It is the responsibility of the SFA to ensure that the Quality Control Plan is in place before the contract begins.

#### Form #12 - Afterschool Snack Program

☑ Check here if N/A

(Complete only if receiving reimbursement for snacks served to children in the after school snack program.)

The parties of the attached contract, license, lease, amendment or other agreement or any kind (herein after, The contract" or This contract") agree to be bound by the following clauses which are hereby made a part of the contract (the word Contractor herein refers to any party other than the School Food Authority, whether a contractor, licenser, licensee, lessor, lessee, or any other party):

1) The SFA shall specify estimated participation in the after school care program(s) in the table below.

**Estimated Participation in the After School Care Program:** 

Participation in the after school care program for the Select Previous School Year school year was:

C-lI	Providence de			Student Pari		icipation	
School	Enrollment	Time of Service		Free	Reduced	Paid	
		to					
		to					
		to		_			
		to					
		to		_			
		to					
	<u> </u>	to					
	<u> </u>	to					
		to					
		to					

If the SFA charges for snack please indicate the price for reduced price snack (the maximum charge is .15) \$	
Full price snack charge is \$	

#### 2) Menu Cycle

The 21-day cycle menu and Food Item Specifications, see Schedule A/B, shall be used as a standard for the purpose of basing bids or estimating average cost per meal. The FSMC must adhere to the cycle for the first 21 days of meal service. Menu standard as presented in the 21-day cycle menu must be maintained as to type and quality of meal service.

Snacks served must consist of at least two different components, in at least the minimum portion requirements, as set forth in 7 CFR sections 210.10(n) and 210.10a(j):

- 3) The FSMC shall maintain the following records to provide the SFA with information to submit proper claims for reimbursement:
  - a. Daily meal counts by category.
  - b. Daily attendance records, such as sign-in sheets, for the after school program.
  - c. Written snack menus.
  - d. All records must be maintained for three year plus the current year.

This must be in accordance with federal and State record retention policies.

#### **Agreement Section**

THIS AGREEMENT, made this —	C	day of	by and between the
(IIIS <u>—</u>	(Day)	(Month, Year)	between the
	in the city of		, New York, herein after
(School Food Authority)	<del></del>	(City)	referred to
as "SFA" and		referred to as "FSMC".	
(Food Service	Management Company)		

#### WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the SFA has advertised for sealed bids for Food Service Management to the facilities listed in service locations and times in accordance with the specifications attached hereto and made a part hereof as if same were set forth in full, and,

WHEREAS, the FSMC submitted a bid for a Food Service Management Company to said facilities dated and has been awarded a contract.

**NOW, THEREFORE,** in consideration of the covenants and agreement hereinafter expressed, it is mutually covenanted and agreed between the parties hereto as follows:

#### 1) Scope and Purpose

- a) The SFA shall provide the requisite administrative oversight of the food service program operations administered by the FSMC with the necessary internal controls as it is their fiduciary responsibility to do so in accordance.
- b) The SFA is responsible for ensuring resolution of program review, monitoring areas of non-compliance and/or audit findings for reimbursable meals, a la carte sales including vending machines, and adult meals.
- c) The SFA shall be responsible for the cost of the food service program as indicated in the bid specifications and entitled to all receipts generated pursuant to this contract.
- d) All net income accruing to the SFA from the food service program shall remain in the program.
- e) The SFA shall retain control of the quality, extent and general nature of the food service program and the prices to be charged.
- f) The SFA shall retain signature authority for the Single Permanent Agreement to participate in the Child Nutrition Programs, including but not limited to NYSED reports, the online/paper submission of monthly claims for reimbursement, free and reduced price applications, etc.
- g) The SFA shall be legally responsible for the conduct of the food service program, and shall supervise the food service operations by the FSMC in such a manner that will ensure compliance with the rules and regulations of the New York State Department of Education, herein referred to as SED and the United States Department of Agriculture, herein referred to as USDA, regarding the school food service program, including but not limited to 7 CFR Part 210, 215, 220, 225, 245, 250, 3015, 3016, and 3019 and 2 CFR Parts 400, 415, 416. et al (79 FR 75981) also known as the "Super-Circular" and any FNS or NYSED Instruction and Policy as outlined in the SFA's Single Permanent Agreement with NYSED.
- h) The FSMC shall receive for its services an amount based on per meal bid price. All costs of the program must be net of all applicable discounts, rebates and credits.
- The FSMC, an independent contractor, shall have the exclusive right to operate the school lunch and/or breakfast and/or milk program.
- j) The food service programs provided shall be operated and maintained as a benefit to the SFA students and staff and not as a source of profit to the FSMC.
- () The FSMC shall promote nutrition-health education required by the local, county, State or federal governments.
- I) The FSMC shall comply with the rules and regulations of the Commissioner of Education and the United States Department of Agriculture, and any additions or amendments hereto.

#### 2) Free and Reduced Meal Policy

- a) The SFA free and reduced meal policy for the reimbursed school lunch and/or breakfast and/or special milk and/or commodity distribution programs as defined in the agreement and hereby in all respects made a part of this contract.
- b) The written policy of the SFA requiring feeding of needy children free or at reduced price shall apply to the FSMC's food service operation and the SFA shall be responsible for the implementation of this policy.
- c) The SFA shall be responsible for the review and certification of the free and reduced price eligibility applications, public announcement, letter to parents, direct certification, hearings, verification of certified applications and maintenance of the eligibility rosters, the completion, distribution and collection of the parent letter and household application for free and reduced price students. FSMC employees are not allowed to review, process and/or approve free and reduced price applications or to be involved in the free and reduced price meal application process.
- d) The SFA shall be responsible for the establishment and maintenance of the free and reduced price meals benefit issuance listing and providing it to the FSMC to ensure that student's meals are accurately claimed for reimbursement under the correct eligibility category.
- e) The SFA and the FSMC agree that no child who participates in the Child Nutrition Programs will be discriminated against on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, disability, sex, gender identity, religion, reprisal, and where applicable, political beliefs, marital status, familial or parental status, sexual orientation as well as their inability to pay.
- f) No school or school food authority may contract with a food service management company to operate an a la carte food service unless the company agrees to offer free, reduced price and paid reimbursable lunches to all eligible children.

#### 3) Meal Pattern

- a) The FSMC shall serve reimbursable lunches that meet Food Based menu pattern requirements pursuant to the National School Lunch Program regulations 7 CFR Part 210. and shall meet the Dietary Guidelines for Americans. Failure to do so will result in a loss of the total per meal price paid to the FSMC for all meals not meeting program requirements. Such actions constitute a breach of contract and subject the FSMC to a penalty as outlined in Section 26C and may be considered cause for termination of the contract in accordance with the sixty (60) day termination clause as outlined in Section 26D of the contract.
- b) The FSMC should offer a choice of reimbursable meal pattern lunches, subject to approval of the SFA.
- c) The FSMC shall serve reimbursable breakfasts that meet Food Based menu pattern requirements pursuant to the School Breakfast Program regulations 7 CFR Part 220, where indicated in Appendix B of this agreement, and shall meet the Dietary Guidelines for Americans. Failure to do so will result in a loss of the total per meal price paid to the FSMC for all meals not meeting program requirements. Such actions constitute a breach of contract and subject the FSMC to a penalty as outlined in Section 26C and may be considered cause for termination of the contract in accordance with the sixty (60) day termination clause as outlined in Section 26D of the contract.
- d) The FSMC shall serve reimbursable meal pattern snacks that meet meal pattern requirements pursuant to the National School Lunch Program regulations 7 CFR Part 210 and 220. Failure to do so will result in a loss of the total per meal price paid to the FSMC for all meals not meeting program requirements. Such actions constitute a breach of contract and subject the FSMC to a penalty as outlined in Section 26C and may be considered cause for termination of the contract in accordance with the sixty (60) day termination clause as outlined in Section 26D of the contract.
- e) The FSMC shall serve reimbursable milk pursuant to the Special Milk Program if eligible to do so.
- f) The FSMC must demonstrate that food based menus are planned to meet the 2010 Dietary Guidelines for Americans and comply with established caloric ranges, sodium, saturated and trans fat levels as outlined in 7 CFR Part 210 and 220.
- participating children are unable, because of medical or other special dietary needs, to consume such foods. Such substitutions shall be made only when supported by a statement from a recognized medical authority for a child with a disability which substantially limits one or more major life activities, which includes the child's disability, why the disability restricts the diet, the major life activity affected by the disability recommended alternate foods and foods that must be omitted from the child's diet. The SFA shall notify the FSMC of any special dietary needs. The U.S. Department of Agriculture's (USDA) nondiscrimination regulation (7 CFR 15b), as well as the regulations governing the National School Lunch Program and School Breakfast Program, make it clear that substitutions to

- the regular meal must be made for children who are unable to eat school meals because of their disabilities, when that need is certified by a licensed physician.
- h) The FSMC may use fillers or extenders, such as "textured vegetable protein," in foods served upon approval of the SFA and regulated by USDA.
- i) No payment shall be made to the FSMC by the SFA for any meals that are spoiled, inedible or unwholesome at time of delivery, or do not meet the detailed specifications and/or meal pattern requirements.

#### 4) Point of Service Accountability/Collection Method

- a) Meals shall be served and proper accurate pupil participation records shall be maintained by the FSMC which must ensure that accurate categorical meal counts are obtained at the point of service for reimbursement purposes.
- b) The FSMC shall implement an accurate point of service accountability system and a collection method which must protect the anonymity of free and reduced price students which must be approved by the SFA.
- c) The FSMC must adapt to the SFA's point of sale system and associated training costs will be the responsibility of the FSMC.

#### Menus

- a) All food items served must adhere to the specification listed on Schedule B and conform to the standard portion sizes listed in Schedule A and Schedule B.
- b) All menus, which are established/approved by the SFA and prepared by the FSMC, are to be served in all schools during all meal services. The FSMC shall not deviate from the SFA's established menu and/or impose preparation of menu items that they prefer to serve for their convenience and/or preference. Any unannounced deviation from the menus by the FSMC, without prior approval of the SFA, may result in payment penalties.
- c) The FSMC must adhere to the cycle for the first 21 days of meal service. Menu standards as presented in the 21 day cycle menu must be maintained as to type and quality of meal service by the FSMC as indicated in Schedule A (Menus).
- d) High quality food items are to be provided by the FSMC. If, in the opinion of the SFA, the quality of food service becomes unsatisfactory, the FSMC may be subject of penalties, contract termination an any other available legal remedies.
- e) Food that has become outdated, spoiled, damaged, wilted, dried out, aged, burnt, and/or has changed color shall not be used.
- f) All FSMC employees are to be trained to properly portion all food items to meet the USDA meal pattern requirements as well as the requirements of the bid specification. A schedule of staff training is to be included with each FSMC proposal in Schedule G.
- g) The District Manager of the FSMC shall provide monitor, supervise and train the food service staff personnel for the SFA's food service program. The FSMC District Manager shall visit all district schools 8 times throughout the school year and shall provide a written summary report to the Business Manager within 10 days of their visit.
- h) The SFA is responsible for the formation and establishment of an advisory board comprised of students, teachers and parents that will meet frequently throughout the school year to assist in menu planning. The FSMC shall participate in these periodic meetings when deemed appropriate by the SFA. Documentation of these meetings is to be kept on file by the SFA and made available upon request by SED.
- i) Menus are to be printed by the FSMC and distributed to parents, students, each school and administration and posted in all schools on a <a>\to Weekly</a> or <a>\tilde{u}</a> Monthly basis and should contain daily, weekly and/or seasonal specials planned in conjunction with the meal service requirements for holidays, educational and/or other special events. The FSMC will adhere to the SFA's additional promotional and merchandising specifications in Schedule A.
- k) The FSMC is to post all menus in a prominent location in all cafeterias and on the SFA's website if applicable.
- Preparation and presentation of the same menu item(s) should be consistent in each building throughout the district.
- m) The FSMC shall comply with the Buy American Provision, including but not limited to 7 CFR 210.21, 7 CFR Part 200, and 7 CFR Part 250 for contracts that involve the purchase of food. The SFA reserves the right to review FSMC purchase records to ensure compliance with the Buy American provision. The FSMC shall provide Nutrition Fact labels and any other documentation requested by the SFA to ensure compliance with Buy American.

#### 6) Production Records/ Standardized Recipes

a) Production records (7CFR 210.10(a)(3)) and standardized recipes (7CFR 210.10(l)(8)) are to be used in all schools throughout the SFA by the FSMC as required by federal and State regulations to ensure consistency, quantity and quality of meals served. All standardized recipes are to be kept on file in each kitchen and must indicate all

- ingredients and portion sizes. Samples of the standardized recipes to be used by the FSMC must be included in Schedule A with your bid.
- b) The FSMC must have the ability to provide all interested parties including the SFA, SED, parents, administration, etc. the actual ingredients and recipes of each menu item offered.
- c) The FSMC is to ensure consistent quality and portioning of menu items throughout the SFA and be subject to the SFA's audit of production records to ensure compliance with this requirement.
- d) The FMSC is to ensure that overproduction of meals does not occur and that leftovers are not removed from the SFA's premises at any time.
- e) Production records must be accurate and kept on a daily basis (7CFR 210.10(a)(3)) and are to be completed for each meal, in all buildings by the FSMC and kept on file for 3 years plus the current year in accordance with federal and State record retention policies, in the SFA, for auditing purposes as required by federal and state regulations. Samples of the production records to be used by the FSMC must be included in Schedule A with your bid.

#### 7) Meal Services

- a) The FSMC shall provide specified types of meal services in an efficient manner to maximize participation in the Child Nutrition Programs as listed in the service locations and times and hereby in all respects made as a part of this contract.
- b) The FSMC is expected to ensure that the quality of meal service is appealing and attractive to maximize customer satisfaction as well as ensure that students proceed through serving lines in an efficient manner.
- c) The FSMC shall provide condiments and utensils as needed.
- d) The FSMC shall use the SFA facilities for the preparation of food to be served in the designated meal service locations.
- e) All a la carte items served by the FSMC shall be approved by the SFA in advance of sale.
- f) The SFA should review all meal services to determine if complete meals are offered, if all items are available during the entire meal service, if food items listed on the menu are being served, if counts are accurately taken at the point of service and if foods listed on the procurement schedule are available for service.
- g) The N/A shall administer the Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program (FFVP), if applicable. Food, labor and miscellaneous costs incurred will be reimbursed from the pre-approved allocation of money from a discretionary grant from the federal government. Additional fees, if any, must be negotiated and agreed upon, prior to implementation of the Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program. If the FSMC administers the FFVP for the SFA, administrative expenses paid to the FSMC cannot exceed \$100 total per month for the total of up to 50 schools participating in the program. The administrative expense may increase incrementally by \$100 per month for an additional total of up to 50 schools participating in the FFVP. USDA allows no more than ten percent (10%) of the total grant awarded the SFA for administrative expense (which includes equipment purchases.) Refer to the USDA FFVP guidance material at the following link: http://www.fns.usda.gov/ffvp/fns-resources. NYSED limits the total administrative expenses paid to the FSMC to one half percent (1/2%) of the respective percent for SFAs with more than 150 schools participating in FFVP. See chart below:

Number of Schools	Allowable Per Month Total
1-50 schools	= \$100
51-100 schools	= \$200
101-150 schools	= \$300
151 plus schools	= ½% (cannot exceed ½% of up to 10%
	administrative expenses)

#### 8) Pricing

- a) The SFA shall be responsible for establishing all selling prices for all reimbursable and non-reimbursable meals/milk and a la carte (including vending and adult meals) and be adhered to by the FSMC.
- b) The FSMC is to promote the sale of reimbursable meals throughout the district.
- c) All a la carte prices charged by the FSMC shall be approved by the SFA in advance of sales.
- d) The FSMC shall sell on the premises only those foods and beverages authorized by the SFA and only at the times and places designated by the SFA.
- e) The SFA employees may purchase meals at the option and direction of the SFA. Prices charged by the FSMC must be approved by the BOE/Governing Body of the SFA. The price for adult meals for the same portion size as students must be equal to or more than the over 60% reimbursement rate for a free meal, plus the donated commodity entitlement rate for the current school year, plus sales tax. The FSMC shall be notified of such approval thirty (30) days before new prices are effective. The FSMC may serve meals to their employees free of charge, however, the cost of the meal or the value of the adult meal (value of the adult meals converted to equivalent

meals) may not be charged to the SFA. The FSMC shall not count these meals for reimbursement under the Child Nutrition Programs.

#### 9) Monitoring

- a) The SFA shall monitor the food service operation of the FSMC through periodic on-site visits to ensure that the food service is in conformance with USDA program regulations per 7CFR § 210.16. If there is more than one site, there is an additional requirement that the SFA conduct an on-site review of the counting and claiming system no later than February 1 of each year as required by 7 CFR § 210.8. The designated SFA representative is:
  - Asst. Superintendent for Business responsible for performing all on-site reviews and ensuring that if there are any problems found that they will be corrected within the required timeframes.
- b) FSMC personnel are prohibited from conducting the self-review for the SFA; however, the FSMC may accompany the SFA during the self-review and is responsible for ensuring that any problems found during the self-review are corrected within the required timeframes.
- c) In the event fiscal action is taken by SED against the SFA based on areas of noncompliance related to the menu/meal pattern found during any administrative review, including validation reviews during the course of this contract, the SFA can recoup funds from the FSMC.

#### 10) All Foods Sold in School (Competitive Foods)

- a) The FSMC shall not sell, dispense, or cause to be on premises, the items listed by the SFA under federal and State regulations and hereby in all respects made a part of the contract.
- b) Neither the SFA nor the FSMC shall authorize the distribution or sale of competitive foods pursuant to State and federal laws and regulations.

#### 11) USDA Foods

- a) The FSMC must pre-credit the SFA for the value of USDA foods. A deduction for the value of USDA Foods must be reflected in the established bid price. The FSMC must provide an additional credit for any donated foods not accounted for in the established price per meal.
- b) Any USDA Foods received by the SFA and made available to the FSMC shall accrue only to the benefit of the SFA's nonprofit school food service program and shall be used therein.
- c) The FSMC must credit the SFA for the value of all USDA Foods received for use in the school food service programs in the school year including values of USDA foods that were not accounted for in the original bid price. The FSMC must provide the SFA with a complete inventory of all USDA Foods received each month. Copies of the FSMC's monthly Inventory Request forms for USDA Foods must also be provided to the SFA each month for their review.
- d) The FSMC must utilize the SFA's entire entitlement as per Schedule H and any additional entitlement received throughout the contract terms. The FSMC and SFA must follow applicable federal and State requirements, including but not limited to 7 CFR 250.
- e) The FSMC is only to order USDA Foods in accordance with the SFA's menus reflected in Schedule A and the SFA's Local Wellness Policy (Schedule C).
- f) The FSMC must maintain (have available for audit by the SFA) transportation of USDA Foods throughout the district.
- g) USDA Foods are to be obtained for the use solely in the SFA's food service operation and shall not be removed from the SFA's premises.
- h) The FSMC shall have records available to substantiate the full value and use of USDA Foods in reimbursable meal pattern lunches. Records should clearly reflect that the value and amount of USDA Foods received and used by the FSMC is solely for the SFA's benefit. The values are to be based on the value at the point the SFA receives the USDA Foods from the State distributing agency and based on the USDA Foods Value listing pertinent to the applicable time period. This includes when the FSMC procures end products from processors on behalf of the SFA in the form of rebates, credits and/or discounts.
- i) The FSMC shall select, accept and use in as large quantities as may be efficiently used in SFA's nonprofit school service, the type and quantities of available USDA Foods, subject to the approval of the SFA.
- j) The FSMC shall be responsible for transportation and storage charges for USDA Foods.
- k) The FSMC shall account for all federally donated USDA Foods separately from purchased food items. USDA Foods are not to be used for special functions conducted outside the nonprofit school food service.
- Title of products purchased or processed using USDA Foods must remain with the SFA. Any charges incurred by the FSMC when processing or purchasing products containing USDA Foods shall be paid by the FSMC and charged back to the SFA as a cost.

- m) The FSMC is subject to the applicable requirements of 7 CFR 250 to the extent that it uses USDA Foods.
- n) If the FSMC uses a commercial substitute in place of the USDA Food, it must be of the same generic identity, of U.S. origin, and of equal or better quality in place of USDA Food.
- o) The FSMC is prohibited from entering into any processing contracts utilizing USDA Foods on behalf of the SFA. All refunds received from processors must be retained by the nonprofit school food service account.
- p) Title to all USDA Foods provided to the FSMC for use in the school food service program shall remain with the SFA
- q) The SFA must conduct a reconciliation in accordance with 7 CFR Part 250 to ensure that the FSMC has properly credited it for the value of all USDA Foods received for use in the SFA's food service operation in the applicable school year.
- r) When this contract terminates or subsequent extensions terminate, the FSMC must return all unused USDA Foods to the SFA.
- s) The FSMC will use all USDA Foods ground beef and ground pork products, and all processed end products, in the SFA food service in accordance with CFR Part 250.53(5).
- t) The Department of USDA Foods, The NYS Child Nutrition Program Administration Office, The SFA, The NYS Comptroller, The Department of Agriculture, or their duly authorized representatives may perform onsite reviews of the FSMC's food service operation, including the review of records, to ensure compliance with requirements for the management and use of USDA Foods in accordance with CFR Part 250.53(10).
- u) In the event that the full entitlement of USDA foods ordered is not received through USDA, the FSMC may receive
  a credit for the amount of entitlement not received. Prior to crediting the SFA must verify the cause to determine if
  crediting is required.

### 12) Purchases

- a) The grade, purchase unit, style, weight, ingredients, formulation etc., as set forth by the SFA, see Schedule B, shall be complied with by the FSMC. If a brand name is specified, or "equal to" must also be indicated.
- b) The FSMC shall purchase all food and non-food items at the lowest price possible consistent with maintaining quality standards.
- c) The FSMC may purchase from their owned or operated subsidiary facilities if the purchase price is lower than the prices otherwise available in the area.
- d) The FSMC shall honor existing contracts if advantageous to the SFA.
- e) The FSMC shall be solely responsible for the purchase and payment of all foods and beverages necessary for it to render proper performance of the food service program as stated herein. Such purchases and performance shall apply to all items in addition to food and beverage, which will be necessary for compliance with and of this agreement.
- f) The FMSC is to ensure that purchased foods for the sole use of the SFA's food service operation are not removed from the district premises at any time.
- g) The FSMC, as the agent of the SFA will ensure that all procurement transactions meet any applicable procurement standards set forth by Federal, State, or Municipal regulations and policy.
- h) The FSMC shall produce a report, which documents the procurement of NY grown/locally grown products including the local farm source, the product(s) purchased and the value of the products purchased on behalf of the SFA
- i) The prices charged the SFA for food, supplies, services, etc. must be competitive, reasonable and necessary.

### 13) Use of Facilities

- a) The FSMC shall instruct its employees to abide by the policies, rules and regulations, with respect to use of SFA premises/facilities as established by the SFA, which are furnished in writing to the FSMC by the SFA.
- b) The SFA shall furnish at its expense, electricity, gas, space, light, heat, power, hot and cold water and other utilities to the FSMC as in the judgment of the SFA that is reasonably needed and necessary for the operation of the food services as well as sanitary toilet facilities for FSMC employees.
- c) The SFA shall make available without any cost or charge to the FSMC contractor area or areas of the premises that are mutually agreeable to both parties in which the FSMC shall render its services; such area or areas reasonably necessary for providing efficient food service.
- d) The SFA may request of the FSMC, additional food service programs; however, the SFA reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to sell or dispense any food or beverage before or after the SFA's regularly scheduled lunch or breakfast periods provided such use does not interfere with the operation of the School Lunch and/or Breakfast and/or Special Milk Programs.
- e) If the SFA uses the facilities for extracurricular activities before or after the SFA regularly scheduled lunch or breakfast period, the SFA shall return facilities and equipment to the FSMC in the same condition as received, normal wear and tear excepted.
- f) The SFA shall be responsible for painting and/or decorating within the kitchen and dining areas.

- g) The SFA shall have unlimited access, with or without notice to the FSMC, to all areas used by the FSMC for purposes of inspections and audits.
- h) The FSMC shall use the SFA facilities for the preparation of food to be served only at sites specified in the appendices and subject to approval by SED.

### 14) Inventory, Equipment and Storage

- a) The SFA shall furnish all necessary equipment to operate the food programs. At the time of the contract signing, an itemized inventory (to be certified by representatives of both parties) of all food items furnished or to be furnished by the SFA including miscellaneous kitchen items, will be made part of this contract and included in Schedule E.
- b) The FSMC and the SFA shall inventory the equipment and commodities owned by the SFA at the beginning of the school year, including but not limited to silverware, trays, chinaware, glassware, kitchen utensils, and food commodities.
- c) The FSMC shall maintain the inventory of silverware, chinaware, glassware, kitchen utensils, and other operating items necessary for the food service operation throughout the school year.
- d) The SFA shall replace expendable equipment and replace, repair and maintain equipment except when damages result from the use of less than reasonable care by the employees of the FSMC. Any equipment purchases must be in compliance with CNP procurement regulations. Any equipment purchases beyond the federal of State threshold requires State Agency approval. Regarding all equipment, furnishings and small wares used for the services hereunder, the FSMC agrees that it will use the SFA equipment and machinery in good and proper manner and shall keep the same free from damages, in proper condition and in a state of cleanliness to assure STRICT COMPLIANCE WITH HEALTH REGULATIONS AS PROVIDED AND REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF NEW YORK, dealing with SFA facilities, as with all other health laws. Therefore:
  - i) Repairs necessary due to the negligence of the FSMC, its employees or agents shall be the sole responsibility and the sole expense of the FSMC.
  - ii) The SFA agrees to at its sole option to repair or replace any equipment not functioning properly or which is missing upon proper written notification by the FSMC of the need for such repair or replacement and the availability of normal repair or replacement facilities. If the SFA, at its discretion, determines not to repair and/or replace equipment that the FSMC has expressly advised the SFA in writing (a) poses a safety risk to FSMC's employees, or (b) hinders FSMC's ability to perform its services under the agreement, then FSMC shall have the right to effectuate such repair and/or replacement at the expense of SFA.
  - iii) No purchases, alterations, changes, or improvements shall be made to the areas granted to the FSMC without obtaining prior written permission of the SFA with the final decision as to purchases, alterations, changes, or improvements reserved solely for the SFA.
- e) The SFA shall be responsible for repairs to all permanent fixtures such as faucets, lights, sewers, air conditioning, heating and all other electrical work NOT considered to be food equipment, since such food equipment is dealt with in item D above.
- f) The FSMC shall maintain adequate storage practices, inventory, and control of federally donated foods in conformance with SFA's agreement with the Office of General Services as well as non-commodity purchases.
- g) The SFA shall provide locks for food storage, preparation and service areas. Keys to those locks shall be provided by the SFA to the FSMC at the SFA's discretion.
- h) The SFA shall provide the FSMC with telecommunication services as deemed necessary by the SFA.
- i) The SFA shall furnish and install any equipment or make any structural changes needed to comply with federal, State and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations.
- j) The SFA shall be responsible for any losses including federally donated commodities, which may arise due to equipment malfunction or loss of electrical power not within the control of the FSMC.
- k) All food preparation and serving equipment owned by SFA shall remain on the premises of the SFA.
- The SFA shall not be responsible for loss or damage to equipment owned by the FSMC and located on the SFA premises.
- The FSMC shall obtain prior approval from the SFA before placement of any FSMC equipment on SFA premises.
- n) Upon termination of this contract the FSMC will surrender to the SFA all equipment and furnishings located in the food services facilities and/or as listed on the certified inventory list of all SFA owned property (both capital and/or expendable) as referred to in 14B 14C. Such property and equipment or its equal quality replacement must be returned to the SFA in the same good order and condition as when received by the FSMC, reasonable wear and tear, damage from casualty fire and hazards covered by insurance ALONE EXCEPTED. Another inventory shall be taken upon termination to determine the status of all equipment hereunder. Discrepancies shall be corrected at the FSMC's sole expense with said replacement based on a comparison with the original inventory.

### 15) Deliveries/ Transportation

- a) The FSMC and the SFA are responsible for the proper and safe transportation of food between buildings to students in a prompt and efficient manner to adhere to the serving times established by the SFA.
- b) The **FSMC** shall pay for oil and gas used by its owned, hired, or other vehicles under its supervision used for delivering food or non-food commodities.
- c) The FSMC shall provide its own drivers for owned, hired, or other vehicles under its supervision used for delivering food or non-food commodities.

### 16) Sanitation/ Health Certification

- a) The FSMC shall serve all foods at proper temperatures and develop standards of time for food preparation prior to meal service and the food should be ready to be served as close to serving time as possible.
- b) The SFA will provide for the removal of all trash and garbage from the designated area(s) with the FSMC being responsible for proper sanitary storage and placement in the designated area(s) of said trash and garbage until its removal.
- c) The FSMC shall clean the kitchen area, including but not limited to sinks, counters, tables, chairs, silverware, and utensils.
- d) The SFA shall clean the grease traps in the food service area to be in good working order.
- e) The SFA shall maintain the grease traps in the food service area to be in good working order.
- f) The FSMC shall operate and care for all equipment and food service areas (except walls, windows and lights) in a clean, safe, and healthy condition in accordance with standards acceptable to the SFA and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, regulations and rules of federal, State, and local authorities.
- g) The **SFA** shall be responsible for the professional cleaning of ducts and hoods above the filter line and will provide extermination services as needed and not less than one time per year.
- h) The FSMC shall comply with all local and State sanitation requirements in the preparation of food and attend all related mandated training as deemed necessary by the SFA and/or SED.
- i) The FSMC shall adhere to the School Food Safety Plan set forth as per USDA regulations for all preparation and meal service of school meals, using a Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point (HACCP) system as required by Public Law 108-265 which is to be included as part of the Bid by the SFA as reflected in Schedule F.
- j) The SFA shall maintain all applicable health certifications on its facilities and shall ensure that all State and local regulations are being met by the FSMC preparing and/or serving meals at any SFA facility.
- k) The SFA shall immediately correct any problems found as a result of a health inspection.
- I) The FSMC shall adhere strictly to all applicable Pure Food Laws, ordinances as well as all related regulations as adopted and promulgated by the federal government, the State of New York, the local Departments of Health and said FSMC will otherwise fully comply at all times with the rules and regulations as set up by the SFA as well as with any change in the State and/or county Laws, etc., covering and controlling food services at the facilities.
- m) The FSMC shall comply with all health and safety regulations required by federal, State, or local law.
- n) The FSMC and the SFA shall comply with all building rules and regulations.
- o) The FSMC shall procure the most recent applicable health certification required by federal, State, or local law and post in a noticeable place in the food service area.
- p) The FSMC shall have State or local health certification for any facility outside the SFA in which it proposes to prepare meals and the FSMC shall maintain this health certification for the duration of the contract.
- q) The FSMC shall comply with the additional food and safety specifications by the SFA as reflected in Schedule F.

### 17) <u>Employees</u>

- a) Fingerprinting The FSMC shall comply with the Regulations of the Commissioner Part 87 Criminal History Record Check for Prospective School Employees. The FSMC will be responsible for fees associated with obtaining fingerprints of prospective employees. The fingerprinting process prescribed by the New York State Education Department must be followed.
- b) The results of all fingerprints from the Office of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) must be given to the covered school district, charter school or BOCES as well as prospective employer (FSMC). A prospective school employee means any individual, employee of a provider of contracted services to a covered school who is to be placed within such covered school. A covered school means a board of cooperative educational services, a charter school, a school district, or any nonpublic or private elementary or secondary school that elects to fingerprint and seek clearance for prospective employees from the department beginning July 1, 2007, geographically located in New York State, excluding the city school district of the City of New York. The SFA must ensure that employee fingerprinting records are on file.

- c) The FSMC must complete and retain an Employment Eligibility Verification Form I-9 for each individual hired for employment. The form must be kept on file for three years after hiring an individual or one year after the employee is terminated.
- d) The FSMC shall comply with all wage and hours of employment requirements of federal and State Law.
- e) All employees of the FSMC shall be paid in accordance with the Fair Labor Standard Act, as amended and any other applicable statutes.
- f) The FSMC shall comply with Titles VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the implementing regulations of the United States Department of Agriculture issued thereunder and any additions or amendments thereto. The FSMC shall comply with Executive Order 11246, entitled Equal Employment Opportunity, as amended by Executive Order 11375, and as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations 41 CFR Part 60. The FSMC shall also ensure that a Civil Rights training, in accordance with 7 CFR 210.23(b) and FNS-113, Appendix B, is provided to all food service employees at least once each school year.
- g) The FSMC shall provide Workman's Compensation for its employees.
- h) The FSMC shall provide the SFA with a list of its personnel policies and fringe benefits for its employees.
- i) Staffing patterns shall be mutually agreed upon and there shall be no deviations from the recommended staffing pattern contained in Schedule G, without the SFA's prior approval and consent.
- j) Any employee who is continued as an employee of the FSMC shall be subject to the personnel policies and termination rules of the FSMC.
- k) The FSMC shall not hire employees in excess of the number required for efficient school food service operations needed for the applicable months of the school year that the Child Nutrition Programs are in operation.
- I) The FSMC shall provide the SFA with a schedule of employees, positions, assigned locations, salaries (and hours to be worked) two full calendar weeks prior to the commencement of operation as reflected in Schedule G.
- m) The SFA may request in writing the removal of an employee of the FSMC who violates health requirements or conducts himself/herself in a manner which is detrimental to the physical, mental, or moral wellbeing of students. In the event of the removal or suspension of any such employee, the FSMC shall immediately restructure its staff without disruption in service.
- n) All FSMC personnel assigned to each school shall meet the professional standard requirements as prescribed by USDA, SED or the SFA in accordance with federal, State or local law regulations and guidance and shall be trained by the FSMC on the use of all meal preparation/service equipment, emergency valves, switches, fire and safety devices in the kitchen and cafeteria areas.
- o) The SFA will ensure that all FSMC employees have been subjected to the same hiring requirements as SFA employees as indicated in Schedule G (i.e., physicals, employee screenings, background checks, immigration, etc.) and ensure that the proper documentation is maintained on file.
- p) The FSMC will adhere to additional FSMC staffing requirements by the SFA regarding the interview process, resumes, qualifications, job descriptions, substitutes, time/attendance, snow days, vacation days, benefits, terminating, hiring, proper attire, communication with SFA, unions, wages, withholdings, workers compensation, unemployment insurance, retirements, student workers, etc. in Schedule G.
- q) The FSMC will adhere to additional FSMC staff training requirements by the SFA in Schedule G.
- r) The FSMC shall have the sole responsibility to compensate its employees, including all applicable taxes and insurance and shall be solely responsible for any losses incurred by the SFA resulting from dishonest, fraudulent or negligent acts on the part of its employees or agents. ALL food service employees shall comply with all rules of the SFA for cleanliness and courtesy.
- s) The FSMC shall be an independent contractor and not an employee of the SFA; nor are the employees of the FSMC employees of the SFA. If applicable, list all employees of the SFA that will be working in the school lunch program. If additional space is needed, indicate on Schedule G.
- t) In the event the SFA retains the services of the food service staff, the SFA must list all food service staff in Schedule G specifying the title and salary of each employee.

### 18) Emergency Closing

a) The SFA will establish procedures on a site by site basis for working with the FSMC when there is a snow emergency, change in the site schedule, field trips, unexpected closings or other events that may affect participation in the meal program. Events not under the control of the SFA and acts of God shall not affect the guaranteed return to the SFA.

### 19) Licenses, Fees and Taxes

- a) The FSMC shall be responsible for paying all applicable taxes and fees, including but not limited to excise tax, State and local income taxes, payroll, and withholding taxes and hold the SFA harmless for all claims arising under such taxes and fees.
- b) The SFA shall be responsible for paying sales taxes collected on any receipts deposited in its name.
- c) The FSMC shall be responsible for securing and posting all licenses, permits and food handler's cards as required by federal, State, or local law.
- d) The FSMC shall be responsible for any fines imposed by the county health department related to the FSMC operation of the program.

### 20) Income, Reimbursement/ Deposits

- a) All income accruing from the result of payments from children and adults, federal and State reimbursements, and all other income sources shall be deposited in the SFA's food service account.
- b) Any profit or guaranteed return shall remain in the SFA's food service account.
- c) The SFA shall receive all income from the program(s) including a la carte and/or vending machine sales which the SFA must deposit in the school cafeteria fund accounts. At no time shall the SFA relinquish Child Nutrition Program reimbursements to the FSMC.
- d) Authority to sign claims for reimbursement shall remain with the SFA.
- e) The FSMC staff cannot submit claims for reimbursement online or by mail and cannot be issued Child Nutrition Management System (CNMS) passwords in order to submit claims; however they may prepare claims and provide supporting documentation for the SFA's review/approval.
- f) The SFA must review claims and accountability systems, as well as perform the edit checks, to determine the accuracy of claims before submission to SED.
- g) If reimbursement is denied as a direct result of the failure of the FSMC to comply with the provisions of this contract, the FSMC shall assume responsibility for the amount denied.

### 21) Vending Machines

- a) The FSMC must ensure that all sales generated from these a la carte vending machine sales accrue to the SFA and be deposited into the SFA's food service account and converted into equivalent meals using the set conversion factor established by this contract. The total number of vending machines determined by the SFA to be a part of the Child Nutrition Programs whose sales must be converted to equivalent meals are 7.
- b) The SFA will be responsible for stocking, maintenance, upkeep, and emptying monies from the Child Nutrition a la carte vending machines and must provide a verifiable audit of items sold and revenues received.
- c) Timers may be requested for vending machines at the discretion of the SFA.

### 22) Financial Accounting, Reporting and Auditing

- a) Financial accounting by the FSMC shall be in accordance with USDA and New York State Department of Education rules and regulations and applicable federal and State Laws.
- b) The per meal cost (bid amount) is \$\_\_for breakfast and \$\_\_ for lunch and \$\_\_ for snack.
- c) The FSMC reimbursement shall not exceed the per meal bid price and will be reimbursed only as approved and audited by <u>Asst. Supt. for Business</u> or <u>Treasurer</u> his/her authorized representative.
  - Reimbursement due to FSMC shall equal meals claimed for reimbursement plus equivalent meals multiplied by the per meal bid price.
  - ii) SFA shall designate by title the employee whose responsibility shall be to supervise and audit all financially related to operations of the FSMC. <u>Accountant</u>.
- d) The FSMC's payment shall not exceed contract terms (meals plus equivalent meals multiplied by the bid price), and is limited to the extent of program income.
- e) The SFA shall make payment within 15 days to the FSMC for the direct costs of operation after the submission of a valid claim in accordance with Section C for each week of program operation to the extent of the school cafeteria fund account balance. Normal credit terms will be 15 days from billing date.
- f) The FSMC shall maintain source documentation records (supported by invoices, receipts, or other evidence) as the SFA will need to meet monthly reporting responsibilities and shall submit monthly operating statements in a format approved by the SFA no later than the fifteenth (15th) calendar day succeeding the month in which services were rendered; participation records shall be submitted no later than the fifth (5th) working day succeeding the

month in which services were rendered and reported on a calendar month basis. The SFA shall perform edit checks on the participation records provided by the FSMC prior to the preparation and submission of monthly claims for reimbursement as well as audit food, labor and other large expenses and perform random audits of smaller expenses on a monthly basis.

- g) The FSMC shall provide the SFA with a year-end statement by date determined by the SFA July 15 the SFA shall audit the FSMC's operations as part of its year-end audit. The SFA and FSMC must provide all necessary documents for the independent auditor and/or to conduct the SFA's single audit.
- h) The FSMC must provide all information requested by the SFA, which will allow the SFA to make adjustments to the correct accounting period after the SFA has reconciled FSMC source documentation to effectuate payment. Failure to do so will result in delays in payment to the FSMC. NYSED reserves the right to randomly request SFA and/or FSMC copies of invoices and operating statements to ensure compliance.

### 23) Books/ Records and Record Retention

- a) Books and records of the FSMC pertaining to the school food service operations shall be maintained and made available in accordance with federal and State record retention policies, for a period of three (3) years from the day of the State Agency or the SFA's final allowable payment under the contract has been recorded. The following records must be maintained for the three year period following the recording of the final payment: original bid and contract, basis for contract selection, terms and conditions of the contract, billing and payment records, and history of FSMC's claims and breaches. The three year period shall be extended if there are bid protests, litigation and audits. In these cases, the records must be retained until the completion of the action and resolution of all issues arising from the action or the expiration of the regular three year period, whichever is last.
- b) Books and records of the FSMC pertaining to the CN Program operations shall be made available, immediately upon demand, in an easily accessible manner for audit, examination, excerpts and transcriptions by the SFA and/or any state or federal representatives and/or auditors. Failure to do so in a timely manner will result in potential loss of reimbursements to the SFA and subsequently loss of payment to the FSMC. FSMC must adhere to all Federal, State or Local record retention policies and procedures.
- c) The FSMC shall not remove federal, State or locally required records from the SFA premises upon termination of the contract.

### 24) Insurance

- a) The FSMC shall procure and maintain at its own expense a general liability policy which names the SFA as an additional insured on all required insurance policies, including products liability in the amounts of at least
  - **\$2,000,000** for injury and death, and property damage with a limit of **\$2,000,000** for each accident provided by insurance companies authorized to do business in the State of New York. The certificate of insurance shall provide for notice to the SFA of cancellation of insurance policies sixty (60) days before such cancellation is to take effect.
- b) The FSMC shall be solely responsible and answerable in damages for any and all accidents and/or injuries to persons (including death) or property arising out of or related to the services to be rendered by the FSMC pursuant to this agreement. The FSMC shall indemnify and hold harmless the SFA and its officers and employees from claims, suits, actions, damages and costs of every nature arising out of the provision of services pursuant to this Agreement.
- c) The FSMC shall provide a certificate of insurance for all required policies; the certificate of insurance shall contain: 1) names and addresses of insured; 2) titles and locations of the operations to which the insurance applies; 3) number of the policy and type or types of insurance in force thereunder on the date of the certificate,;4) expiration date of the policy and the type and types of insurance in force thereunder on the date of the certificate; 5) statement that the insurance of the type afforded by the policy applies to all of the operations and activities on and at the site of the project or incidental thereto, which are undertaken by the FSMC during the performance of the contract.
- d) The FSMC shall provide fire and theft insurance at its own expense to cover any risk created by fire and/or theft to its property located on the premises of the SFA. The FSMC further agrees to provide all necessary fire and/or theft insurance to cover clothes, garments and other articles owned by their employees.

### 25) Performance Security

- a) The FSMC shall provide the security form, as authorized, prior to the commencement of food service operations.

  The performance security shall be in a form acceptable to the SFA, and shall be in the amount of <u>\$</u>. The FSMC shall submit the performance security to the SFA prior to the commencement of program operations.
- b) It is recommended and encouraged that all security options be left open to the bidder. However, the SFA may choose to eliminate one or more options in the bid specifications.

### 26) Contract Term, Termination and Renewals

- a) This contract shall become effective on 7/1/2018 and terminate on 6/30/2019.
- b) This contract may be extended by the SFA and the FSMC under the rules and regulations prescribed by the Commissioner of Education; however, pursuant to federal regulations CFR Part 210.16 (d), the contract between a school food authority and food service management company shall be of a duration of no longer than (1) one year; with the option to renew/extend annually with a maximum of (4) four years. Such renewals/extensions shall be executed prior to termination of the preceding contract period and shall not extend the original contract period beyond five years.
- c) If the FSMC violates or breaches the terms of and conditions of this Contract, the SFA shall give the FSMC written notice and an opportunity to cure the violation/breach. Should the FSMC fail to make reasonable progress to affect such cure, or correct the violation/breach, the SFA may assess the following penalties against the FSMC:

First written notification of violation/breach. Correction or reasonable progress to effect such cure must be made within five (5) operating days. Failure to comply will result in penalty of \$500 per day per school involved.

Second written notification for the same violation/breach. Corrective or reasonable progress to effect such cure must be made within five (5) operating days.

Failure to comply will result in penalty of \$750 per day per school involved.

Third written notification for the same violation/breach. Correction or reasonable progress to effect such cure must be made within five (5) operating days.

Failure to comply will result in penalty of \$1000 per day per school involved.

Failure to comply with these notices will be considered cause for termination of the contract in accordance with the sixty (60) day termination clause below.

- d) The SFA or the FSMC may terminate the contract, for cause, by giving sixty (60) days written notice, except: If the FSMC makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or if a receiver is appointed on account of bidders insolvency. If anticipated revenues or commodity assistance from federal and State reimbursements are reduced and the FSMC submits in writing a proposal of recommended changes necessary to maintain program solvency yet the SFA repeatedly refuses or fails to take appropriate action to maintain program solvency within thirty (30) days of receipt of said notice, the FSMC may, without prejudice and within seven (7) days written notice, terminate the contract.
- e) The SFA or FSMC may terminate the contract, for convenience, by giving sixty (60) days advance written notice to the other party. Such notice shall set forth with sufficient specificity such party's reasons for contemplating termination. A FSMC facilitating the termination for convenience clause must provide adequate advance notice, to the SFA that would permit the SFA sufficient time to arrange alternate food service.
- f) Neither the FSMC nor the SFA shall be responsible for any losses resulting if the fulfillment of the terms of the contract shall be delayed or prevented by wars, acts of public enemies, strikes, fires, floods, acts of God, or for any acts not within the control of either the FSMC or the SFA, respectively, and which by the exercise of due diligence it is unable to prevent.
- g) Contract Cost Adjustment: The SFA may negotiate at the end of each one year contract period for a cost increase not to exceed the annual percentage increase of the New York - Northeastern New Jersey Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers for the preceding year, provided it has been satisfactorily established by the FSMC that there has been at least an equivalent increase in the amount of its cost of operation during the period of the contract.

#### 27) General

a) This contract shall be construed under the laws of the State of New York. Any action or proceeding arising out of this contract shall be brought in the appropriate courts of the State of New York.

- b) The SFA shall neither solicit or accept gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value from contractors or potential contractors. To the extent permissible under State Law, rules and/or regulations, violations of these standards shall be subject to appropriate penalties, sanctions and/or other disciplinary actions.
- c) The FSMC shall comply with the provisions of the bid specifications and hereby in all respects made a part of this contract.
- d) The FSMC may not subcontract out services without the express prior approval, written authorization and consent of the SFA and governing board of the SFA.
- e) The SFA reserves the right to reject any and all items which do not comply with the requirements set forth herein.
- f) This contract constitutes the entire contract between the SFA and the FSMC and may not be changed; terminated or extended orally or by course of conduct.
- g) No waiver of any default shall be construed to be or constitute a waiver of any subsequent default.
- h) Payments on any claim shall not preclude the SFA from making claim for adjustment on any item found not to have been in accordance with the provisions of this contract and bid specifications.
- i) This contract shall not be renegotiated throughout the term of this contract. If renegotiations and/or material changes occur any time during the five year term, rebidding is required. SED reserves the right to deny reimbursement due to a SFA's failure to follow proper bidding procedures.
- j) The complete contract includes all documents by the SFA and all documents submitted by the FSMC that have been mutually agreed upon by both parties; i.e., worksheets, schedules, appendices, etc.
- k) The terms and conditions of this contract are subject to review and approval by the New York State Department of Education, Child Nutrition Program Administration.
- l) It is further agreed between the SFA and the FSMC that the clauses attached hereto and designated as, Required Forms #1 #12, Schedules A H and Appendices A B are hereby in all respects made a part of this contract.
- m) The successful bidder shall enter the SFA FOOD SERVICE MANAGEMENT COMPANY CONTRACT attached hereto and in all respects made a part of this bid specification. By submitting a bid, the bidder agrees to all the terms and conditions contained herein.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first written above.

Original Signatures and Date of Both Parties Required  (Original Signatures must be in blue ink only)				
Signature President, Board of Education	Authorized Signature of FSMC and Title			
Print Name	Print Name			
Chappaqua Central School District				
Name of School Food Authority	Name of Food Service Management Company			
Date				

<u>Please note:</u> The SFA is not liable for any cost incurred by the bidder prior to the signing of a contract by all parties. Paying the FSMC from Child Nutrition Program funds is prohibited until the contract is signed.

# **Corporate Affidavit**

STATE OF:				<u>-</u>
COUNTY OF:		SS:		
CITY OF:				
On this	day of	, 20	, before me, th _	ne Subscriber, personally came to me known, who
being by me duly of	r sworn, did depose a	nd say that she/he resides	in the town/city	
,	Sta	ate, that she/he is the		of
said corporation	and that she/he signe	ed her/his name thereto by		
		Corporate Official	Name:	
		Corporate Official	Signature:	(Blue Ink Only)
		Affix Corporate Se	al Here:	
		(Date)		

**AFFIX NOTARY PUBLIC SEAL HERE** 

### **Bidding Requirements/ Specifications Section**

### 1. Bid Purpose

- a. The purpose of this solicitation is to provide for the successful operation of a nutritious, quality food service program and to create a level playing for all potential bidders. The FSMC will assume responsibility for the efficient management of the SFA's food service program including purchasing, receiving, storing, setting up cafeteria lines, counter service, dining room service, clean-up, sanitation, training, hiring and supervising personnel, and presenting food in a way to create optimum student participation. The responsibility will include the proper use of federally donated commodities.
- b. The Bidder under these specifications will be referred to as the Food Service Management Company (FSMC) and the contract will be between the FSMC and the School Food Authority (SFA). Please refer to Appendix A for standard definitions and Appendix B for standard clauses referenced in the NYSED Prototype Bid Specifications.
- c. The FSMC, as the independent contractor, shall have the exclusive right to operate the SFA's Child Nutrition meal service operations that the SFA is currently participating in, as indicated below:

☑ National School Lunch Program (NSLP)	□ School Breakfast Program (SBP)
☐ Special Milk Program (SMP)	☐ Summer Food Service Program (SFSP)
☐ Afterschool Snack Program (Snack)	☐ Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program
Please specify below if you anticipate entering any participating in during the course of this contract the	· ·

It is important to note that this is a multiple year contract; therefore specifications should be prepared with that in mind. However, if you decide not to include these programs as a part of this contact term at this time, please note that any future inclusion of additional programs or termination of existing programs during the course of this contract or any extension resulting in an increase or decrease to costs of the contract that would have caused contract bidders to bid differently or impact procurement thresholds will be considered material changes requiring the contract to be rebid.

All costs resulting from contracts that do not meet the requirements of 7CFR part 210.16 are unallowable nonprofit school food service account expenses. When the SFA fails to incorporate SED required changes to contract documents, all costs resulting from the subsequent contract award are unallowable charges to the nonprofit school food service account.

### 2. <u>Bid Specification Development</u>

- a. A potential and/or incumbent FSMC can help a SFA develop bid specifications, but, if they do so, they cannot submit a bid.
- b. A consultant can be hired to assist in the development of bid specifications, but SED holds the SFA responsible for the proper submission of contract documents.

### 3. Advertisement of Bids

- a. Advertisements shall contain the time and place where bid will be received and publicly opened and read. At least 5 days shall elapse between the first publication of advertisement and the date for opening and reading bids. For example, bids advertised on the first of the month, may be opened on the 6th. SED recommends two weeks for advertising and the bid opening.
- b. The vendor conference and walk thru must be scheduled after the bid has been advertised and the bid specifications are ready for distribution.

### 4. <u>Submission</u> of Bids

- a. Bids will be received as stated on the cover sheet, for the privilege and right to conduct/operate food service within facilities listed in service locations and times.
- b. Bids shall be submitted on the forms provided by the SFA. Bids may not be faxed or sent by electronic mail. Delivery of bids at the appointed time is the responsibility of the bidder.
- c. Bidders requiring clarification or interpretation of the bidding documents shall make a request to the SFA by: 7/19/2018, which is prior to the date fixed for the opening of bids.

- d. The SFA will not consider any bid received after the exact time specified for receipt.
- e. The SFA must respond to all bidders' questions, whether verbal or in writing, whether the question is asked at a vendor conference or if the question is in writing from a potential bidder. Any answers to questions, clarification, interpretation and/or correction of this document shall be submitted to all prospective bidders by the SFA prior to the opening of bids. All answers to questions must be provided in a uniform method to ensure an equal and level playing field.
- f. Along with their completed bids, bidders will provide evidence demonstrating their ability to administer school food service programs, including, if applicable, a list of any and all SFAs which they have operated during the past three years, along with a summary of those same years indicating that the bidder successfully operated a complex food service program requiring nutritional meals in compliance with the USDA regulations. In lieu of organizational experience, staff expertise must be demonstrated.
- g. It is the understanding of any FSMC submitting a bid that they agree to all terms and conditions of the bid specification.

### 5. Rejection of Bids

- a. The SFA reserves the right to reject any and all bids, if deemed to be in the best interest of the SFA and consult with the school attorney when necessary.
- b. Failure of the SFA to follow proper bidding procedures may also result in the rejection of all bids and be subjected to rebidding by SED.
- c. Any or all zero bids submitted by a potential and/or incumbent bidder is to be rejected and rebidding is required.

### 6. Bid Protests

a. Any action which diminishes open and free competition seriously undermines the integrity of the procurement process and may subject the SFA to bid protests. SFAs are responsible for properly responding to protests and concerns raised by potential contractors and must have procedures in place to handle and resolve disputes relating to their procurements and must in all instances disclose all information regarding a protest to SED.

### 7. <u>Bidder's Responsibility</u>

a. The bidder is responsible for personally examining the SFA's participation data, job sites, pricing, food and beverage procurement specifications, menus, serving times, non-nutritious foods, the SFA's local wellness policy and the cost responsibility detail sheet (Schedules D1 & D2) as they relate to the conditions existing at each job site. No pleas of ignorance relating to any data, conditions or requirements that exist or that may be encountered under this contract will be accepted as a result of failure or omission on the part of the FSMC to fulfill in every respect all the requirements, nor will the same be accepted as a basis for any claim whatsoever for extra charges for food services.

### 8. SFA's Prior Year's Participation and Meal Pricing Information

### a. Lunch

i. Participation in the National School Lunch Program for the Sep-17 to Jun-18 school year.\*

	Sellin	g Price	Avera	ation	Total	
<u>School</u>	Student	Adult	Free	Reduced	Paid	Adults/ Faculty
Douglas G. Grafflin Elementary	\$ 2.50	\$_3.50	17	0	193	85
Roaring Brook Elementary	\$ 2.50	\$ 3.50	9	2	145	84
Westorchard Elementary	\$ 2.50	\$_3.50	5	0	144	86
Robert E. Bell Middle	\$ 3.00	\$ 3.50	9	1	166	109
Seven Bridges Middle	\$ 3.00	\$_3.50	7	1	203	102
	<u> </u>	\$		_	_	
	\$	\$		_		_
	\$	\$				
	<u> </u>	\$				
	. \$	\$			···	_
	<u> </u>	\$				_
	. \$	\$				_
	. \$	\$	_		······	_
	. \$	\$				
	<u> </u>	\$	<u>—</u>		_	
	<u> </u>	\$		_	_	****
	<u> </u>	\$	_	_		_
7	<u> </u>	\$				_
	. \$	\$	_			
	. \$	\$				
	. \$	\$ <u>_</u>				_

### b. Breakfast

i. Participation in the School Breakfast Program for the Sep-17 to Jun-18 school year.\*

	Sellin	Selling Price		Average Daily Participation		
<u>School</u>	Student	Adult	Free	Reduced	Paid	Adults/ Faculty
Robert E. Bell Middle	\$ 2.00	\$_2.50	0.	0	0	109
Seven Bridges Middle	\$_2.00	\$_2.50	1	0	9	102
	\$	<u> </u>				_
	\$	<u> </u>				
	\$	\$				
	\$	\$				
	\$	\$			<u> </u>	_
	\$ <u></u>	\$		_		
<u> </u>	<u> </u>	\$				
	\$ <u></u>	\$	_		_	_

c. Pricing Information (Continued)

- i. A la Carte Sales to students and adults for the Sep-17 to Mar-18 school year.\* **TOTAL:** \$1,010,752.15.
- ii. Sales in the Special Milk Program for the <u>Select Month/Year</u> to <u>Select Month/Year</u> school year.\*
- iii. Child Nutrition revenues (sales of meals and reimbursement received for breakfast, lunch, snacks and milk) for the Sep-17 to Mar-18 school year.\* **TOTAL:** \$374,579.30

If the entire school year's data was not used, please provide an explanation below.

School year not yet completed.

TOTAL: \$ \_

### 9. Prices

a. The prices to be charged for the 2018 - 2019 (upcoming) school year are as follows:

### **Insert Student and Adult Meal Prices Below:**

<u>School</u>	Student Lunch	*Adult Lunch	Student Breakfast	Adult Breakfast	Student Milk	Adult Milk
Douglas G. Grafflin Elementary	\$ 2.50	\$ 3.50	\$	\$	\$60	\$60
Roaring Brook Elementary	\$ 2.50	\$ 3.50	\$	\$_	\$60	\$60
Westorchard Elementary	\$ 2.50	\$_3.50	\$	\$_	\$60	\$60
Robert E. Bell Middle	\$ 3.00	\$_3.50	\$_2.00	\$_	\$60	\$60
Seven Bridges Middle	\$_3.00	\$_3.50	\$_2.00	\$	\$60	\$60
Horace Greeley High (A La Carte)	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$60	\$60
g-11-, 11-11-11-11-11-11-11-11-11-11-11-11-11-	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
	<u> </u>	\$	<u>\$</u>	\$	\$	\$
	\$	\$	\$	\$	<u> </u>	<u> </u>
	\$	\$	\$	\$	<u>\$</u>	\$
***************************************	\$	<u> </u>	<u>    \$                                </u>	\$	\$	\$
	<u> </u>	\$	<u> </u>	\$	\$	\$
	\$	\$	<u> </u>	\$	\$_	<u> </u>
	\$	\$	<u> </u>	\$	\$	<u> </u>
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	<u> </u>
V	\$	<u> </u>	\$	\$	\$_	\$
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$_	\$
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$_	\$
······································	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
	<u> </u>	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$

<sup>\*</sup>The price of an adult lunch should be based on the over 60% reimbursement rate for free lunch, plus the USDA Foods entitlement rate for the current school year, plus sales tax. These prices may be changed only after approval by the Board of Education of the SFA. The FSMC shall be notified of such approval thirty (30) days before new prices are effective.

b. The prices to be charge for a la carte for the 2018 - 2019 (upcoming) school year are as follows:

A La Carte Item	A La Carte Student Price	A La Carte Adult Price *
See Following 4 pages for A La Carte Price List	<u> </u>	\$
for 2018-19	\$	\$
	\$	\$
	<u> </u>	\$
	\$	\$
	\$	\$
		\$
	\$	\$
	\$	\$
****	\$	<u> </u>
		\$
	\$	\$
	\$	\$
	\$	<b>\$</b>
	\$	<b>\$</b>
	\$	\$
		\$
	\$	\$
	\$	\$
		\$
	_	\$
		\$

<sup>\*</sup> Please note a la carte adult prices are for the same portion size as students. If adults are served a larger portion, the a la carte price should be increased accordingly. All adult a la carte prices must include sales tax and be charged accordingly.

### 10. <u>Meal Service Locations and Times</u>

Breakfast, lunch, milk and snack food will be provided in accordance with the terms and conditions of the food service specifications at the following locations:

Building Name	Lunch	Times of Service	Breakf ast	Times of Service	Snack	Times of Service	Adult and a la Carte Service	Special Milk Program	Split Session Kindergarten SMP
Sample School	Yes	11:30a – 1:00p	Yes	7:30a – 8:00a	Yes	3:15p 4:00p	Yes	No	No
Horace 🗼	Yes	9:30a- 🖵	Yes	7:30a- 8:00a	No		Yes	No	No
Seven Bridges MS	Yes	10:1 <u>-</u> 5a-1: <u>-</u>	Yes	8:00a- 8:30a	No		Yes	No	No

## **Elementary Schools**

### SY 18-19 Selling Price

r	 g : 1.00
Juice 4 oz	\$ 0.50
Milk 8 oz	\$ 0.60
Cream Cheese	\$ 0.50
Bagel	\$ 1.00
Hard Roll	\$ 1.00
Bottled water 8 oz	\$ 0.85
Bottled water 16 oz	\$ 1.25
Fresh Veggies and fat free dip	\$ 1.25
Fruit salad 12 oz cup	\$ 1.50
Fresh fruit	\$ 0.50
Frozen Fruit Bar	\$ 1.50
Chloe Fruit Bar	\$ 2.00
Yogurt Parfait	\$ 2.25
Smoothie	\$ 2.50
Baked chips and pretzels bags	\$ 1.00
Cereal Bowl	\$ 1.00
6 oz stony field yogurt	\$ 1.50
Natural snacks (pirates bootie, stacys)	\$ 1.50
Second entrée	\$ 2.00
Soup - small 8 oz	\$ 1.25
Soup - large 16 oz	\$ 2.00
Packaged cookies	\$ 1.00
A la carte Entrée	\$ 2.50

SY 18-19 Selling Price

prist 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1	Jeii	ing File
Juice 4 oz	\$	0.50
Milk 8 oz	\$	0.60
Cream Cheese	\$	0.50
Bagel	\$	1.00
Bagel and Cream cheese	\$	1.50
Hard Roll	\$	1.00
Homemade Muffin	\$	2.00
Bottled water 8 oz	\$	0.85
Bottled water 16 oz	\$	1.25
IZZE	\$	1.50
16 oz sparkling water	\$	1.75
12 oz Tropicana pure premium	\$	1.75
Fresh Veggies and fat free dip	\$	1.25
Fruit salad 9 oz cup	\$\$	1.75
Fresh fruit	\$	0.50
Frozen fruit bar	\$	1.50
Chloe Fruit Bar	\$	2.00
Baked chips and pretzels bags	\$	1.00
Yogurt Smoothies (freshly made)	\$	2.50
Greek Yogurt	\$	2.00
Yogurt Parfait	\$	3.00
Smoothie	\$	2.50
Medium hot pretzel	\$	1.50
Humus and crackers (Sabra)	\$	2.75
Cereal Bowl	\$	1.00
6 oz stony field yogurt	\$	1.50
Made to order Deli sandwich	\$	3.50
Made to order Deli Special (B&E Chicken)	\$	4.00
Pre made Sandwich	\$	3.25
Double meat on sandwich	\$	2.00
Natural and organic snack offerings	\$	1.50
Kashi cereal bowl	\$	2.00
Decafe / herbal tea	\$	1.00
Hot chocolate made with milk	\$	2.00
Cookies 2oz (all natural; once a week)	\$	1.50
Soup - small 8 oz	\$	1.25
Soup - large 16 oz	\$	2.00
Packaged cookies	\$	1.50
A la carte Entrée	\$	2.75

	Seil	ing Price
Juice 4 oz	\$	0.50
Milk 8 oz	\$	0.60
Cream Cheese	\$	0.50
Bagel	\$	1.00
Bagel and Cream cheese	\$	1.50
Breakfast Sandwich Special	\$	3.00
Belgium Waffle	\$	3.00
Homemade Muffin	\$	2.00
Bottled water 16 oz	\$	1.25
IZZE	\$	1.50
16 oz sparkling water	\$	1.75
12 oz Tropicana pure premium	\$	1.75
Fresh fruit	\$	0.50
Frozen fruit bar	\$	1.50
Chloe Bar	\$	2.00
Medium hot pretzel	\$	1.50
6 oz stony field yogurt	\$	1.50
Greek Yogurt	\$	2.00
Yogurt Parfait		3.25
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	\$	
Natural and Specialty snack offerings	\$	1.50 1.25
Assorted Chips/Snacks & Pretzels	\$	
Sushi	\$	6.00
Humus and crackers (Sabra)	\$	3.00
Guacamole & Chips (new)	\$	3.00
Fruit with Cheese Cubes	\$	3.00
Fruit & Veg Cup	\$	2.00
Made to order Deli sandwich	\$	4.25
Made to order Deli Special (B&E Chicken)	\$	4.25
Pre made Sandwich	\$	3.25
Pre made Salad	\$	3.25
Double meat on sandwich	\$	2.00
Made to order Panni	\$	4.00
Hamburger/Cheeseburger	\$	2.75
Hamburger/Cheeseburger w/ a side	\$	3.25
Grill Special	\$	4.00
Pizza Slice	\$	2.75
Pizza Slice with Toppings	\$	3.25
Calzone	\$	3.50
Cookies 2oz	\$	1.50
Salad Bar	\$	4.25
French Fries	\$	1.50
Soup - large 16 oz	\$	2.00
Packaged cookies	\$	1.50
	<del></del>	
l		

COFFEE KIOSK HOT BEVERAGES SY 18-19 Selling Price

HOT BEVERAGES	Selling Price			
Coffee				
8 oz	\$	1.50		
12 oz	\$	1.80		
Latte				
8 oz	\$	2.40		
12 oz	\$	2.70		
Flavored Latte				
Carmel Macchiato				
	\$	2.60		
8 oz 12 oz	S	2.90		
Mocha Coffee				
8 oz	\$	2.70		
12 oz	\$	3.00		
Hot chocolate				
	\$	2.00		
8 oz 12 oz	\$	2.50		
Tea				
8 oz	\$	1.70		
12 oz	\$	1.70		
Chai Tea Latte	*** **** * ********** ***			
8 oz	\$	2.50		
12 oz	\$ \$	2.75		
COLD BEVERAGES All 12 oz	· — <del></del>			
Iced Coffee	\$	1.80		
Iced Latte	\$	2.50		
Iced Flavored Latte	\$	2.75		
Iced Tea	\$	1.50		
Iced Chai Tea	\$ \$ \$ \$	3.00		
Iced Mocha Coffee	Š	3.00		
Smoothies (assorted Flavors)	\$	3.25		
omounos (dooditod i lavolo)	Ψ	0.20		

Robert E. Bell MS	Yes	10:15a <u>-</u>	Yes	8:00a -8:30a	No	 Yes	No	No
Grafflin Elementary	Yes	11:20a -1:00p	No		No	 Yes	No	No
Roaring Brook Elementary	Yes	11:35a -1:35p	No		No	 Yes	No	No
Westorchard Elementary	Yes		No		No	Yes	No	No
	Y/N		Y/N		Y/N	 Y/N	Y/N	Y/N
	Y/N		Y/N		Y/N	 Y/N	Y/N	Y/N
	Y/N		Y/N		Y/N	 Y/N	Y/N	Y/N
	Y/N		Y/N		Y/N	 Y/N	Y/N	Y/N

### 11. Non-Nutritious Foods

### The following items shall not be sold or dispensed:

All non-nutritious foods as regulated by USDA and NYSED.
All non-nutritious foods as specified in the SFA's Local Wellness Policy.

### 12. Menu Cycle/ Meal Plan

- a. The 21-day cycle menu, see Schedule A attachments, must be used as a standard for the purpose of basing bids or estimating average cost per meal. The FSMC must adhere to the cycle for the first 21 days of meal service. Menu standards as presented in the 21-day cycle menu must be maintained as to type and quality of meal service.
- b. The 21-day cycle menu should contain all the food items the SFA wants the FSMC to provide to the SFA's students. If the SFA wants students to have a number of choices of hot entrees and/or cold entrees daily, the menu included in this bid specification should reflect those choices along with the description of the food item outlined in the Product Specifications in Schedule B. In addition, the menu and procurement standards must include the requirements of the SFA's wellness policy. For example, the wellness policy

should exclude items containing high sodium to meet compliance with the Implementation Timeline of sodium target 1 and the Product Specifications in Schedule B should specify items with low sodium in them. It is important for SFAs to keep in mind that now is the time to coordinate menus and Product Specifications/Procurement Specifications to meet requirements of the SFA's wellness policy.

# Final Rule Nutrition Standards in the National School Lunch and Breakfast Programs (School Year 2018-2019)

<u>Meals must comply with the 2010 Dietary Guidelines for Americans.</u> To accomplish this, the following food based menu plan standards and timeline must be adhered to by all parties:

	Breakfast Meal Pattern		Lunch Meal Pattern			
	Grades K-5a	Grades 6-8a	Grades 9-12o	Grades K-5	Grades 6-8	Grades 9-12
Meal Pattern	Amount of Food, Per Week (Minimum Per Day)					
Fruits (cups)ь,c	5 (1) e	5 (1) e	5 (1) e	21/2 (1/2)	2½ (½)	5 (1)
Vegetables (cups) <sub>b,c</sub>	0	0	0	3¾ (¾)	3¾ (¾)	5 (1)
Dark green d	0	0	0	1/2	1/2	1/2
Red/Orange d	0	0	0	3/4	3∕4	1¼
Beans/Peas (Legumes) a	0	0	0	1/2	1/2	1/2
Starchyd	0	0	0	1/2	1/2	1/2
Other d,e	0	0	0	1/2	1/2	3/4
Additional Veg to Reach Total f	0	0	0	1	1	1%
Grains (oz eq)₂	7 (1)	8 (1)	9 (1)	8 (1)	8 (1)	10 (2)
Meats/Meat Alternates (oz eq)	0 h	Oh	Oh	8 (1)	9 (1)	10 (2)
Fluid milk (cups):	5 (1)	5 (1)	5 (1)	5 (1)	5 (1)	5 (1)
Other Specifications: Daily A	Amount Based o	on the Average	e for a 5-Day W	eek 550-650	600-700	750-850
	330-300	400-550	430-000	330-030	300-700	7 30-030
Saturated fat k (% of total calories)	< 10	< 10	< 10	< 10	< 10	< 10
Sodium (mg) k	< 540	< 600	< 640	< 1230	< 1360	< 1420
Trans fat x	Nutrition lab	el or manufactu	rer specification:	s must indicate	zero grams of tra	ns fat per servi

- a. Food items included in each food group and subgroup and amount equivalents. Minimum creditable serving is 1/2 cup.
- b. One quarter-cup of dried fruit counts as ½ cup of fruit; 1 cup of leafy greens counts as ½ cup of vegetables. No more than half of the fruit or vegetable offerings may be in the form of juice. All juice must be 100% full-strength.
- c. For breakfast, vegetables may be substituted for fruits, but the first two cups per week of any such substitution must be from the dark green, red/ orange, beans and peas (legumes) or "Other vegetables" subgroups as defined in §210.10(c)(2)(iii).
- d. Larger amounts of these vegetables may be served.
- e. This category consists of "Other vegetables" as defined in §210.10(c)(2)(iii)(E). For the purposes of the NSLP, "Other vegetables" requirement may be met with any additional amounts from the dark green, red/orange, and beans/peas (legumes) vegetable subgroups as defined in §210.10(c) (2)(iii).
- f. Any vegetable subgroup may be offered to meet the total weekly vegetable requirement.
- g. All grains must be whole grain-rich in both the NSLP and the SBP beginning July 1, 2014.
- h. There is no separate meat/meat alternate component in the SBP. Schools may substitute 1 oz. eq. of meat/meat alternate for 1 oz. eq. of grains after the minimum daily grains requirement is met.
- i. Fluid milk must be low-fat (1 percent milk fat or less, unflavored) or fat-free (unflavored or flavored).
- j. The average daily amount of calories for a 5-day school week must be within the range (at least the minimum and no more than the maximum values).
- k. Discretionary sources of calories (solid fats and added sugars) may be added to the meal pattern if within the specifications for calories, saturated fat, trans fat, and sodium. Foods of minimal nutritional value and fluid milk with fat content greater than 1 percent milk fat are not allowed.

# Implementation Timeline

<u>Meals must comply with the 2010 Dietary Guidelines for Americans.</u> To accomplish this, the following food based menu plan standards and timeline must be adhered to by all parties:

	Implementation (School Year) for NSLP (L) and SBP (B)						
New Requirements	2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2022/23
Fruits Component							
Offer fruit daily	L						
Fruit quantity increase to 5 cups/week (minimum 1 cup/day)			В				
Vegetables Component							
Offer vegetables subgroups weekly	L						
Grains Component							
· Half of grains must be whole grain-rich	LB						
' All grains must be whole-grain rich			L, B			-	
· Offer weekly grains ranges	L B						
Bilanta/Bilanta Altanuaria Canana	•		,			•	
Meats/Meat Alternates Component  Offer weekly meats/meat alternates ranges			ı			1	1
(daily min.)	L				ļ		
Milk Component							
Offer only fat-free (unflavored or flavored	L, B						
and low-fat (unflavored milk	L, 0						
Dietary Specifications (to be met on averag	e over a we	ek)					
· Calorie ranges	Ŀ	В					
Saturated fat limit (no change)	L, B						
Sodium Targets							
O Target 1 O Target 2			L, B			L, B	
• Final target							L, B
· Zero grams of <u>trans</u> fat per portion	L	В					
Menu Planning							
A single FBMP approach	L	В					
Age-Grade Groups			1				
• Establish age/grade groups: K-5, 6-8, 9-12	L	В	T				<u> </u>
	-						<u> </u>
Offer vs. Serve		· · · · · ·				Г	
<ul> <li>Reimbursable meals must contain a fruit or vegetable (1/2 cup minimum)</li> </ul>	L		В				
		<u> </u>				I	<u> </u>
Monitoring		, <u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>		······································			· ·
· 3-year administrative review cycle		L, B					
* Conduct weighted nutrient analysis on 1 week of menus	LB						

### 13. Purchase Specifications

- a. Food and beverage procurement specifications are to be developed by the SFA based on individual SFA preferences and requirements and included in Schedule B. A nutrient fact label from the manufacturer must be available for processed brand name products.
- b. Section 104 (d) of the William F. Goodling Child Nutrition Reauthorization Act of 1998 requires schools and institutions participating in the National School Lunch Program (NSLP) and School Breakfast Program (SBP) to purchase domestic commodities or products for use in meals served under the NSLP and SBP. The legislation defines "domestic commodity or product" as one that is produced in the United States and is processed in the United States substantially using agricultural commodities that are produced in the United States. "Substantially" means that over 51 percent of the final processed product consists of agricultural commodities that were grown domestically. These provisions now apply to all funds in the food service account and not just to federal reimbursement.
- c. Wherever possible, and within the guidelines stated in the previous paragraph, the FSMC shall purchase foods which are labeled with a CN label by the manufacturer. In all other cases, procurement standards must be clear and include the following information: grades, purchase units, style, condition, weight, ingredients, formations and delivery times which the SFA should check to determine if procurement standards are being met and shall be complied with by the FSMC; if a brand name is being specified, the SFA must also include "or equal value" to allow potential bidders to comply with the SFA's bid specifications.
- d. Section 204 of the Child Nutrition and Women, Infants and Children Reauthorization Act of 2004 (PL 108-265) signed into law June 30, 2004 included a provision that requires each local educational agency (LEA) participating in the National School Lunch Program, School Breakfast Program, Special Milk Program and Summer Food Service Program to establish a Local Wellness Policy for schools under the LEA. The nutrition guidelines selected by the SFA for all foods available on each school campus under the SFA during the school day with the objectives of promoting student health and reducing childhood obesity must be implemented by the FSMC. The Local Wellness Policy is to be included as a part of the bid package in Schedule C. A la carte items are also to meet the SFA's standards indicated in Schedules A, B and C.

### 14. Performance Security

- a. It is recommended and encouraged that all performance security options be left open to the bidder. However, the SFA may select one, two or three of the options as indicated below:
- b. The FSMC shall be required to:

# □ 1. Performance Bond — Submit with the bid an assurance by a surety authorized to conduct business within New York State, that if selected as the successful bidder, and upon award of the contract, a performance bond will be issued in the amount of \$\_\_ (10% of annual projected operating costs). Simultaneously with delivery of the executed contract, the successful vendor must provide to the SFA the executed surety company bond as required, to be held as security

by the SFA for the faithful performance by FSMC of all terms of the contract. If selected, attach a copy of the Performance Bond on Required Form 10.

### ☐ 2. Reserve Fund –

Submit with the bid an authorization for the SFA to hold in a reserve fund the amount of \$

\_\_ (10% of annual projected operating costs) out of the initial revenues produced by the school lunch program and earned by the management company. The SFA shall retain such reserve fund until the FSMC has faithfully performed all terms of the contract. If selected, attach a copy of the Authorization on Required Form 10.

### 3. Certified Check –

Submit with the bid a letter of intent which states that a certified check, payable to the SFA in the amount of \$\_\_ (10% of annual projected operating costs) will be issued upon award of the bid. Simultaneously, with delivery of the executed contract, the successful bidder must provide to the SFA, the certified check as required, to be held as security by the SFA for the faithful performance by the FSMC of all terms of the contract.

### 15. <u>Bid Options</u>

a. The SFA has determined that the following bid option will be accepted: (Chec
---

⊠ Bid Option 1 –	The SFA will use this bid option for receiving the same bid price for breakfast and lunch meals.
☐ Bid Option 2 –	The SFA will require separate bids for the following programs (check all that apply):
	☐ Breakfast ☐ Lunch ☐ Snack

- b. The FSMC's cost reimbursement shall not exceed the contract terms (meals plus equivalent meals served multiplied by the Per Meal Cost Reimbursement Rate):
  - i. Limited to the extent of program income.

### 16. Bid Forms

- a. The SFA must cross out the options that are not relevant on the applicable bid form and fill in the blank amount(s) where applicable.
- b. Each bidder must complete the applicable bid form and the applicable annual financial budget projection exhibit(s) based on the SFA's bid option selection.
- c. The bid amount should take into account the value of USDA Foods.

2018-2019 NYSED FSMC Type 2 Contract

# 2018-2019 Bid Form (Option 1)

(The FSMC bidding on this option must also complete the annual financial budget projection on Exhibit 1)

The contract will be awarded based on the lowest responsible bid proposal for a per meal cost for breakfast and lunch, as defined herein. The FSMC will bill the SFA based on the individual per meal amounts.

To Be Completed by the FSMC

Per meal cost rate		=	
*Transfer this amount to either Option A, B or C selected by the SFA below.			(Per Meal)
We, the undersigned agree to operate the food service mana 2018 - 2019 school year. This proposal is subject to all the attached agreement subsequently agree to enter into the attached agreement subsequently.	tached definitions, terms, conditions a	-	
To be Completed by SFA – (Cross out the		also	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
fill in blank amou	nt where applicable)		
☑ Option A - Guaranteed Return to SFA  TOTAL PER MEAL COST for the operation of the program wherein SFA of * \$ 10,000 will accrue from program income including all pattern lunches, a la carte items, special milk program, adult meal federal and State reimbursements. Any deficit will be assumed by	cash receipts from the sale of meal s, breakfast program, snacks and	(To	d Total Bid Amount be completed by IC based on option elected by SFA)
TOTAL PER MEAL COST for the operation of the program wherein program income including all cash receipts from the sale of meal program income including all cash receipts from the sale of meal program income including all cash receipts from the sale of meal program income including all cash receipts from the sale of meal program, and any deficit will be assumed by the FSMC.	pattern lunches, a la carte items,		
☐ Option C - General Fund Subsidy	The state of the s		
TOTAL PER MEAL COST for the operation of the program requiring to cover the operating costs which exceed cash receipts from the carte items, special milk program, adult meals, breakfast program, reimbursements. The SFA shall not be liable from the General Fundaments.	sale of meal pattern lunches, a la snacks and federal and State		.,
*To be completed by the SFA  **The minimum conversion factor to be used to convert a la carte Department establishes the a la carte conversion factor to be used carte sales to students, adults and Child Nutrition vending machine Program. This conversion factor must reflect the most current rate advertisement and must be used at the time of the bid proposal.	I to convert a la carte sales to equivalent m e sales as determined by the SFA to be part	eals, a	which include a la e Child Nutrition
SUBMITTED BY: (Original Signature Required – Blue Ink Only	<u> </u>		

**Authorized** 

Signature:

Date:

Printed Name, Title:

Name of FSMC:

Address:

# Exhibit #1: 2018-2019 Annual Financial Budget Projection

(For use with BID OPTION 1 Breakfast and Lunch with the same bid price)

### TO BE COMPLETED BY THE FSMC

A proposed financial budget must be included with the bid proposal and should contain the following information:

(A)	PROJECTED GROSS RECEIPTS FOR BREAKFAST AND LUNCH	
	1. Cash Sales	
	a. Full Price and Reduced Price Lunch Sales	
	b. Adult and Student a la Carte Sales	
	c. Special Milk Sales	
	d. Full Price and Reduced Price Breakfast Sales	
	2. Federal and State Reimbursements	,
	3. General Fund Subsidy (Where Applicable)	
	4. Total Projected Receipts	
(B)	PROJECTED EXPENSES FOR BREAKFAST AND LUNCH	
	1. Food Costs	
	2. Labor-Salaries/Fringe Benefits	
	3. Miscellaneous (As Defined Herein)	
	4. Management Fee	
	5. Total Projected Expenses	
	6. SFA Guaranteed Return	
	(Item A.4 minus Item B.5) = Guaranteed Return.	
	This amount must equal or exceed the guaranteed return	
	to the SFA as specified by the SFA under bid option A.	
(C)	PROJECTED MEALS FOR BREAKFAST AND LUNCH	
	1. Student Meal Pattern	
	Breakfast	
	Lunch	
	Total	
	2. A La Carte Sales	
	Divided by Conversion Factor**	\$3.70
	Equivalent Meals	
	3. Total Projected Meals	
(D)	PROJECTED MEALS PER LABOR HOUR FOR BREAKFAST AND	LUNCH
	1. Total Projected Meals (Item C.3.) ÷	
	2 Projected meals per labor hour =	

<sup>\*\*</sup> See bid for conversion factor explanation

### 2018-2019 Bid Form (Option 2)

(The FSMC bidding on this option must also complete the annual financial budget projection on Exhibit 2A, 2B, 2C)

The contract will be awarded based on the lowest responsible bid proposal for the combined grand total of breakfast and lunch, which shall reflect a per meal cost for breakfast, lunch and snack, as defined herein. The FSMC will bill the SFA based on the individual per meal amounts.

	oleted by the MC	-	To Be Completed by the SFA		To Be Completed by the FSMC
Program	Total Per Meal	х	SFA Estimate of Meals and Equivalent Meals	=	Total SFA Cost
Breakfast		X		+	
Lunch		×	_	п	
Snack		x	_	1	
			Grand Total*	=/	
*Transfer th	is amount to e	ither	Option A, B or C selected by the SFA below.		

We, the undersigned agree to operate the food service management program as described in the bid specifications for the <u>Select School Year</u> school year. This proposal is subject to all the attached definitions, terms, conditions and specifications and we hereby agree to enter into the attached agreement subsequent to the award of the bid.

To be Completed by SEA - 1Cross out	the option(s) that are not relevant and also	*
	punt where applicable)	
☐ Option A - Guaranteed Return to SFA  TOTAL PER MEAL COST for the operation of the program wherein all	operating costs, incurred by the SFA of	Grand Total Bid Amount (To be completed by FSMC based on option selected by SFA)
* \$will accrue from program income including all cash receipts la carte items, special milk program, adult meals, breakfast program, reimbursements. Any deficit will be assumed by the FSMC.		
Option B - Break Even  TOTAL PER MEAL COST for the operation of the program wherein all income including all cash receipts from the sale of meal pattern lunch program, adult meals, breakfast program, snacks and federal and Sta assumed by the FSMC.	hes, a la carte items, special milk	
☐ Option C - General Fund Subsidy		
TOTAL PER MEAL COST for the operation of the program requiring a cost the operating costs which exceed cash receipts from the sale of meal milk program, adult meals, breakfast program, snacks and federal annot be liable from the General Fund over and above this subsidy.	pattern lunches, a la carte items, special	
*To be completed by the SFA  **The minimum conversion factor to be used to convert a la carte sa establishes the a la carte conversion factor to be used to convert a la adults and Child Nutrition vending machine sales as determined by th must reflect the most current rate issued by the NYS Education Depa the bid proposal.	carte sales to equivalent meals which include a la ne SFA to be part of the Child Nutrition Program. The	carte sales to students, nis conversion factor
	<u></u>	<u> </u>
SUBMITTED BY: (Original Signature Required – Blue Ink Only)		. \
Name of FSMC:	Authorized Signature:	
Address:	Printed Name, Title:	
	Date:	\

# Exhibit #2A: 2018-2019 Annual Financial Budget Projection

(For use with BID OPTION	12 – Lunch Bid)
TO BE COMPLETED BY	THE FSMC
posed financial budget must be included with the bid proposa	l and should contain the following information:
PROJECTED GROSS RECEIPTS FOR LUNCH	
1. Cash Sales	
a. Full Price and Reduced Price Lunch Sales	
b. Adult and Student a la Carte Sales	
c. Special Milk Sales	
2. Federal and State Reimoursements	
3. General Fund Subsidy (Where Applicable)	
4. Total Projected Receipts	
PROJECTED EXPENSES FOR <u>LUNCH</u>	
1. Food Costs	<u> </u>
2. Labor-Salaries/Fringe Benefits	
3. Miscellaneous (As Defined Herein)	
4. Management Fee	
5. Total Projected Expenses	
6. SFA Guaranteed Return	
(Item A.4 minus Item B.5) = Guaranteed Return.	
This amount added to the figure on B 6 of Schedule C 3	
must equal or exceed the guaranteed return to the SPA	
as specified by the SFA under bid option A.	
	<u> </u>
PROJECTED MEALS FOR <u>LUNCH</u>	
1. Student Meal Pattern Lunch	
2. A La Carte Sales	
Divided by Conversion Factor**	\$3.70
Equivalent Meals	
3. Total Projected Meals	1
	1
PROJECTED MEALS PER LABOR HOUR FOR LUNCH	THE PROPERTY AND ADDRESS AND A
1. Total Projected Meals (Item C.3.) ÷	Total Projected Labor Hours
2. Projected meals per labor hour =	
** See bid for conversion factor explanation	<u>\</u>
	*
	1
/	
	\
	\
	•

# Exhibit #2B: 2018-2019 Annual Financial Budget Projection

ed financial budget must be included with the bid propo	sour and should contain the following information
ROJECTED GROSS RECEIPTS FOR BREAKFAST	
1. Cash Sales	
a. Full Price and Reduced Price Breakfast Sales	
b. Adult and Student a la Carte Sales	
c. Special Milk Sales 2. Federal and State Reimbursements	
3. General Fund Subsidy (Where Applicable)	
4. Total Projected Receipts	
Total Frojected Receipts	
ROJECTED EXPENSES FOR BREAKFAST	
1. Food Costs	
2. Labor-Salaries/Fringe Benefits	
3. Miscellaneous (As Defined Herein)	
4. Management Fee	
5. Total Projected Expenses	
6. SFA Guaranteed Return	
(Item A.4 minus Item B.5) = Guaranteed Return.	
This amount added to the figure on B 6 of Schedule C 3	
must equal or exceed the guaranteed return to the SFA	
as specified by the SFA under bid option A.	
PROJECTED MEALS FOR BREAKFAST	
1. Student Meal Pattern Breakfast	
2. A La Carte Sales	
Divided by Conversion Factor**	\$3.70
Equivalent Meals	
3. Total Projected Meals	
ROJECTED MEALS PER LABOR HOUR FOR BREAKFAST	
1. Total Projected Meals (Item C.3.)	÷ Total Projected Labor Hours
2. Projected meals per labor hour	=
* See bid for conversion factor explanation	

# Exhibit #2C: 2018-2019 Annual Financial Budget Projection

\	(For use with BID OPTION 2 – Snack Bid)		
\	TO BE COMPLETED BY THE FSMC		
A proposed financial budget must be included with the bid proposal and should contain the following information:			
(A)	PROJECTED GROSS RECEIPTS FOR SNACK	f f	
	1. Cash Sales		
	a. Pull Price and Reduced Price Snack Sales		
	b. Adult and Student a la Carte Sales		
	2. Federal Reimbursements	//	
	3. General Fund Subsidy (Where Applicable)		
	4. Total Projected Receipts	J.	
(B)	PROJECTED EXPENSES FOR SNACK		
` .	1. Food Costs		
	2. Labor-Salaries/Fringe Benefits		
	3. Miscellaneous (As Defined Herein)		
	4. Management Fee	1	
	5. Total Projected Expenses		
	6. SFA Guaranteed Return		
	(Item A.4 minus Item B.5) = Guaranteed Return.		
	This amount added to the figure on B 6 of Schedule C 3		
	must equal or exceed the guaranteed return to the SFA		
	as specified by the SFA under bid option A.		
(C)	PROJECTED MEALS FOR <u>SNACK</u>		
	1. Student Meal Pattern Snack		
	2. A La Carte Sales	N.	
	Divided by Conversion Factor**	\$3.70	
	Equivalent Meals		
	3. Total Projected Meals		
(D)	PROJECTED MEALS PER LABOR HOUR FOR SNACK		
	1. Total Projected Meals (Item C.3.)	Total Projected Labor Hours	
	2. Projected meals per labor hour =		
	** See bid for conversion factor explanation		
		<b>\</b>	

### 17. Award of Contract

- a. Award of the contract shall be to the lowest responsible bidder whose responsibility shall be determined by the board.
- b. In preparation for the first day of meal service, the FSMC awarded the contract must submit a detailed written timetable for the transition to their FSMC operations within 15 days of award of the contract. The timetable must include interviewing/hiring staff, training and provisions for providing other services and enhancements as outlined in this agreement and bid specifications.
- c. If the SFA allows bidders to bid under more than one option (A, B or C) on the BID FORM, the SFA will consider bids in the following consecutive order to determine the lowest responsible bidder: from the lowest Option A, then Option B, to the highest Option C.

### **IMPORTANT**

### (1) PREBID DOCUMENTS -

Complete NYSED Prototype Pre-bid Contracts are to be emailed to <a href="mailto:cn@nysed.gov">cn@nysed.gov</a> 30 days prior to letting bids. Schedules A-H must contain complete information and be included in with the prototype pre-bid contract for review by NYSED Child Nutrition Program Administration Office. A pre-review letter will be sent to the SFA once the pre-bid has been reviewed and approved.

### (2) EXECUTED CONTRACTS -

Schedules A-H must contain complete information and be included in with the prototype pre-bid contract for review by NYSED Child Nutrition Program Administration Office.

### Schedule A

### ATTACH MENU(S) AND OTHER RELATED MATERIALS HERE

Attach 21 day menu for breakfast and/or lunch and/or summer as applicable. The menu provided must be
in compliance with the Food Based Meal Pattern and Nutrition Standards outlined on pages 48 and 49 of
this contract. All menus must include the daily recommended portion sizes per serving.

### 7 CFR 210.16(b)(1):

The invitation to bid or request for proposal contains a 21-day cycle menu developed in accordance with the provisions of 7 CFR §210.10, to be used as a standard for the purpose of basing bids or estimating average cost per meal. The food service management company must adhere to the cycle for the first 21 days of meal service.

- II. Attach the following related materials here:
  - a. SFA may attach a menu for each grade level
  - b. Merchandising specifications and Promotional specifications
  - Attach Sample Production Records Refer to <u>www.nysed.gov/cn/cnms.htm</u> for sample production records
  - d. Attach Sample Standardized Recipes Refer to <a href="www.nysed.gov/cn/cnms.htm">www.nysed.gov/cn/cnms.htm</a> for sample standardized recipes
- III. Milk is the only beverage choice in its own category. For example: Milk or juice cannot be a beverage choice. Beverages other than milk may not be substituted for milk as part of the reimbursable meal. Including but not limited to iced tea, lemonade, punch, juice, water, coffee, fruit drinks, etc.
- IV. A School Food Authority with no capability to prepare a 21-day cycle menu may, with State Agency approval, require that each food service management company include a 21-day cycle menu, developed in accordance with the provisions of 7 CFR 210.10, 220.8, and/or 225.16, with its bid proposal. The SFA must attach a plan on how the menu will be evaluated to ensure compliance with the meal pattern for components and quantity, and dietary specifications, affordability, nutrition requirements, and appeal to students.

# Meal Plan Specifications (Updated 4-9-18)

### DAILY OFFERINGS AT A MINIMUM

### **Elementary School Daily Offerings**

The minimum that must be served daily for breakfast:

- At breakfast, there shall be 4 components offered and the students must receive any 3 or 4 components to meet the reimbursable meal criteria.
- One of the 3 components must be a minimum ½ cup creditable portion of fruit.

The minimum that must be served daily for lunch:

- Two Hot Entrée's
- Entrée Salad
  - Entrée salads must contain a minimum of 2 oz of meat/meat alternative
- Soup (November April)
- Fresh Fruit & Vegetable Bar
- · Bagel Meal Offerings
- Two Sandwiches/Wraps
  - Deli sandwiches must contain a minimum of 2 oz of meat/meat alternative
  - Meat varieties (ham, roasted or smoked turkey, sliced chicken, etc.)
     must be rotated throughout the 21-day menu cycle
  - Must offer at least two (2) pre-made deli sandwiches of Boars Head or equivalent daily such as turkey or ham with or without cheese, plain cheese, etc.

### Middle School Daily Offerings

The minimum that must be served daily for breakfast:

- At breakfast, there shall be 4 components offered and the students must receive any 3 or 4 components to meet the reimbursable meal criteria.
- One of the 3 components must be a minimum ½ cup creditable portion of fruit.

The minimum that must be served daily for lunch:

- Main Hot Entrée
- Grill Item
- Pizza (two varieties offered daily)
- Entrée Salad
  - Entrée salads must contain a minimum of 3 oz of meat/meat alternative
- Grab-n-go sandwich or wrap daily
- Soup (November April)
- Fresh Fruit & Vegetable Bar
- Made to order Deli Bar to include on a daily basis:
  - At least five (5) different varieties of deli meat (Black Forest ham, boiled ham, turkey roasted and/or smoked, roast beef, etc.) must be available daily
  - Plus minimum of two (2) additional high quality proteins (such as tuna salad, egg salad, chicken salad)
  - At least three (3) cheeses (not American)
  - Lettuce, tomato, onion
  - Condiments free of high fructose corn syrup
  - Selection of whole grain breads, wraps, rolls and tortillas
  - Deli sandwiches must contain a minimum of 3 oz of meat/meat alternative

### **Portion Sizes**

### Elementary/Middle Schools:

Portions as outlined by the USDA, National School Lunch Program, school lunch pattern group IV as a <u>minimum</u> requirement. The following additional specifications must be followed for meals that qualify for the set lunch price:

- Pizza 14" pie with whole grain-rich crust, made on site, cut into eight (8) slices per pie; serving size = one (1) slice
- Chicken Nuggets two (2) M/MA equivalent, approximately three (3) nuggets depending on weight
- Frankfurters 8:1 serving size = one (1)
- Grilled Cheese one (1) sandwich, containing two (2) ounce or 2 M/MA equivalent
- Deli Sandwiches using Boars Head, or equivalent, cold cuts, made to order, must contain a minimum of two and a half (2.5oz) M/MA
- Hamburgers 3.2 ounces each (5:1lb.); two (2) ounces cooked or 2 M/MA equivalent
- Cheeseburgers 3.2 ounces each (5:1lb.), two (2) ounces cooked, or 2 M/MA equivalent
- plus one (1) ounce of cheese or 1 M/MA equivalent (middle school only)
- Soup made fresh, eight (8) ounce portion (priced accordingly), served with a grain (crackers, roll, bread)

### Middle Schools (additional)

- Deli Sandwiches using Boars Head, or equivalent, cold cuts, made to order, must contain a minimum of (3 oz) or three of meat/meat alternative
- Bell and Evans, or equivalent, Chicken Tenders minimum three (3)
   M/MA equivalent
- Bell and Evans, or equivalent, Chicken Patty minimum three (3) M/MA equivalent

<sup>\*</sup>M/MA = meat/meat alternative

<sup>\*</sup>M/MA = meat/meat alternative

## **High School**

Horace Greeley High School does not participate in the National School Lunch Program.

High-quality meals must be developed with creativity by the Food Service Director (R.D.) and/or Chef according to the likes of the students and in compliance with the Chappaqua Central School District Wellness Policy as well as procurement specs outlined in this bid.

#### DAILY OFFERINGS AT A MINIMUM

## **BREAKFAST**

The following must be offered at a minimum for Breakfast daily:

- Assorted variety of fresh daily bagels
- · Assorted variety of fresh fruit cups
- Assorted fruit yogurt parfaits
- Assorted variety of whole fruit options
- Made-to-order Belgian Waffle with assorted warm fruit options and maple syrup
- · Variety of Hot breakfast sandwiches
  - Egg & cheese sandwiches
  - o Egg, cheese & meat sandwiches
    - Assorted breads/wraps should be utilized for breakfast sandwiches
- Condiments should be available for breakfast items (i.e., cream cheese, jelly, butter, ketchup, hot sauce, etc.)

<sup>\*\*</sup>Every effort should be made to increase and rotate breakfast options

#### LUNCH

The following must be offered at a minimum for <u>Lunch</u> daily:

## **Hot Entrées**

- Three (3) Hot Entrée's should be offered daily
- First hot entrée should include a protein, starch & vegetable
- Second hot entrée should be offered in a vegetarian format with the choice of adding a protein
- Hot entrée's should be developed with current food trends in mind and should make every effort to offer a variety of culturally diverse items (i.e., Italian, Tex/Mex, Asian, Indian, Caribbean/Cajun, BBQ, Fish/Seafood)
- Third hot entrée should be offered at the Grill Station
  - o A variety of three (3) grill items should be offered daily
  - o One (1) grill item must be vegetarian
  - A vegetable must be offered daily with grill item (i.e. garlic herb potato wedges, sweet potatoes, roasted parsnips)
- Condiments should be available at entrée stations to compliment the daily hot entrees

## Made-to-Order Salad Bar

The salad bar must offer the following items at a minimum each day:

- Two types of green leafy lettuce i.e. romaine, mixed greens, spinach, kale, etc. – NO ICEBERG LETTUCE ALLOWED
- · Chopped, grilled or breaded chicken
- Tofu
- Hardboiled Eggs
- All-natural cheeses, shredded, crumbled or cubed
- Legumes variety of individual or mixed beans
- Beets chopped
- Chopped Vegetables, i.e., cucumbers, red peppers, broccoli florets, cherry tomatoes, carrots, olives, etc.
- Seasonal Vegetables/ Farm-to-School vegetables should be utilized as much as possible
- Composed Salads (from scratch) i.e pesto pasta salad, potato salad, coleslaw or quinoa salad)
- · A variety of salad dressings must be offered daily
- Homemade croutons, dinner rolls, tortilla strips, etc.
- Weekly rotation of additional protein should be offered: i.e., flaked tuna, diced turkey, diced ham, etc.

## Made-to-Order Deli Bar

The deli bar must offer the following items at a minimum each day:

Only Boar's Head or equivalent deli meats are to be served

- Sliced Meats turkey, ham, buffalo chicken, roast beef, salami (3.5 oz portions)
- Bell & Evan, or equivalent, Chicken Patties, Grilled Chicken for deli specials
- Sliced Cheeses cheddar, provolone, muenster, pepper jack (NO AMERICAN CHEESE) (2 slices per portion)
- Bacon slices for deli specials (2 slices per portion)
- Lettuce, tomato, onion, cucumber
- Condiments free of high fructose corn syrup
- A variety of fresh daily breads, wraps and rolls (include choices of whole wheat, 7 grain, white, rye)
- Offer vegetarian options such as hummus, eggplant or roasted vegetables, on a rotation
- Weekly deli special must be offered to prevent menu fatigue
- Option to heat sandwiches on panini press

## Pizza

- The pizza station must offer several varieties of pizza daily, plus calzones and Stromboli, as often as possible
- Creative options at the pizza station are expected outside the realm of cheese and pepperoni, such as: roasted vegetable, broccoli, chicken Caesar, buffalo chicken, meatball, etc.

## Soup

 Fresh homemade soup should be available daily from November thru April.

## **Grab-n-Go Items**

- Three (3) different entrée salads (i.e. chicken Caesar, Cobb, Greek)
- Three (3) different sandwiches (i.e. wrap, roll, bread)
- Two (2) flavors of fruit yogurt parfaits (served in 12oz cup)
- Four (4) variety of cut-up fresh fruit cups (served in 9 oz cup) i.e. watermelon, pineapple, cantaloupe, honeydew, grapes, etc
- Variety of whole fruit should be offered at every station
- Combo items cheese & grapes, hummus & veggies, etc
- Double Decker Peanut Butter & Jelly Sandwiches

#### Baked Goods

We require a fresh rotation and/or new "trendy" baked goods to be offered daily, such as:

- A variety of breads should be made available daily and new bread types should be offered as bread food trends change
- All bread should be delivered daily
- Preservatives and other additives must be eliminated whenever possible
- Local bakeries are to be sourced whenever possible and indicated as such on the menu.
- All bagels must be fresh, not pre-packaged.
- Offer fresh-baked muffins daily at breakfast (must meet all other spec requirements)
- Offer fresh-baked cookies at a minimum, once per week (must meet all other spec requirements)
- Offer fresh baked pretzels daily
- Offer a variety of fresh baked goods, such as churros, pizza sticks, etc.

## **High School Kiosk**

- Regular/Decaf fair trade coffee beans Students can ONLY have decaf coffee
- Variety of coffee/tea drinks to be available (10oz)
- Variety of pure fruit smoothies regular and dairy-free (12oz)
- Variety of blended flavored smoothie drinks (12 oz)— (Vanilla, Dark Chocolate, Pumpkin Spice, etc)
- Fat-Free, 1% Milk & Soy Milk available for coffee drink
- Frozen yogurt variety of flavors & toppings available

#### Grab-n-go Items Offered at Kiosk (at a minimum)

- Variety of entrée salads (i.e. chicken Caesar, Cobb, Greek)
- Variety of sandwiches (i.e. wrap, roll, bread)
- Two (2) flavors of fruit yogurt parfaits (served in 12oz cup)
- Four (4) variety of cut-up fresh fruit cups (served in 9oz cup) i.e. watermelon, pineapple, cantaloupe, honeydew, grapes, etc
- Variety of whole fruit should be offered at every station
- Combo items cheese & grapes, hummus & veggies, etc
- Double Decker Peanut Butter & Jelly Sandwiches

<sup>\*</sup>Kiosk should focus on offering a wide variety of grab-n-go items (including beverages, snacks, yogurts). Menu should reflect current trends in grab-n-go food items to keep participation solid.

#### **Portion Sizes**

Horace Greeley High School does not participate in the National School Lunch Program. Therefore, portions for the high school are defined as follows:

Deli/Panini Sandwiches - made to order, four (4) ounce protein portion (can order double meat for an extra charge)

Made to Order Salad: Two (2) cups of greens, four (4) oz. of protein, two (2) cups of vegetables or fruit, and one (1) oz. of dressing

Pizza - 16" pie made on site, cut into eight (8) slices per pie; serving size = one (1) slice

Hamburgers - 5.0 ounces each, four (4) ounces cooked

Cheese Burgers - 1 oz. of cheese and same portion size of hamburger meat

Bell and Evans, or equivalent, Chicken Tenders - 4-5 ounce portion

Soup - made fresh, (12) twelve or (16) sixteen ounce portion (priced accordingly), served with a grain (crackers, roll, bread).

### **Procurement Specifications**

The Chappaqua Central School District is very proud of the quality of food that is used in the school meal program. This quality is a combination of the portions listed above, the brand and standard of products used, and the Wellness Policy that the District adopted. The following lists itemized specific brands/standards that are required for the program. There will be no deviation allowed from these brands/standards, without specific written approval, prior to service.

Deliveries of food or supplies are not permitted prior to 6:00 AM.

## A. In all instances, the following purchase specifications shall be followed:

- 1. All meat and meat products are slaughtered, processed and manufactured in plants operated under a USDA inspection program and bear the appropriate seal. All meat products are sound and sanitary upon delivery.
- 2. Will strive to minimize, and to avoid whenever possible, artificial preservatives, tenderizers or colorizing agents in food products.
- 3. Imported fresh or frozen meat products are prohibited for any purpose.
- 4. All products must be free of MSG, BHT, BHA, sodium nitrite and sugar substitutes. Minimize usage of sulfites, sodium nitrate and potassium bromate. Use of products containing minimum sulfites, sodium nitrate and potassium bromate requires prior approval of a sub-committee of the Wellness Committee designated to make such determinations.
- 5. All products should be free of high fructose corn syrup (HFCS), partially hydrogenated fats, and trans fats. Products containing minimum HFCS may be used only if alternative products free of these ingredients are unavailable or deemed prohibitively expensive. Use of products containing minimum HFCS requires prior approval of a sub-committee of the Wellness Committee designated to make such determinations.
- 6. Composting/Recycling: The Food Service Management Company shall adhere to all town, county and state regulations for disposal and recycling of waste. The Food Service Management Company shall assist in the implementation of a composting plan.
- 7. Responsible sourcing is a priority for CCSD, and we are dedicated finding ways to buy more local, seasonal and responsibly raised, grown and sourced products. The current food service has a contract with Farm Logix to procure and deliver fresh farm-to-school local vegetables and fruit every week. This program (or one reviewed and deemed comparable by the Wellness Committee designated to make such determinations) must be

maintained by the Successful vendor. Samples of fresh fruits and vegetables available each month follows:

2-Oct Apple Whole Count Case 125 Carrot Sticks Individual Packs Butternut Squash Diced Potatoes, Red, Wedge  9-Oct Kale Chopped Tomato Grape 16-Oct Apple Whole Count Case 125 Carrot Sticks Individual Packs Butternut Squash Diced Potatoes, Red, Wedge 23-Oct Kale Chopped Tomato Grape 30-Oct Apple Whole Count Case 125 Carrot Sticks Individual Packs Butternut Squash Diced Potatoes, Red, Wedge 23-Oct Kale Chopped Tomato Grape 30-Oct Apple Whole Count Case 125 Carrot Sticks Individual Packs	100/2 oz 4/5 lb 4/5 lb 125 ct 4/5 lb 12 pint/8#	Yonder/Brightley Brightley/Cayuga
Butternut Squash Diced Potatoes, Red, Wedge  9-Oct Pears, Bosc Kale Chopped Tomato Grape  16-Oct Apple Whole Count Case 125 Carrot Sticks Individual Packs Butternut Squash Diced Potatoes, Red, Wedge  23-Oct Pears, Bosc Kale Chopped Tomato Grape  30-Oct Carrot Sticks Individual Packs	4/5 lb 4/5 lb 125 ct 4/5 lb 12 pint/8#	Manheim/Young/Confreda/Sousa/Piainville/Brightley/Cay Ferrolbink/Sampson/Young Farms Lyman Orchards Cayuga/Brightley Young/Souza Farms/Salisbury Farms Yonder/Brightley Brightley/Cayuga
Potatoes, Red, Wedge  9-Oct Pears, Bosc Kale Chopped Tomato Grape  16-Oct Apple Whole Count Case 125 ( Carrot Sticks Individual Packs Butternut Squash Diced Potatoes, Red, Wedge  23-Oct Rale Chopped Tomato Grape  30-Oct Carrot Sticks Individual Packs Carrot Sticks Individual Packs	4/5 lb 125 ct 4/5 lb 12 pint/8#	Ferrolbink/Sampson/Young Farms  Lyman Orchards  Cayuga/Brightley  Young/Souza Farms/Salisbury Farms  Yonder/Brightley  Brightley/Cayuga
9-Oct Pears, Bosc Kale Chopped Tomato Grape 16-Oct Apple Whole Count Case 125 (Carrot Sticks Individual Packs) Butternut Squash Diced Potatoes, Red, Wedge 23-Oct Pears, Bosc Kale Chopped Tomato Grape 30-Oct Apple Whole Count Case 125 (Carrot Sticks Individual Packs)	125 ct 4/5 lb 12 pint/8#	Lyman Orchards Cayuga/Brightley Young/Souza Farms/Salisbury Farms Yonder/Brightley Brightley/Cayuga
Kale Chopped Tomato Grape 16-Oct Apple Whole Count Case 125 Carrot Sticks Individual Packs Butternut Squash Diced Potatoes, Red, Wedge 23-Oct Pears, Bosc Kale Chopped Tomato Grape 30-Oct Apple Whole Count Case 125 Carrot Sticks Individual Packs	4/5 lb 12 pint/8# t Mc 125ct	Cayuga/Brightley Young/Souza Farms/Salisbury Farms Yonder/Brightley Brightley/Cayuga
Tomato Grape  16-Oct Apple Whole Count Case 125 Carrot Sticks Individual Packs Butternut Squash Diced Potatoes, Red, Wedge  23-Oct Pears, Bosc Kale Chopped Tomato Grape  30-Oct Apple Whole Count Case 125 Carrot Sticks Individual Packs	12 pint/8# t Mc 125ct	Young/Souza Farms/Salisbury Farms  Yonder/Brightley  Brightley/Cayuga
Apple Whole Count Case 125 Carrot Sticks Individual Packs Butternut Squash Diced Potatoes, Red, Wedge  23-Oct Rale Chopped Tomato Grape  30-Oct Apple Whole Count Case 125 Carrot Sticks Individual Packs	t Mc 125ct	Young/Souza Farms/Salisbury Farms  Yonder/Brightley  Brightley/Cayuga
Carrot Sticks Individual Packs Butternut Squash Diced Potatoes, Red, Wedge  23-Oct Pears, Bosc Kale Chopped Tomato Grape  30-Oct Apple Whole Count Case 125 ( Carrot Sticks Individual Packs	<del> </del>	Brightley/Cayuga
Carrot Sticks Individual Packs Butternut Squash Diced Potatoes, Red, Wedge 23-Oct Pears, Bosc Kale Chopped Tomato Grape 30-Oct Apple Whole Count Case 125 ( Carrot Sticks Individual Packs	<del> </del>	
Potatoes, Red, Wedge  23-Oct Pears, Bosc Kale Chopped Tomato Grape  30-Oct Carrot Sticks Individual Packs		
Potatoes, Red, Wedge  23-Oct Pears, Bosc Kale Chopped Tomato Grape  30-Oct Apple Whole Count Case 125 ( Carrot Sticks Individual Packs	4/5 lb	Manheim/Young/Confreda/Sousa/Plainville/Brightley/Cay
23-Oct Pears, Bosc  Kale Chopped  Tomato Grape  30-Oct Apple Whole Count Case 125 ( Carrot Sticks Individual Packs	4/5 lb	Ferrolbink/Sampson/Young Farms
Tomato Grape 30-Oct Apple Whole Count Case 125 ( Carrot Sticks Individual Packs	125 ct	Lyman Orchards
30-Oct Apple Whole Count Case 125 ( Carrot Sticks Individual Packs	4/5 lb	Cayuga/Brightley
Carrot Sticks Individual Packs	12 pint/8#	Young/Souza Farms/Salisbury Farms
Carrot Sticks Individual Packs	t Mc 125ct	Yonder/Brightley
	100/2 oz	Brightley/Cayuga
Butternut Squash Diced	4/5 lb	Manheim/Young/Confreda/Sousa/Plainville/Brightley/Cay
Potatoes, Red, Wedge		Ferrolbink/Sampson/Young Farms
Carrot Sticks maividu		O/2 OZ Brightiey/Cayuga
Tomato Grape	4/5 lb	

NOTE: Bidding food service must show documentation of proposed farm-to-table program.

#### B. The minimum requirements:

**USDA** Choice Meat:

Ground Beef & Hamburgers:

Must be 100% beef with no added fillers or preservatives

and a maximum of 15% fat.

Cold Cuts: Boar's Head Brand or the equivalent in nutrient profile and

must not contain by-products, cereals, fillers or artificial

colors or flavors.

Frankfurters: added

All beef, chicken or turkey franks with no nitrates or nitrites

USDA Grade A Poultry:

Chicken Tenders.

Bell & Evans or equivalent type product containing all natural Nuggets & Patties: chicken, whole meat, not ground parts, raised without the

use of non-therapeutic antibiotics, and no chemical additives

or preservatives.

Fresh, cage-free USDA Grade AA or State Graded AA Eggs:

Fish & Seafood: USDA Grade A

Tuna Fish: All white meat, packed in water, and rated 'Dolphin Safe' by

Earth Island Institute, or similar certifying body.

Milk: Grade AA and hormone and antibiotic free, fat free, fat free

flavored, and 1% only

Must be 100% Cheese and USDA Grade AA. No Cheese:

'processed cheese foods'.

Yogurt: Organic, Greek and low fat

Other Dairy

Products:

Grade AA

Breads, Bagels: Fresh baked items to be delivered fresh each day and

choices must include whole wheat, whole grain, and white.

Fresh, large bagels currently being purchased from

Rockland Bakery (local).

Wraps A variety of wraps, including whole wheat, whole grain, white

and flavored.

Pizza Dough and Pretzels:

Baked items choices must include-whole wheat, whole grain,

and white.

Cereal:

Must only contain minimal levels of sugar (The total carbohydrate-to-sugar ratio should be no less than four to one. This means if the "Total Carbohydrate" line says 24 grams, the "sugars" should have a value of 6 grams or less)

and no artificial additives.

Pasta:

Barilla® Plus™ pasta or a pasta equivalent in nutritional profile and taste. This is defined as multi grained pasta, high

in protein, fiber and ALA omega 3 fatty acids.

Fruits & Vegetables:

USDA Grade 1 or A, fresh or frozen only (no canned) and purchased from local farmers as much as possible and through vendor contract with FarmLogix or similar

organization.

Snacks:

As addressed in District's Wellness Policy

Smoothies:

May be made with approved components such as frozen fruit, fat-free milk, 100% fruit juice and organic, Greek yogurt;

offered during warmer months

Mayonnaise:

Hellman's Light or equivalent light mayonnaise

All Condiments:

Should not contain high fructose corn syrup. Most ketchup is purchased in bulk and is "all natural." Ketchup purchased in individual packets for high school grab-n-go grill items are

excluded.

Dry Stored Items

& Canned Goods:

USDA Grade A

Bottled Water:

Slimmed down, lower plastic content bottles, whenever

possible

Paper Supplies:

No Styrofoam products. Unbleached napkins only

Utensils:

Disposable utensils must be compostable

Plastic Containers: Use compostable/recyclable containers whenever possible

in the second se

Lunch Trays: Use plastic re-usable trays. Compostable trays should be available when needed

# 2018

MANAGER, COOK, OR ALLERGIES, PLEASE F YOU HAVE FOOD FOOD ALLERGIES SPEAK TO THE YOUR SERVER

Vegetarian Baked Beans Served with Corn Bread Fruit & Vegetable Bar Chicken Nuggets Or Grilled Cheese Hormone Free Milk Breaded

Brown Rice & Black Beans Fruit & Vegetable Bar Or: Grilled Cheese Hormone Free Milk Chicken Nuggets Breaded

Vegetarian Baked Beans Served with Corn Bread Fruit & Vegetable Bar Or: Grilled Cheese Chicken Nuggets Hormone Free Milk Breaded

Brown Rice & Black Beans Served with Corn Bread Fruit & Vegetable Bar Or: Grilled Cheese Hormone Free Milk Chicken Nuggets Breaded

NACHO PLATTER

Or: Bean & Cheese Quesadilla Seasoned beef, tortilla chips, Brown Rice & Sweet Corn lettuce, tomatoes, cheese Fruit & Vegetable Bar Hormone Free Milk

Hamburger or Cheeseburger on a whole grain bun Or: Fruit & Vegetable Bar French Bread Pizza Baked Potato Tots Lettuce & Tomato Hormone Free Milk

Or: Homemade Macaroni Sweet Potato Wedges Fruit & Vegetable Bar Hormone Free Milk Beef Hot Dog All Natural & Cheese

Brown Rice & Sweet Corn lettuce, tomatoes, cheese Twin Tacos Seasoned turkey, tacos, Or: Cheese Quesadilla Fruit & Vegetable Bar Hormone Free Milk

Whole grain pasta plain, and Meat Sauce marinara sauce Garlic Bread

Roasted Brussel Sprouts Fruit & Vegetable Bar Hormone Free Milk

Homemade Baked Zit Fruit & Vegetable Bar Hormone Free Milk Sautéed Broccoli Garlic Bread

Whole grain pasta plain, Fruit & Vegetable Bar marinara sauce and Hormone Free Milk Sautéed Spinach With Meatballs

Whole Grain Pasta plain and with Meat Sauce Fruit & Vegetable Bar Roasted Cauliflower Hormone Free Milk marinara sauce Garlic Bread

BRUNCH FOR LUNCH

Cheese on a English Muffin w/ Maple Syrup Or: Egg & Homemade French Toast Sweet Potato Puffs Hormone Free Milk Fruit & Veggie Bar Turkey Sausage

Steamed Corn & Salsa Fruit & Vegetable Bar Chicken or Cheddar Cheese Quesadilla

Breaded Chicken Patty on a Chicken Ranch Wrap Hormone Free Milk

Fresh Whole Wheat Bun Or: Oven Baked French Fries Fruit & Vegetable Bar Hormone Free Milk

Cheese on a English Muffin w/ Maple Syrup Or: Egg & Homemade French Toast BRUNCH FOR LUNCH Furkey Sausage

Tossed Caesar Salad Fruit & Vegetable Bar Veggie Pizza

SOUPS ON!

Include Choice of: All Lunches Must Cheese Pizza Or: Turkey Fruit & Vegetable Bar Hormone Free Milk Pepperoni Pizza Garden Salad

And May Include:

Cheese Pizza Or:

Broccoli Pizza

Garden Salad

Vegetables

And / or

Tuesday & Thursdays)

(Juice available only

100% Juice

Fruits and

Skim, 1% Low-Fat Milk \*Hormone Free\*

or Skim Chocolate Milk \*No High Fructose Corn Syrup\*

Fruit & Vegetable Bar

Hormone Free Milk

**Alternate Lunches Available Daily:** 

Bagel, Yogurt, Veggie & Bagel/Yogurt Meal Fruit Choice Tossed Caesar Salad Fruit & Vegetable Bar Hormone Free Milk Cheese Pizza Or: Veggie Pizza

Turkey or Ham Sandwich Salad, Protein & Fruit Monday & Wednesday Sandwiches Salad Meal Cheese Pizza Or: Turkey Pepperoni Pizza

Choice

Sliced Chicken Sandwich Egg Salad Sandwich Made Fresh Daily Tuna Sandwich Fruit & Vegetable Bar Hormone Free Milk Cheese Pizza Or: Garden Salad

Thursday

Tuesday

Hormone Free Milk Sweet Potato Puffs Fruit & Veggie Bar Hormone Free Milk

CHAPPAQUA ELEMENTARY MENU

# Seven Bridges Robert E Bell

All Lunches <u>Must</u> Include Choice of: Fruits and/or 100% Fruit Juice and/or Vegetables And May Include	Shirt, 170 Low-rat fulls, or Skim Chocolate Milk *Hormone Free* *No High Fructose Com Syrup* Entrée Salad Salad, Protein & Fruit Choice	Pizza Plain or Assorted Deli Station Assorted All Natural Meats, Assorted Cheeses & toppings Served on assorted bread, rolls & wraps \$3.50	Grill Station  Monday  Meatball Wedge  Tuesday  Chicken Patty Special  \$3.50  Wednesday	Chicke Ms
Chicken Fried Rice Chicken tossed in an Asian sauce and served over Fried Brown Rice Steamed Peas Fruit & Veggie bar Hormone Free Milk	Stromboli Cheese, Ham & Cheese or Spinach Tossed Caesar Salad Fruit & Veggie Bar Hormone Free Milk	BBQ Pulled Pork Sandwich Vegetarian Baked Beans Chipotle Coleslaw Fruit & Veggie Bar Hormone Free Milk	Seasoned Baked Tilapia Seasoned Brown Rice Tomato & Cucumber Salad Hormone Free Milk	FOOD ALLERGIES: IF YOU HAVE FOOD ALLERGIES, PLEASE SPEAK TO THE
Burger Bar Beef, Turkey or Veggie Burger on a Bun With your choice of toppings Baked Herbed Potato Wedges Three Bean Salad Fruit & veggie bar Hormone free milk	Chicken or Cheese Quesadilla Seasoned Rice & Black Beans Fruit & Veggie Bar Hormone Free Milk	Chicken Parmesan Penne Pasta with Marinara Roasted Butternut Squash Fruit & veggie bar Hormone free milk	Fiesta Nachos Seasoned turkey, tortilla Chips, shredded lettuce, shredded Cheese, Brown Rice & Black Bean Salsa Fruit & Veggie bar Hormone free milk	
Whole Grain Pasta Plain, marinara and Meat sauce Garlic Bread Sautéed Zucchini Fruit & veggie bar Hormone free milk	Homemade Baked Ziti Garlic Bread Sautéed Spinach Fruit & Veggie bar Hormone free milk	Whole Grain Pasta Plain, marinara and With Meatballs Garlic Bread Seasoned Green Peas Fruit & veggie bar Hormone free milk	Homemade Beef Lasagna Garlic Bread Roasted Cauliflower Fruit & veggie bar Hormone Free Milk	
Roast Turkey, Cheese & Panini Roasted Sweet Potatoes Mixed Greens Salad Fruit & Veggie Bar Hormone Free Milk	Seasoned beef, twin tacos, shredded lettuce, shredded Cheese, Brown Rice Black Bean Salsa & Sweet Com Fruit & Veggie bar Hormone free milk	Baked Macaroni & Cheese Sautéed Broccoli Fruit & Veggie Bar Hormone Free Milk	Jerk Chicken Herbed Roasted Potatoes Sautéed Broccoli Fruit & veggie bar Hormone free milk	
Homemade Meatball Parmesan Hero topped with Mozzarella Cheese Sautéed Broccoli Fruit & Veggie Bar Hormone Free Milk	BRUNCH FOR LUNCH Homemade French Toast Maple Syrup Turkey Sausage Sweet Potato Tots Fruit & Veggie Bar Hormone Free Milk	BBQ Chicken Corn Bread Vegetarian Baked Beans Roasted Parsnips Fruit & Veggie bar Hormone free milk	Homemade Meatloaf topped with beef gravy WG Dinner Roll Mashed Potatoes Sautéed Green Beans Fruit & Veggie Bar Hormone Free Milk	Burger Bar Beef, Turkey or Veggie Burger on a Bun With your choice of toppings Baked Herbed Potato Wedges

# CHAPPAQUA MIDDLE SCHOOLS

Three Bean Salad Fruit & veggie bar Hormone free milk

COOK, SERVER, OR

MANAGER

Meatball Wedge

# HS MENC

## **BBQ** Chicken Hot Lunch:

Served with vegetarian baked beans and fresh cornbread

# Special of the Day:

Penne Ala Vodka Style chicken breast & sautéed Penne pasta served with with Grilled Chicken pink sauce and grilled

## Grill Special: broccoli

**Buffalo Chicken Patty** smothered in hot buffalo Breaded Chicken Patty wing sauce served with baked French fries

## Roasted Veggie Pizza Special:

assorted roasted veggies & mozzarella cheese Pizza dough topped With tomato sauce,

## Roast Beef & Pepper Deli Special:

Jack

jack cheese and served on topped with spicy pepper All Natural roast beef a roll or wrap

## Hot Lunch: Nacho Bar

Tortilla chips topped with guacamole and a corn & choice of beef or chicken, shredded cheese, lettuce, black bean salsa

## Special of the day: Pasta with Pesto

Farfalle pasta tossed with a homemade pesto sauce Served with a side of garlic bread

## **Grill Special:**

served in a tortilla wrap & Roasted seasonal veggies a side of baked French Veggie Wrap

# Pizza Special:

Fresh bagels topped with mozzarella cheese pizza sauce and Pizza Bagels

## Deli Special:

tomato on choice of whole Homemade tuna salad topped with lettuce & wheat or white wrap Tuna Wrap

# Hot Lunch:

mozzarella cheese served with sautéed green beans Chicken cutlet smothered with marinara sauce and 3 Chicken Parmigiana and garlic bread

# Special of the day:

Homemade Mac & Cheese Cheese baked to perfection and served with a side of Homemade Macaroni & sautéed green beans

# **Grill Special:**

served on toasted Rye and Corned Beef topped with sauerkraut, Swiss cheese Toasted Ruben a side of fries

# Pizza Special:

mozzarella cheese & Pizza dough topped with tomato sauce, Pepperoni Pepper

# Deli Special:

custom made sandwich Add basil pesto to your Basil Pesto served on a roll or wrap

# Hot Lunch:

steamed green peas and Sliced steak served with Asian Beef & Broccoli Asian style fried rice

## Special of the day: Baked Ziti

cheese and marinara sauce Served with garlic bread Penne pasta baked with

# **Grill Special:**

Chicken or Cheese

shredded cheese grilled in a tortilla & served with salsa Sliced chicken breast & and roasted zucchini Quesadilla

# Pizza Special:

with fresh tomato slices Pizza dough topped & mozzarella cheese Sliced Tomato

# Deli Special:

Fresh made egg salad served on choice of Egg Salad roll or wrap

## Hot Lunch Fish Tacos S

Also Available

pineapple salsa & served with yellow rice & black Seasoned Fish in a flour tortilla topped with beans

Hot Lunch \$3.25

**Grill Station** 

Hamburger,

# Special of the day:

Cheeseburger, Grilled Cheese

With Topping \$3.25 Daily Special \$4.00 Cheese tortellini served with marinara sauce and a Cheese Tortellini roasted zucchini

Pizza: Plain 3.00

# Grill Special:

Deli Station \$3.75

onions and Swiss cheese and Salami, assorted cheese & toppings Served on choice of breads, rolls & wraps Beef, Buffalo Chicken, Turkey, Ham, Roast All Natural Meats served with herbed roasted Sliced steak smothered in Philly Cheese Steak

# Pizza Special:

potatoes

Pizza dough topped with Buffalo Chicken and **Buffalo Chicken** mozzarella cheese

# Salad Bar \$4.25

oppings and dressings Fresh mixed greens, choice of proteins, seasonal veggies, Deli Special: or white bread

on choice of whole wheat Boar's Head turkey with bacon, lettuce & tomato Turkey BLT

# **HS Men**

# Hot Lunch:

regetarian baked beans and BBQ pulled pork served on Pulled Pork Sandwich a fresh bun & a side of chipotle coleslaw

# Special of the day

Asian sauce served with Lo-Mein noodles and Chicken Lo-Mein Asian vegetables

# Grill Special:

Served with a side of baked Monte Cristo Sandwich Sliced Ham &Cheese on toasted bread French fries

# Pizza Special:

with fresh veggies & Pizza dough topped mozzarella cheese Veggie

# Grill Special:

meat chicken salad served on choice of roll or wrap Tender pieces of white Chicken Salad

# Hot Lunch:

Masala sauce served over a and a side with a Roasted bed of white coconut rice Chicken Tikka Masala Chicken tossed in Tikka Broccoli

# Special of the day:

Pasta served toasted in a served with fresh roasted garlic oil sauce and Pasta Primavera vegetables

# **Grill Special:**

Meatballs in marinara sauce topped with mozzarella cheese and served with Meatball Parm Hero roasted potatoes

## Pizza Special: Pizza Bagels

Fresh bagels topped with mozzarella cheese pizza sauce and

## Hot Lunch: $\infty$

sausage links served with Made-to-order Belgium waffles, scrambled eggs, hash brown potatoes Brunch for Lunch

# Special of the day:

Homemade Beef Lasagna Cauliflower and a side of Served with roasted garlic bread

# **Grill Special:**

choice of toppings & served Two hot dogs on a bun with with baked seasoned fries All Natural Hot Dogs

## Pizza Special: Pepperoni

mozzarella cheese & Pizza dough topped with tomato sauce, Pepper

## Mozzarella & Roasted Deli Special:

roasted red peppers served Sliced Mozzarella with on a fresh roll Peppers

cheese, banana peppers

served on fresh roll

ham, salami, provolone 411 natural Boars Head

Italian Combo Hero

Deli Special:

CHAPPAQUA HIGH SCHOOL

## Beef Enchilada Hot Lunch:

wrap and topped with ancho cheddar cheese baked in a Seasoned beef topped with chili sauce & sour cream served with Golden Corn

# Special of the day:

Breaded eggplant stuffed cheese and side of roasted with Ricotta cheese and topped with marinara sauce and mozzarella Eggplant Rollatini

# **Grill Special:**

Served on a fresh roll and served with baked tater Sausage & Peppers Hero

# Pizza Special:

cots

fresh chopped garlic and Pizza dough topped with Garlic White Pizza mozzarella cheese

# Deli Special:

Baked chicken cutlet served toppings and bread choice with choice of assorted Chicken Cutlet

Also Available

roasted Brussel sprouts Chicken Francese Served with herbed roasted potatoes &

Hot Lunch \$3.00

**Grill Station** 

## Pasta with meat sauce Special of the day:

Daily Special \$4.00

Cheeseburger,

Hamburger,

Grilled Cheese

sautéed spinach and a side homemade meat sauce, Pasta served with of garlic bread

# **Grill Special:**

All beef hamburger topped with cheddar cheese and BBQ Cheddar Burger BBQ sauce served with baked French fries

Salami, assorted cheese

Beef, Buffalo Chicken,

Turkey, Ham, Roast

Deli Station \$4.00

All Natural Meats

with Topping \$3.25

**Pizza:** Plain \$3.00

# Pizza Special:

Fresh mixed greens,

breads, rolls & wraps Salad Bar \$4.25

Served on choice of

& toppings

Pizza dough topped with Buffalo Chicken and mozzarella cheese **Buffalo Chicken** 

toppings and dressings

choice of proteins,

seasonal veggies,

# Deli Special:

Add homemade marinated Portobello mushrooms to your custom made sandwich

# Portobello Mushrooms

# TS MENC

## Hot Lunch: Fajita Bar

Chicken fajita in a tortilla sautéed onions & peppers, guacamole served w/ corn topped with choice of cheddar cheese or

# Special of the day:

Served with sauteed green beans and a side of garlic Spaghetti & Meatballs

## Buffalo Burger **Grill Special:**

Freshly cooked burger in served with baked French hot buffalo wing sauce

## Roasted Veggie Pizza Special:

assorted roasted veggies & mozzarella cheese Pizza dough topped With tomato sauce,

## Buffalo Chicken & Deli Special:

cheddar cheese served on a All natural buffalo chicken, Cheddar Cheese fresh roll

# Hot Lunch:

Sliced Roast Turkey served topped with stuffing, gravy and cranberry sauce with on a Kaiser roll and Roast Turkey oreen heans

# Special of the day:

Pasta with black olives, red Served with garlic bread Mediterranean Pasta peppers & onion and summer squash

# **Grill Special:**

Chicken or Bean Burrito cheese and rice rolled in a Sliced Chicken or Beans flour tortilla served with baked sweet potato fries topped with cheddar

# Pizza Special:

Fresh bagels topped with mozzarella cheese pizza sauce and French

# Deli Special:

tomato on choice of whole Homemade tuna salad topped with lettuce & wheat or white wrap Tuna Wrap

## 13 Chicken Scarpiello Hot Lunch:

Chicken sautéed in a sauce with vinegar peppers, sausage and potatoes Served with sautéed broccoli

# Special of the day:

Grilled chicken & broccoli served over a bed of pasta and topped with alfredo Chicken & Broccoli Alfredo Pasta

# Grill Special:

with homemade kale chips mozzarella & roasted red peppers in a wrap served Breaded eggplant, Eggplant Wrap

## Pizza Special: Pepperoni

mozzarella cheese & Pizza dough topped with tomato sauce, Pepper

## Deli Special:

Add basil pesto to your custom made sandwich Basil Pesto served on a roll or wrap

## Chicken Stir-Fry Hot Lunch: 4

Asian sauce served with steamed carrots & peas Chicken tossed in an egg fried rice and

# Special of the day:

sautéed spinach and side of Pasta with Meat Sauce Penne pasta served with homemade meat sauce, garlic bread

# **Grill Special:**

Chicken or Cheese

shredded cheese grilled in a tortilla & served with salsa Sliced chicken breast & and roasted zucchini Quesadilla

## Pizza Special: Sliced Tomato

with fresh tomato slices & mozzarella cheese Pizza dough topped

## Deli Special:

served in a roll or wrap custom made sandwich Chicken Patty to your Chicken Patty

## 15Homemade Meatloaf Hot Lunch:

with beef gravy, creamy Beef meatloaf served mashed potatoes and sautéed broccoli

Hot Lunch \$3.00

# Special of the day:

Sausage served over farfalle Sautéed Broccoli Rabe & Sausage Pasta Broccoli Rabe & pasta

# Grill Special:

Sliced steak smothered in onions and Swiss cheese and served with herbed Philly Cheese Steak roasted potatoes

# Pizza Special:

Cheese, spinach & cheese cucumber & tomato salad marinara sauce and a Stromboli served with

# Deli Special:

jack cheese and served on topped with spicy pepper Roast Beef & Pepper All Natural roast beef Jack

a roll or wrap

# Also Available

## Daily Special \$4.00 Cheeseburger, Grilled Cheese **Grill Station** Hamburger,

with Topping \$2.75 Plain \$2.25 Pizza:

# Deli Station \$3.75

Salami, assorted cheese Beef, Buffalo Chicken, Turkey, Ham, Roast breads, rolls & wraps Served on choice of All Natural Meat & toppings

# Salad Bar \$4.00

toppings and dressings Fresh mixed greens, choice of proteins, seasonal veggies, Stromboli

# TS MENC

# Hot Lunch:

Served with steamed green beans and a side of garlic Chicken Marsala

# bread

cheese and marinara sauce Served with garlic bread Penne pasta baked with Baked Ziti

# Grill Special:

smothered in hot buffalo **Buffalo Chicken Patty** Breaded Chicken Patty wing sauce served with baked French fries

## Roasted Veggie Pizza Special:

assorted roasted veggies & mozzarella cheese Pizza dough topped With tomato sauce,

## Deli Special:

on choice of whole wheat bacon, lettuce & tomato All natural turkey with or white bread Turkey BLT

# Hot Lunch:

with gravy, yellow rice and Sliced roasted pork served steamed broccoli Roast Pork

# Special of the Day:

Special of the day:

Penne Ala Vodka Style chicken breast & sautéed Penne pasta served with with Grilled Chicken pink sauce and grilled

# Grill Special:

Chicken or Bean Burrito cheese and rice rolled in a Sliced Chicken or Beans flour tortilla served with baked sweet potato fries topped with cheddar

# Pizza Special:

Fresh bagels topped with mozzarella cheese pizza sauce and Pizza Bagels

# Deli Special:

tomato on choice of whole Homemade chicken salad Chicken Salad Wrap topped with lettuce & wheat or white wrap

## Hot Lunch: Beef Stir Fry 200

Sliced steak served with steamed broccoli and Asian style fried rice

## Hot Lunch:

Cheese Ravioli served with garlic bread and roasted Cheese Ravioli carrots

# Grill Special:

served on toasted Rye and Corned Beef topped with sauerkraut, Swiss cheese **Toasted Ruben** a side of fries

## Pizza Special: Pepperoni

mozzarella cheese & Pizza dough topped with tomato sauce, Pepper

## Deli Special:

Add basil pesto to your Basil Pesto served on a

## Hot Lunch: Taco Bar 6

cheese, lettuce, guacamole topped with choice of beef Hard or soft shell taco or chicken, shredded and a corn &

# Special of the day:

with a homemade pesto Farfalle pasta tossed Pasta with Pesto

# Served with a side of

shredded cheese grilled in a tortilla & served with salsa Sliced chicken breast & and roasted zucchini Quesadilla

# Pizza Special:

with garlic, ricotta & Pizza dough topped mozzarella cheese White Pizza

## Deli Special:

Fresh made egg salad served on choice of Egg Salad roll or wrap

# 20 Hot Lunch:

served with Spanish yellow rice & seasoned kidney Roasted chicken pieces Arroz con Pollo beans

Available Daily:

Hot Lunch \$3.00

**Grill Station** 

# Special of the day:

Cheese tortellini served with marinara sauce and a Cheese Tortellini roasted zucchini

# Grill Special:

Chicken or Cheese

**Grill Special:** 

Sliced steak smothered in onions and Swiss cheese and served with herbed Philly Cheese Steak roasted potatoes

# Pizza Special:

Pizza dough topped with Buffalo Chicken and **Buffalo Chicken** mozzarella cheese

## Roast Beef & Pepper Deli Special:

jack cheese and served on topped with spicy pepper All Natural roast beef a roll or wrap Jack

Daily Special \$4.00

Cheeseburger, Grilled Cheese

Hamburger,

with Topping \$2.75 Plain \$2.25

# Deli Station \$3.75

Salami, assorted cheese Beef, Buffalo Chicken, Turkey, Ham, Roast Served on choice of All Natural Meats & toppings

# Salad Bar \$4.00

breads, rolls & wraps

toppings and dressings Fresh mixed greens, seasonal veggies,

# custom made sandwich roll or wrap

# HS MENU

## **BBQ** Chicken Hot Lunch: 7

Served with vegetarian baked beans and fresh cornbread

# Special of the Day:

Penne Ala Vodka Style chicken breast & sautéed Penne pasta served with with Grilled Chicken pink sauce and grilled broccoli

# Grill Special:

Sliced steak smothered in onions and Swiss cheese and served with herbed Philly Cheese Steak roasted potatoes

# Pizza Special:

assorted roasted veggies & mozzarella cheese Pizza dough topped With tomato sauce, Roasted Veggie

## Roast Beef & Pepper Deli Special:

jack cheese and served on topped with spicy pepper All Natural roast beef a roll or wrap Jack

# Also Available

Daily:

## **Grill Station**

Hot Lunch \$3.25

Cheeseburger, Grilled Cheese Hamburger,

# Daily Special \$4.00

Pizza: Plain 3.00

# With Topping \$3.25

All Natural Turkey, Ham, Roast Beef, Buffalo Deli Station \$3.75 Chicken,

# Salami, assorted cheese

& toppings Served on choice of breads, rolls & wraps

# Salad Bar \$4.25

coppings and dressings Fresh mixed greens, seasonal veggies, choice of proteins,

#### Schedule B

#### ATTACH FOOD, BEVERAGE and SMALLWARE PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS HERE

A specification is a statement that contains a detailed description or enumerates particulars of a product. Characteristics in a specification include (but are not limited to):

- Name of Product
- Description of Product
- Case and Pack Weight
- Minimum and Maximum Size and Pieces
- Quality indicators: product type dictates the quality indicators; e.g., type, style, pack, syrup density, special gravity, age, exact cutting instructions, weight range, composition, condition upon receipt of product, fat content, cut of meat used, market class, variety, degree of ripeness or maturity, geographical origin, temperature during delivery and upon receipt, sugar ratio, milk fat content, milk solids and bacteria count, brand names, trim or yield, preservation or processing method, trade association standards, chemical standards.
- Main Ingredients
- If a brand name is indicated, "or equal to" must be specified
- Include required portion sizes for each grade group
- Meal Pattern Requirements/Child Nutrition (CN) Label
- Test or inspection procedures
- Other Product Ingredients
- Prohibited Ingredients
- Nutritional Standards
- Buy American Refer to information in Appendix B

<u>PLEASE NOTE: In the event that the SFA did not include Schedule B, the FSMC must identify the food products that will be served on the menu using specifications like grading, weight, item labels, nutritional qualities, etc...</u>

### Schedule C

#### ATTACH SFA LOCAL WELLNESS POLICY

#### **Local Wellness Policy Federal Regulation:**

Section 204 of the Child Nutrition and Women, Infants and Children Reauthorization Act of 2004 (PL 108-265) signed into law June 30, 2004 included a provision that requires each local educational agency (LEA) participating in the National School Lunch Program, School Breakfast Program, Special Milk Program and Summer Food Service Program to establish a local wellness policy for schools under the LEA. This policy must be developed and implemented not later than the first day of the school year beginning after June 30, 2006.

## Policy 0125: Wellness Policy

## **Introduction**

In keeping with the mission of the Chappaqua Central School District, the Board of Education shall ensure that the District creates an environment which fosters the physical and emotional well-being of its students. The Board recognizes the importance of giving children access to healthful foods and opportunities to be physically active in order to grow, learn, and thrive. The District shall provide a comprehensive program enabling students to obtain the knowledge necessary to understand the importance of healthy eating and regular physical activity, as well as the skills to make intelligent and informed eating and fitness choices. The District program shall seek to foster lifelong habits of healthy eating and physical activity.

## **Nutrition Education**

The District shall offer a comprehensive program that provides all students, K-12, the opportunity to:

Acquire nutrition-related knowledge in order to understand what constitutes healthy eating;

- · Understand the importance of a healthy diet for long-term wellness;
- Understand the complex societal factors that influence a person's self concept and decisions around eating;
- Develop self-awareness and personal decision-making skills that encourage healthy food selections.

## Physical Activity

The District shall offer an extensive program of physical activities, both during school hours and as part of extracurricular and interscholastic programs, that provides all students the opportunity to:

- Develop the knowledge, skills and personal qualities to engage in a variety of both individual and cooperative athletic and recreational activities;
- Maintain a healthy level of physical fitness by participating regularly in physical activity;
- Develop an understanding of both the short and long term benefits of physical activity;
- Learn to value physical activity as key to personal wellness, while practicing decision-making and personal goal-setting as ways to develop a healthy lifestyle.

## **Food Service**

The District shall offer a variety of affordable, nutritious, and appealing foods that meet the health and nutrition needs of students and serve such foods in a clean, safe, and pleasant setting with adequate time for students to eat. The District shall establish guidelines to ensure the availability of nutritious and healthful foods through school food service operations. Guidelines shall address the nutritional requirements of foods and beverages sold and served in school cafeterias and vending machines. The guidelines shall also specify goals to encourage continual improvement in the nutritional values of food service offerings.

The District shall work with the school community to foster and encourage healthy food selection by students. The District shall seek to establish linkages between the health education curriculum and the school meal program.

## Non-Food Service Food-Related School Activities

The District seeks to limit food-related activities in the classroom during the school day. Food shall not be used as a reward for student behavior or achievement. Classroom activities utilizing food shall focus on foods with nutritional values as identified in the

Food Service Guidelines. Foods not meeting nutritional guidelines may be allowed for classroom or school celebrations on limited occasions. At all times, schools shall be sensitive to students with allergies.

Food intended for immediate consumption may not be sold for fundraising purposes during school lunch hours. The District shall establish regulations concerning the sale and distribution of beverages and snacks for refreshment purposes at school-sponsored events on school property.

## **Implementation**

The District shall establish a Wellness Advisory Committee to advise on the overall implementation and evaluation of this policy. The Committee shall also work with the food service provider to develop and implement a process to improve cafeteria menu and vending machine offerings.

The Superintendent or his/her designee shall ensure compliance with this policy and shall advise the Board annually on the implementation, monitoring, and modification of this policy and its regulations.

The Superintendent is charged with developing the administrative regulations necessary to implement this policy.

Adopted by Board of Education: June 20, 2006

Revised:

July 11, 2006 October 10, 2006

## Regulations

· Regulation 0125: Wellness Policy Regulations (/fs/pages/551)

## Regulation 0125: Wellness Policy Regulations

## **Policy Implementation**

A Wellness Advisory Committee shall be selected annually by the Superintendent to assist in the overall implementation and evaluation of district Wellness efforts. The Committee shall include the Business Administrator, administrators, teachers, students, parents, and a representative of the food service provider. At least one member serving on the committee shall be a registered dietician. The District will give written notice of the existence of the Wellness Advisory Committee. The Committee shall reach out to the school community to gather information and to share its findings.

## **Nutrition Education**

### I. Nutrition education

- a. <u>Instructional program</u>. The K-12 nutrition education curriculum shall be sequential, developmentally appropriate, and in accordance with state and national standards. Nutrition education will occur throughout K-12 in dedicated classes and/or units and will also be woven into many other subjects (e.g., science or physical education) at each grade level. The curriculum should include but not be limited to instruction in:
  - · Nutrition-related knowledge
    - 1. Benefits of a healthy diet
    - 2. Diet and wellness, disease
    - 3. Eating behaviors/attitudes and food choices
    - 4. Meal benefits, especially breakfast
    - 5. Food safety
  - · Guidelines for a healthy diet
    - 1. Food guide pyramid

- 2. Understanding calories
- 3. Knowledge of key nutrients
- 4. Serving sizes
- · Sources of information
  - 1. Food labels
  - 2. Nutrient content of foods
  - 3. Appropriate nutrition information sources
- Nutrition-related skills
  - 1. Judging nutrition information, media messages
  - 2. Planning/creating healthy meals
  - 3. Decision-making making healthy choices
  - 4. Self-assessment, self-acceptance, eating disorder prevention
  - 5. Setting goals for a healthy lifestyle and connecting to physical activity
  - 6. Awareness of and sensitivity regarding the food preferences and limitations (including allergies) of other people
- b. <u>Teaching staff</u>. All nutrition education teachers should have access to regular professional development provided by the district.

## I. Links to the school community

- a. <u>Food services</u>. Teachers responsible for the nutrition education curriculum are encouraged to view the food services and their personnel as important resources to enhance what is taught in the classroom. For example, the monthly menu and other documentation provided by the food service program may be used to help teachers connect their lessons to their student's lives.
- b. <u>Additional activities</u>. Schools are encouraged to hold additional activities that promote healthy eating, such as food tastings, contests, and international food events.

#### I. Program evaluation

The nutrition education curriculum shall be subject to regular review, as a part of a district-wide ongoing, systemic curriculum revision process. The curriculum shall be reviewed for:

· Developmentally appropriate content that builds consistently from grade to grade

- · Opportunities for students to develop self-awareness and decision-making skills
- Accurate reflection of current research and best practice regarding health, safety and nutrition

## **Physical Activity**

## I. Physical Education

- a. <u>Scheduling</u>. As schools schedule physical education classes, they seek to balance the need for appropriate time in school for physical activity with the value of a broad physical education program that meets students' needs and interests.
- b. <u>Instructional program</u>. The K-12 physical education instructional curriculum shall be sequential, developmentally appropriate and in accordance with national and state standards. It should meet the needs of students of all athletic abilities and take into account gender and cultural differences in students' interests. The curriculum shall include but not be limited to instruction in:
  - Sport-related knowledge Opportunities to develop an understanding of the
    rules and strategies of a variety of individual, cooperative and competitive games,
    as well as safe behavior and responsible participation in sports and recreational
    activities.
  - Skill-related fitness Opportunities to develop competence in a variety of movement skills, and to develop appropriate skill. levels for playing a variety of sports and recreational activities
  - Health-related fitness Opportunities to develop appropriate levels of cardio-respiratory endurance, muscular strength and flexibility.
  - Value of physical activity Opportunities to develop an appreciation of the benefits of an active lifestyle including the appreciation of the interrelatedness of mind and body
  - Personal and social skills In addition to knowledge and skills related to sports
    and recreational activities, the physical education curriculum should teach such
    personal and social skills as self-management, a sense of fair play, and respect for
    cooperation and teamwork.

- c. <u>Assessment</u>. Health-related fitness testing shall be integrated into the instructional program as appropriate (excluding grades K-2) to students' developmental levels and physical abilities. Such testing shall be used to teach students how to assess their fitness levels, set goals for improvement, and monitor progress. Test results shall not be used to determine course grades.
- d. <u>Exemptions</u>. Physical education teaches essential knowledge and skills; for this reason, exemptions from physical education courses shall not be permitted on the basis of participation on an athletic team. A student may be excused from participation in the activity portion of physical education only if: 1) a physician states in writing that specific physical activities will jeopardize the students' health and well-being or 2) a parent/guardian requests exemption from specific activities on religious grounds.
- e. <u>Teaching staff</u>. Physical education shall be taught by well-prepared specialists who are certified to teach physical education.
- f. <u>Adequate facilities</u>. Schools shall provide sufficient funds, as well as adequate and safe spaces, equipment, and supplies necessary to achieve the objectives of the physical education program.

### I. Extracurricular physical activity programs in middle and high school

Schools shall provide students an opportunity to voluntarily participate in a variety of cooperative and competitive extracurricular activities whenever feasible.

- a. <u>Value</u>. Through extracurricular physical activities students shall be taught teamwork, responsibility, commitment, respect, learning how to win and lose, and the value of exercise and conditioning. These life lessons are valuable supplements to our students' education in Chappaqua.
- b. <u>Participation</u>. The interscholastic athletic program shall have as its goal to give opportunities to all students interested in participating, regardless of ability. Although some sports at the higher levels have teams that do limit the number of students who can participate, every season students should have the option of choosing a sport that has no limit on participants, so that any child who wishes to play a sport can do so.

- c. <u>Equal opportunity</u>. All aspects of program design and implementation shall demonstrate equal opportunity on the basis of gender.
- d. <u>Supervision</u>. All intramural programs, physical activity clubs and athletic teams shall be supervised by qualified staff, which may or may not be certified teachers.

## I. Other opportunities for physical activity

- a. Recess. Recess provides an important opportunity for physical activity and recreational play within the school day. It plays an important role in the learning, social development, and physical health of children. Schools shall provide appropriate time, supervision, playgrounds, and equipment for recess. The deprivation of recess time should never be used as a punishment. Teachers and/or administration may use their discretion to have students remain inside or sit outside to calm down, to reflect on their behavior, and/or complete assigned tasks.
- <u>Recreational activities</u>. Schools should make reasonable efforts to make gymnasiums, fields and equipment available to students for use during free time.

## /. Safety guidelines

Play areas, facilities, and equipment used for physical activity on school grounds shall meet accepted safety standards for design, installation, and maintenance. Such spaces and equipment shall be regularly inspected. Minimizing injuries and illnesses related to physical activity is the joint responsibility of everyone: district and school leaders, school staff, students and their families.

## Food Service

#### I. Menu development and oversight

The Wellness Advisory Committee shall work with the food service provider to promote the development of healthy menus and to seek ways to encourage children to make healthy food choices. The Committee shall:

- a. Review food items offered in the school cafeterias for the purposes of: reducing the amount of fat, salt, sugar and high fructose corn syrup; eliminating artificial ingredients; and increasing nutrient density.
- b. Preview, assess, and recommend the introduction of new food service items.

- c. Promote educational activities for students and parents, in collaboration with the food service provider.
- d. Explore extending food service hours at the middle schools and high school.
- e. Periodically review food service nutritional guidelines as established by these regulations to ensure that food service offerings in the cafeteria and vending machines are increasingly nutritious and attractive to students.

## I. Food guidelines

### a. Beverages and Snacks

i. All beverages and individually packaged snacks shall conform to the district nutritional beverage and snack guidelines (see Appendix A).

#### b. Menu items

- i. All school menus shall meet or exceed USDA guidelines and conform to all applicable New York State regulations.
- ii. All school menu items shall conform to the district nutritional menu item guidelines (see Appendix B).

### I. Eating facilities

All school food service equipment and facilities must meet applicable local and state standards concerning safe food preparation, sanitation, and workplace safety. Schools should do everything possible to make mealtime a pleasant, orderly experience for students.

## /. Vending machines

All vending machines operated by the food service provider shall follow district snack and beverage nutritional guidelines (see Appendix A), both during and after the school day.

#### /. Time and scheduling for meals

Time allotments and scheduling for meals shall be reviewed and approved annually by the Superintendent or his designee.

## 1. Community involvement

As menu changes are considered and implemented, the District will seek feedback from students through food sales and focus groups, and from parents through the PTA.

## Non-Food Service Food-related Activities

## I. Vending machines

All vending machines available to students shall be stocked exclusively with items that conform to the district nutritional guidelines for snacks and beverages (Appendix A).

### I. Educational reinforcement

Food shall not be used to reinforce individual student behaviors or achievement, unless deemed necessary by the instructional professionals in collaboration with the child's parents.

## I. Fundraising activities

Building administration must approve in advance any fundraising involving food by student organizations, parent groups and/or community organizations.

- a. <u>During the school day</u>. Food sold for immediate consumption in order to raise funds shall not be sold while school food service meals are being served.
- b. <u>After the school day</u>. When food is sold at school events, such as refreshments at theater productions or athletic events, a nutritious alternative must always be available in addition to other offerings, to encourage healthy choices (e.g., apples as an alternative to cookies, or granola bars as an alternative to candy).

#### /. Classroom events

Schools should consider the following when planning classroom events.

#### a. Birthday celebrations

Classroom teachers will offer guidelines to parents and children wishing to celebrate a child's birthday during the school day. Parents shall be encouraged to make sure any food item brought in is of appropriate portion size. Parents shall be made aware of any students in the classroom with food allergies.

#### b. Snacks

Classroom teachers who have students bring in snack on a regular basis to be consumed in the classroom shall set expectations with students and parents regarding the nutritional value of the snack items.

#### c. Other food-related activities

When planning classroom, grade level, or school events involving food, teachers and other school personnel shall work with parents to utilize foods with greater nutritional value (as defined in these Wellness Policy Regulations (Appendixes A and B) and minimize use of less-nutritional food items. Consideration must be given to food allergies, food sensitivities, and/or cultural values to ensure no one is excluded in these activities.

Administrative Regulation:

Approved by Superintendent of Schools October 31, 2008

## Appendix A

## Nutritional Guidelines for Beverages and Snacks Sold in the Cafeterias

Approved by Chappaqua School Board - August 2, 2005

All beverages and packaged snacks sold in the Chappaqua Central Schools cafeterias must adhere to the following standards:

## **Beverages**

## 1. Milk

- a. Limited to: fat free (skim), low fat and 2%.
- b. Flavored milk is permissible, as long as it has no more than 25 grams of sugar per8-ounce serving.
- c. Non-dairy milk is made available as needed for those students with identified dietary restrictions.

#### 2. Water

- a. Plain water can be served in any size.
- b. Seltzer can be any size, plain or flavored, but must be flavored without sweeteners.
- c. Fitness waters and vitamin waters may be sold, in any size serving, but must be flavored without sweeteners.

#### 3. Fruit Juice

- a. Should be 100% juice, with no added sweeteners.
- b. Fortified juice is preferred.
- c. Serving size should be limited to 12 ounces.

## 4. Fruit Drinks and Punches

- a. May be sold if they contain at least 50% juice and a maximum of 15 grams of sugar in an 8-ounce serving.
- b. When a 12 ounce serving becomes available on the market, that size should be the maximum serving size allowed.
- c. May not contain high fructose corn syrup.

### 5. Sports Drinks (electrolyte replacers)

- a. May not be sold in the cafeteria.
- b. May be sold in machines near the athletic fields, after school only.

#### 5. Soda

a. By law, no soda is sold in school cafeterias.

#### 7. Caffeinated drinks

- a. May not be sold, excluding low-fat or fat-free chocolate milk.
- b. Hot chocolate may be sold at the middle and high schools.
- c. Tea must be herbal or decaffeinated.
- d. Only decaffeinated coffee will be sold.

## Packaged snacks

#### 1. Fat

- a. <u>Total fat</u>: Snacks must have no more than 30% of the total calories from fat, or a maximum of 7 grams per serving (with the exception of nuts and seeds).
- b. <u>Saturated fat</u>: Snacks must have no more than 10% of total calories from saturated fat, or a maximum of 2 grams per serving.
- c. <u>Trans fat</u>: No snack containing trans fat should be sold.

## 2. Sugar

- a. Snacks may contain no more than 15 grams of sugar per serving, with the exception of yogurt.
- b. Snacks may not contain high fructose corn syrup.

#### 3. Salt

a. No guidelines at this time, but lower-sodium snacks are to be encouraged.

## Appendix B

## Chappaqua Central Schools Food Service Food Item Guidelines

- 1. Lower-fat entrees An entrée must include protein. To encourage healthy choices, both traditional entrées and corresponding lower-fat alternatives shall be served (e.g., grilled chicken as an alternative to chicken nuggets).
- 2. **Vegetarian entrees** A vegetarian meal shall be offered every day. Whenever possible, a hot vegetarian alternative to the hot entrée shall be offered (e.g., bean burritos along with meat burritos). When this is not possible, a vegetarian sandwich shall be served as an alternative to the meat entrée.
- **3. Whole grains** Whenever bread, rice or pasta products are served, both white and whole-grain versions shall be offered.
- **Fruits and vegetables** All menus shall include a choice of three fresh or frozen fruits and three fresh or frozen vegetables every day, including a salad bar in every school. We encourage the purchase of locally grown fruits and vegetables when available and competitively priced.
- **5. Fats** School food offerings should not include trans fats.
- 5. Frying No food shall be deep fried, except for French fries at the high school, which may be offered twice a week. Oil used to fry shall be drained and discarded at the end of each day and replaced with fresh oil.
- **7. Processed foods** In menu development, every effort shall be made to keep use of processed foods to a minimum.

## Schedule D1

### **COST RESPONSIBILITY DETAIL SHEET**

The SFA has deemed the following cost responsibility schedule to be a necessary part of this bid specification. Costs which are not provided for under the contract terms but are necessary for the effective on-site operation of the food service program and are directly incurred for the SFAs operation must be assigned and designated below by the SFA, and designated below any explanations are to be provided if necessary on Schedule D2:

COST CATEGORY	ITEMIZED COSTS	FSMC	SFA	N/A
Food:	Food Purchases	×		
	Commodity Processing Charges	$\boxtimes$		
	Processing & Payment of Invoices			74
USDA Foods:	Processing & Fees for Service	×		
	Payment of Invoices	$\boxtimes$		
Labor:	Wages	×		
	Fringe Benefits & Insurance	×		
	Payroll Taxes	$\boxtimes$		
	Preparation & Processing of Payroll	$\boxtimes$		
Miscellaneous/	Paper and Cleaning Supplies	$\boxtimes$		
Additional Items:	China/Silverware/Glassware - initial inventory replacement		$\boxtimes$	
	China/Silverware/Glassware - during operation		$\boxtimes$	
	Telecommunications (telephone, computer, internet, fax, etc.)		×	
	Uniforms/Laundry*	$\boxtimes$		
	Sanitation of Cafeteria Tables and Floors*		$\boxtimes$	
	Trash Removal*		$\boxtimes$	
	- from kitchen			
	- from dining area		$\boxtimes$	
	- from premises		$\boxtimes$	
	Equipment Replacement & Repair*		$\boxtimes$	
	- non-expendable			
	- expendable		$\boxtimes$	
	Products and Public Liability Insurance*	$\boxtimes$		
	Equipment Rental			$\boxtimes$
	Car/Truck Rental	$\boxtimes$		
	Storage Costs (excluding donated commodities)	$\boxtimes$		
	(food and non-food supplies)*			
	Courier Services (bank deposits, school deliveries, etc.)*			
	Employee Recruitment – initial replacement*			
	Sales Tax		Х	
	Other* - specify Bank Deposits		$\boxtimes$	
	(cannot include overhead expenses incurred by FSMC)		:	
	Other* - specify Food Delivery to Schools	$\boxtimes$		
	(cannot include overhead expenses incurred by FSMC)			
	Other* - specify			
	(cannot include overhead expenses incurred by FSMC)			
	Other* - specify			
75.5	(cannot include overhead expenses incurred by FSMC)			

<sup>\*</sup>These direct cost items may or may not apply to each SFA. At local discretion, based upon actual practice and need, the SFA should assign cost responsibility for these items, applicable to their operation, or designate them as N/A for each of the above items.

## Schedule D2

## <u>DETAILED EXPLANATIONS FROM COST RESPONSIBILITY DETAIL SHEET</u>

	 	 <u></u>	
]			
1			
			i
			İ
		•	
			}

## Schedule E

	ATTACH ITEMIZED INVENTORY LIST
-	
İ	

## Schedule F

## ATTACH THE SCHOOL FOOD SAFETY PLAN AND ANY OTHER ADDITIONAL FOOD AND SAFETY SPECIFICATIONS

#### **HAACP/Food Safety Plan Federal Regulation:**

Section 111 of the Child Nutrition and WIC Reauthorization Act of 2004 (Public Law 108-265) amended section 9(h) of the Richard B. Russell National School Lunch Act by requiring school food authorities (SFAs) to implement a food safety program. The Reauthorization Act requires that, during the preparation and service of meals, the SFA comply with the HACCP system established by the Secretary of Agriculture. The law requires compliance with this requirement by July 1, 2005.

<u>Please Note:</u> The FSMC shall adhere to the School Food Safety Plan set forth as per USDA regulations for all preparation and meal service of school meals, using a Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point (HACCP) system as required under by Public Law 108-265 which is to be included as part of the Bid by the SFA as reflected in Schedule F.

### CHAPPAQUA CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

P.O. BOX 21, CHAPPPAQUA, NEW YORK 10514 TEL: (914) 238-7200

July 5, 2018

Ms. Jamie McMillian Child Nutrition Program Administrator NYS Education Department 89 Washington Avenue, Room 375 EBA Albany, NY 12234

Dear Ms. McMillian,

Please be advised that the Chappaqua Central School District will accept the Food Safety Plan that is submitted with the bid specifications and contract provided by the Food Service Management Company that is awarded the Child Nutrition Contract.

The Chappaqua Central School District will ensure that the Food Safety Plan is equal to or exceed the requirements currently in place.

Sincerely,

John Chow

Assistant Superintendent for Business

### Schedule G

### STAFFING SCHEDULES AND OTHER RELATED INFORMATION

- I. Prospective bidders are asked to present their hourly labor schedules by building to reflect the staffing levels needed to efficiently operate the SFA's Child Nutrition Program Operations, including but not limited to employee benefit packages, training requirements, etc.
- II. In the event that the SFA prepares labor schedules specifying the minimum and/or specific staffing requirements for their SFA for bidding purposes, those schedules and related information are to be attached here as they are a part of the bid specifications.
- III. In the event the SFA retains the services of the food service staff, the SFA must list all food service staff in Schedule G listing the title and salary of each employee.

			Current	2018-19				_								Tob	e complete	To be completed by the FSMC	MC		
School	Health	Hours / Dov	Hourly	Hourly	Service D	Open &		Id	Total	Hours /	Dally	Annual	818	- 110	7 10340	Medi- To	Total Health	Ith Life	Other	er Total	Tot
Roaring Brook	2	6.50	14.52	14.82	go	-	5	-	9	35.0	96.3	\$18.495	ğ	t	+	╁	Nes Coverage		+	_	S COSTS
Roaring Brook		6.50	14.74	15.03	178	7	5	_	192.0	32.5	7.7.6	\$18,757				_	_			-	
Roaring Brook		6.50	12.00	12.24	178	_	5	2	190.0	35.0	79.6	\$15,116						_			
Roaring Brook		4.50	11.00	12.00	178	-	ю	2	183.0	22.5	54.D	\$9,882									
Roaring Brookl		2.00	11.00	12.00	178	1	m	2	183.0	28.6	90.0	\$10,980						_			
Grafflin	7	3.00	17.51	17.86	178	7	ın ı	+	192.0	40.0	142.9	\$27,433	1			+	+	+	1	-	;
Graffin	7	3 5	11 50	12.50	0/T	+	7 "	,	193.0	2,00	0.75	\$18,74U				+	+		+	+	
Graffin		200	14.07	14 35	178	+	7 67	1	183.0	25.0	71.8	613 130	$\dagger$	$\dagger$	$\frac{1}{1}$	+		+	1	+	
Westorchard	2	6.50	13.75	14.03	178	^	100	,	192.0	300	91.2	\$17.509	$\dagger$			-	$\downarrow$	+	+		
Westorchard		6.50	12.00	12.24	178	2	. 5	7	192.0	30.0	79.6	\$15.276			+	+	+	1	1	-	
Westorchard		5.00	11.00	12.00	178	_	E	2	183.0	28.5	60.0	\$10,980				-				1	
Westorchard		4.50	11.00	12,00	178	-	m	2	183.0	23.5	54.0	\$9,882						-			
Bell	2	7.00	16.40	16.73	178	2	155	7	192.0	35.0	117.1	\$22,485						_			
3ell	2	6.50	14.79	15.09	178	7	C,	7	192.0	35.0	98.1	\$18,832						_			
Bell		7.00	13.32	13.59	178	-	5	-	190,0	35.0	95.1	\$18,075	<del>                                     </del>			_					
Bell		7.00	12.42	12.67	178		'n	7	190.0	35.0	88.7	\$16,851	-			<u> </u>					
Bell		5.00	11,00	12.00	178		3	7	183.0	25.0	0.09	\$10,980									
8ell		5.70	8.57	12.00	178		3	2	183.0	28.5	68.4	\$12,517	-			<u> </u>					
Bell		9'00	8.38	12.00	178		Э	2	183,0	30.0	72.0	\$13,176	-			_	L				
Bell		5.20	11.00	12.00	178	_	3	2	183.0	26.0	62.4	\$11,419				_	L				
Seven Bridges	2	7.50	15.14	15.44	178	2	Ŋ	7	192.0	35.0	115.8	\$22,234	-			_					
Seven Bridges		7.00	16.03	16.35	178	2	5	-	192.0	35.0	114.5	\$21,974						-			
Seven Bridges		7.00	11.64	12.00	178	1	57	7	190.0	35.0	84.0	\$15,960						_			
Seven Bridges		7.00	13.02	13.28	178	-	S	7	190.0	32.0	93.0	\$17,662									
Seven Bridges		8.	9.18	12.00	178	+	Ľη	_	190.0	35.0	84.0	\$15,960	1								
Seven Bridges		8.50	12.18	12.42	178	+	5	-	190.0	32.5	80.7	\$15,339				-	-	_			
Seven Bridges		8.5	14.49	14.78	178	+	m	7	183.0	32.5	96.1	\$17,581				$\frac{1}{1}$	$\dashv$				
Seven Bridges	ľ	3 :	21.00	17.00	178	+	77	7	183.0	25.0	0.09	\$10,980	1	+			$\frac{1}{1}$		1		
Horace Greeley	2	7.50	20.00	20.40	175	2	22	_	189.0	37.5	153.0	\$28,917				_					
Horace Greeley		7.00	12.48	12.73	175	2	υS	7	189.0	37.5	89.1	\$16,842									
Horace Greeley		7.50	15.98	16.30	175	+	'n	_	187.0	37.5	122.3	\$22,861				-					
Horace Greeley		6.50	12.00	12.24	175	+	5	7	187.0	37.5	79.6	\$14,878									
Horace Greeley		6.75	12.00	12.24	175	1	2	7	187.0	32.5	82.6	\$15,450									
Horace Greeley		6.50	11.87	12.00	175	1	2	7	187.0	32.5	78.0	\$14,586								_	
Horace Greeley		5.50	12.00	12.24	175	-	m	2	180.0	30.0	67.3	\$12,118									
Horace Greeley		6.50	11.00	12.00	175	_	2	7	187.0	35.0	78.0	\$14,586								_	
Horace Greeley		7.50	13,64	13.91	175		S	7	187.0	37.5	104.3	\$19,509								_	_
Horace Greeley		6.50	13.00	13.26	175	_	S	7	187.0	28.5	86.2	\$16,118								_	_
Horace Greeley		5.70	13.15	13.41	175		3	2	180.0	28.5	76.4	\$13,759									
Horace Greeley		5.70	9,00	12.00	175		60	2	180.0	28.5	68.4	\$12,312									
Horace Greeley		6.50	11.42	12.00	175		3	7	185.0	32.5	78.0	\$14,430									
Office Manager	Mgmt Benefits	8 00	24.18	24.78	178	2	&	œ	214.0	40.0		\$42,120									
Chef	- 1	8.00	32.43	33.24	178	15	8	8	209.0	•		\$65,000									
Food Service Director	Mgmt Benefits	8.00	41.70	42.74	260	25	8	8	301.0			\$98,603						-	-	_	
						1	_			•					_						

Total Payroll from this schedule must match the 2018-19 ANNUAL FINANICIAL BUDGET PROJECTION EXHIBIT 24, SECTION 2, LINE 2 Labor Salaries/Fringe Benefits.

Heath Benefits 1= Single, 2=Married, 3 = Single Children, 4 = Family Paid Time Off (Sirk and Holiday) paid time off has been reduced from prior years. Unused PTO is required to be paid to the employee in June of every school year.

### Staffing requirements

• It is the desire of the Chappaqua Central School District that the management staff of the Food Services Operation consists of high motivated, experienced, and highly qualified individuals. In an effort to ensure this skill level is maintained, bidders are to ensure the salaries included in schedule G are adhered to and utilized to guarantee a highly skilled organization. Additionally the management staff should at minimum meet the following qualifications:

### Food Service Director

- o The Food Service Director is a 12 month position. The Director should have:
- o 4 year college degree
- o Registered Dietitian and Licensed in the state of New York
- o Minimum 5 years experience in K-12 operations in location the size and scope of the Chappaqua Central School District.
- o Extensive knowledge in NSLP Federal guidelines, menu planning and managing all the financial aspects of a school lunch program.
- o A member of the Academy of Nutrition and Dietetics and the School Lunch DRG.
- o Must be Serv Safe Certified

#### Executive Chef

- o Professional trained with a Degree in Culinary Art
- Minimum 5 years experience in K-12 operations in location the size and scope of the Chappaqua Central School District.
- Extensive knowledge of school lunch menu planning, recipe development, production records and inventory.
- Experience in training hourly staff on food preparation, recipe compliance and operational standards
- o Must be Serv Safe Certified

### Assistant Manager/ Office Manager

- o Minimum 5 years experience in a management position in a K-12 Operation the size and scope of the Chappaqua District.
- Proficient in Nutrikids and/or School Lunch POS System, Microsoft Office including Excel,
   Word, PowerPoint

- Proficient in accounts payable, payroll, inventory, electronic ordering and cash handling procedures
- Must be Serv Safe Certified

#### Additional Requirements

- The Food Service Director is responsible for the oversight, supervision and strategic management of the operation.
- In addition to previous food service experience, the Director must have a thorough knowledge
  of the Bid Specifications, state and federal Child Nutrition Regulations, NY wage and hour policy,
  and State and local Health Department regulations.
- Job descriptions are to be available for all food service positions and routinely followed.
- Adequate personnel should be employed at all time in accordance with schedule G of this
  document.
- Relief personnel are to be available and utilized for any and all absences.
- The FSMC shall employ only those persons acceptable to the District. The district reserves the right to remove any employee that does not meet the districts requirement for acceptability.
- Penalties as noted in bid "agreement" may be imposed for staffing shortages, which
  compromise the efficiency of the program, speed of service or customer satisfaction. Additional
  penalties may be assessed for any deviations from the staffing schedule G-1 in terms of number
  of staff, hours per day, or wage rates.
- The Food Service Director should visit each school once per week to observe the service and ensure a high level of satisfaction.
- Employees should wear proper attire including smocks, or aprons, hair restraint and name tags.
- Employees who handle money are not to handle food.
- FSMC is to provide functional routine training related to the Food Service Workers job
  descriptions to ensure a highly skilled team. Specialized training in food service sanitation and
  workplace safety must be provided to all employees upon hire.
- FSMCs shall submit a training schedule indicating the names of the training programs to be conducted during the course of the year, and the name and qualifications of the instructors.
- The FSMC shall be engaged as an independent contractor for the purposes of taxes, social
  security, and other withholdings. The FSMC shall be solely responsible for payment of any and
  all taxes, and expressly agrees to defend and indemnify the SFA for any action brought by any

governmental entity, agency, authority or office by any individual or other entity with respect to taxes which may be related to any payment made by the SFA under this agreement.

All FSMC direct payroll, payroll taxes and benefits shall be listed as separate line items on the
operating statements to ensure complete understanding of these costs.

# Schedule H

ATTACH DIRECT DIVERSION RECEIPT AND, IF APPLICABLE, WBSCM REQUISITION STATUS REPOR	ATTACH DIRECT DIVERSION RECEIPT A	D. IF APPLICABLE.	. WBSCM REQUISITION	N STATUS REPORT
--	-----------------------------------	-------------------	---------------------	-----------------

# Schedule I

## **ADDITIONAL SCHEDULES**

Only attach here any other additional schedules that are part of the bid specifications that are for informational purposes only. This may include the following examples:

- School calendar
   School district map
   Reimbursement claim form, etc.

S	М	т	w	Т	F	s	Chappaqua Cei	ntral	Sc	ho	ol	Di	str	ict	
July 1	2	3	4.	. 5	6	7	201	8 - 2	01	9					
8	9	10	11	12	13	14	Schoo	l Cal	en	da	r				
15 22	16 23	17 24	18 25	19 26	20 27	21 28	5050		<b></b> 1	u	•				
29	30	31	2.5	20	21	20									
August	:														
-	_	_	1	2	3	4									
5 12	6 13	7 14	8 15	9 16	10 17	11 18									
19	20	21		23 .		25									
26	27	28	29	<b>\$</b> (0)	31		8/30 Superintendent Conf. Day	S	М	Т	W	T	F	S	
<u>Sept</u>	emb	<u>er</u>				1		<u>Feb</u>	ruary	<u>.</u>			1	•	
2	3	<u>4</u>	5	6	7	8	9/3 Labor Day	3	4	5	6	7	1 8	2 9	2/18 President's Day
9	10		12	13	14	15	9/4 School Starts	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	2/18-22 Winter Recess
16	17	18	19	20	21	22	9/10-11 Rosh Hashanah	17	18				22	23	15 student days
23 30	24	25	26	27	28	29	9/19 Yom Kippur 16 Student Days	24	25	26	27	28			
<u>Octo</u>	<u>ber</u>							Mar	<u>ch</u>						
	4	,	,		_	_	40/0 Colombas Barr	_		_	_	_	1	2	
7	1 8	2 9	3 10	4 11	5 12	6 13	10/8 Columbus Day 10/26 Superintendent Conf. Day	3 10	4 11	5 12	6 13	7 14	8 14	9 16	3/15 Superintendent Conf. Day 20 student days + Supt Conf Day
14		16	17	18		20	10/20 Superintendent Com. Day	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	20 student days + Supt Cont Day
21	22	23	24		26		21 Student Days + 1 Supt Conf Day	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	
28	29	30	31					31							
Nove	mbe	<u>r</u>		4	_	_	446	<u>Apri</u>	<u>1</u>						
4	5	6	7	1 8	2 9	3 10	11/6 Supt. Conf. Day/Election Day 11/11 Veterans Day		1	2	3	4	_	c	
11		13		15	16	17	11/12 Veterans Day (observed)	7	1 8	2 9	10	4 11	5 12	6 13	
18	19	20	<u>21</u>		23	24	11/21 Early Dism. Elem, MS, HS	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	4/15-19 Spring Recess
25	26	27	28	29	3Ŏ		11/22-23 Thanksgiving Recess	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	17 student days
							18 student days + 1 Supt Conf Day	28	29	30					
<u>Dece</u>	mbe:	<u>.</u>						May							
2	2	Λ	r	c	7	1		_	_	_	1	2	3	4	
2 9	3 10	4 11	5 12	6 13	7 14	8 15	12/24-31 Holiday Recess	5 12	6 13	7 14	8 15	9 16	10 17	11 18	5/27 Momental Day
				20			15 Student Days			21					5/27 Memorial Day 5/24-27 Mem. Day weekend
	24			27			.,,			28					20 Student Days
Janua								June							•
								<u> </u>	•					1	
_	_	1	2	3	4	5		2	3	4	5	6	7	8	
6 13	7 14	8 15				12	1/1 Holiday Recess	9	10		12	13	14	15	6/26 Last Day of School
_	14 21			17 24	18 25	19 26	1/21 Martin Luther King Day 21 student days	16 23	17 24		19 26	20 27	21 28		18 Student Days
	28						an organic days	30	-4	<i>د</i> ے	20	41	40	43	
								30							

2018-19 Calendar - 181 Student Days + 4 Superintendent Conference Days = 185

Please Note: If school cancellations during the year cause student days to fall below the state requirement, the "make-up" days will be scheduled in this order: May 28, May 24, April 15, April 16, April 18

EARLY Dismissal - Elem, MS & HS: Nov. 21 - Elem @ 11:50; Middle School @ 11:00; High School @ 11:10 - no lunch served \*\*additional Early Dismissal Days will be identifed in late Spring.

## Appendix A

# STANDARD DEFINITIONS FOR ALL NEW YORK STATE SCHOOL FOOD AUTHORITY - FOOD SERVICE MANAGEMENT COMPANY CONTRACTS

**Bid** is a complete and properly signed proposal on the forms provided herein to provide the food service program management services, equipment, supplies or materials required for the sum stipulated therein supported by data called for by the Bidding Documents.

Bidder is any individual, company or corporation submitting a bid.

**Bidding Documents** include the Advertisement or "Notice to Bidders" and the documents contained herein. Board is the Governing Board of the SFA.

Conditions and Specifications constitute any description in the Bidding Documents of services; materials, supplies, and/or equipment required for the performance of the obligations under the Contract or the circumstances under which such services, materials, supplies, and/or equipment are to be provided.

**Contract or Agreement** is a formal agreement duly executed by the authorized representatives of the SFA and the FSMC which calls for the provision of all services, materials, supplies or equipment by the FSMC in accordance with all Conditions and Specifications in the Bidding Documents, for a price to be paid by the SFA.

**Contractor** means a commercial enterprise, public or nonprofit private organization or individual that enters into a contract with or without a fixed fee.

End Product means a finished product containing any amount of donated food that has been commercially processed.

**Food** is defined as and limited to those items purchased for use in the preparation and service of student, a la carte, adult and special event meals as specified.

**Food Service Management Company (FSMC)** means a commercial enterprise or a nonprofit organization that is or may be contracted with by the SFA to manage any aspect of the school food service in whole or in part. An FSMC is a company that is acting on behalf of a school food authority by actually being in charge of or directing any aspect of the food service, and must meet applicable program requirements.

Instructions to Bidders include all "Conditions and Specifications," the bid proposal forms, including any NYSED preapproved amendments issued prior to the opening of bids, and the "Contract."

**Invitation to Bid (IFB )** means a type of solicitation document used in the competitive sealed bidding, where the primary consideration is cost and the expectation is that competitive bids will be received and an acceptance (award) will be made to the responsive and responsible bidder whose bid is lowest in price. The IFB must be publicly advertised and bids shall be solicited from an adequate number of known suppliers, providing them with sufficient time to respond prior to the date set for opening the bids. Also, the IFB should describe the minimum standards expected of a responsible bidder in measurable terms.

Labor is defined as and limited to on-site employees responsible for the management, preparation, service, and cleanup of meals.

Management Fee is defined as all costs other than food, labor and miscellaneous as defined herein.

Miscellaneous Expenses are defined as paper supplies (including decorations), equipment rental, cleaning materials, commodity handling and warehousing charges, travel as required for effective program management, and as agreed upon by the SFA (\*see below), uniforms, menu paper and printing, taxes and licenses, laundry, insurance, information technology costs associated with the food service operation, and other costs as contractually obligated herein. Miscellaneous Expenses are to be used solely for the purpose of the Child Nutrition Program in which this contract operates.

Travel as required for effective program management and as agreed upon by the SFA:

- Travel as required: Travel of the manager from one building to another in the district. Travel to State sponsored meetings.
- Travel as agreed upon: Travel to special meetings. Travel of regional chef, dietician, etc. if the SFA deems such visits necessary for the efficient operation of the program.

**Nonprofit School Food Service** means all food service operations conducted by the SFA principally for the benefit of school children, all of the revenue from which is used solely for the operation or improvement of such food services.

**Notice to Bidders** is the formal statement issued by the SFA inviting bids on all the services, materials, supplies or equipment described in the Bidding Documents.

**School Food Authority (SFA)** is a public school district, non-public school, residential child care institution, county jail or correctional facility participating in the National School Lunch, School Breakfast or Special Milk program. Successful Bidder is a Bidder to whom an award is made by the Board.

All additional definitions set forth in the Specifications are generally applicable to the Bidding Documents.

### APPENDIX B

# STANDARD CLAUSES FOR ALL NEW YORK STATE SCHOOL FOOD AUTHORITY FOODSERVICE MANAGEMENT COMPANY CONTRACTS

The parties of the attached contract, license, lease, amendment or other agreement or any kind (hereinafter, the contract or this contract") agree to be bound by the following clauses which are hereby made a part of the contract (the word Contractor herein refers to any party other than the SFA, whether a contractor, licenser, licensee, lessor, lessee, or any other party):

- 1. **Governing Law**—This contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of New York except where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise.
- 2. **Conflicting Terms**—In case of a conflict between the terms of the contract (including any and all attachments thereto and amendments thereof) and the terms of this Appendix B, the terms of this Appendix B shall control.
- Contracts shall recognize mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the State energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (P.L. 94-163).
   Grantor agencies are permitted to require changes, remedies, changed conditions, access and record retention and suspension of work clauses approved by the Office of Federal Procurement Policy.
- 4. Equal Employment Opportunity. Except as otherwise provided under 41 CFR Part 60, all contracts that meet the definition of "federally assisted construction contract" in 41 CFR Part 60-1.3 must include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 CFR 60-1.4(b), in accordance with Executive Order 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity" (30 FR 12319, 12935, 3 CFR Part, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," and implementing regulations at 41 CFR part 60, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor."
- 5. Hold Harmless—The FSMC shall be solely responsible and answerable in damages for any and all accidents and/or injuries to persons (including death) or property arising out of or related to the intentionally negligent or negligent acts, errors or omissions of its employees providing the services rendered by the FSMC pursuant to this AGREEMENT. The FSMC shall defend and indemnify and hold harmless the SFA and its officers and employees from claims, suits, actions damages and costs of every nature arising out of the intentionally negligent or negligent provision of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT.
- Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148). Where applicable, all prime construction contracts in excess of \$2,000 must comply with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5, "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction"). In accordance with the Act, contractors must be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay wages not less than once a week.
- 7. The Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (40 U.S.C. 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3, "Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States"). Where applicable, all contracts must be in compliance with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (18 U.S.C 874 as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3). The Act provides that each contractor or sub recipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled.
- 8. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708). Where applicable, all contracts in excess of \$100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). Under 40 U.S.C. 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a

standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. 3704 are applicable to construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence.

- 9. **Criminal Penalties**—Section 104(b) amended section 12(g) of the NSLA (42 U.S.C. 1760(g)) to increase to \$25,000 the maximum fine for embezzling, willfully misapplying, stealing or obtaining by fraud increase to \$25,000 the maximum fine for embezzling, willfully misapplying, stealing or obtaining by fraud funds, assets or property acquired under the NSLA or CNA.
- 10. Buy American—Section 104(d) amended section 12 of the NSLA (42 U.S.C. 1760) to require SFAs participating in the NSLP and SBP to purchase for those programs, to the maximum extent practicable, domestic commodities or products. For purposes of this provision, the term "domestic food commodity or product" means agricultural commodities produced in the U.S. and food products processed in the U.S. substantially using agricultural commodities that are produced in the U.S. (over 51 percent of the processed food comes from American produced products). The FSMC shall certify the percentage of U.S. content in the products supplied to the SFA. The SFA reserves the right to review vendor purchase records to ensure compliance with Buy American provision. The FSMC shall comply with the Buy American provision for contracts that involved the purchase of food as required by Title 7 CFR, part 210.21(d).
- 11. **Procurement Contracts**—Section 104(e) amended section 12 of the NSLA (42 U.S.C. 1760) to stipulate that, when acquiring goods and services for programs under the Child Nutrition Programs SFAs may contract with persons and companies which have provided specification information to SFA for use in drafting procurement specifications. This provision is intended to encourage program administrators to obtain information from as many sources as possible to assist them in drafting procurement documents. A potential contractor or other interested party may not participate in the procurement process by way of drafting the procurement specifications, procedures or documents, such as requests for proposals, invitations for bids and contracts. This provision is intended to ensure that program operators have sufficient flexibility in contracting matters while maintaining maximum open and free competition.
- 12. **Food Safety Inspections**—Section 102(c) amended section 9 of the NSLA (42 U.S.C. 1758) by adding subsection (h) to require schools participating in the NSLP or the SBP to obtain food safety inspections conducted by a State or local governmental agency responsible for such inspections at least twice a year if a State or local governmental agency does not otherwise require inspections.
- 13. Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387), as amended—Contracts and sub grants of amounts in excess of \$150,000 must contain a provision that requires the non-Federal award to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).
- 14. **Debarment and Suspension** (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689)—A contract award (see 2 CFR 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the government-wide exclusions in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 CFR 180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR part 1989 Comp., p. 235), "Debarment and Suspension." SAM Exclusions contains the names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549.
- 15. Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352)—Contractors that apply or bid for an award exceeding \$100,000 must disclose lobbying activities and file the required certification attesting that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352.

Food Service Management Companies who bid for an award exceeding \$100,000 must disclose lobbying activities in connection with school nutrition programs. If no activities occur, the form should not be completed. If there are material changes after the initial filing, updated reports must be submitted on a quarterly basis. (Only required if money is spent on lobbying activities). A copy of the disclosure form is provided, as Appendix D.

- 16. **Procurement of recovered materials.** In accordance with 2 CFR § 200.322, a non-Federal entity that is a state agency or agency of a political subdivision of a state and its contractors must comply with section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds \$10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded \$10,000; procuring solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines.
- 17. Women/Minority owned Businesses. In accordance with federal and state requirements, the FSMC must take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that minority business enterprises, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible. Affirmative steps must include: (1) Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists; (2) Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources; (3) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; (4) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; (5) Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce or any state agency responsible for promoting women and minority businesses.
- 18. **Water**—Plain potable water must be available to students free of charge in the place where lunch meals are served.
- 19. **Non-program Foods**—SFA must ensure that the overall revenue from non-program food is proportional to the cost of obtaining these foods. If non-program foods are purchased with the non-profit school food service account, all revenue must accrue back to the account.
- 20. **Outreach Overview**—SFA are required to promote the availability of the breakfast program, if applicable.
- 21. Iran Divestment Act of 2012—T he Iran Divestment Act of 2012 ("ACT"), Chapter 1 of the 2012 Laws of New York, added State Finance Law (SFL), 165-a and General Municipal Law 103-g, effective April 12, 2012. Under the Act, the Commissioner of the New York State Office of General Services ("OGS") developed a list ("Prohibited Entities List") of "persons" who are engaged in "investment activities in Iran" (both are defined terms in the law). In accordance with SFL 165-a(3), the Prohibited Entities list may be found on the OGS website at: <a href="http://www.ogs.ny.gov/about/regs/docs/listofentities.pdf">http://www.ogs.ny.gov/about/regs/docs/listofentities.pdf</a>.

SFAs reserve the right to reject any bid, proposal, contract or request for assignment for an entity that appears on the Prohibited Entities List prior to the award or execution of a contract or any renewal thereof, as applicable, and to pursue a responsibility review with respect to any entity that is awarded a contract and appears on the Prohibited Entities List after a contract award.

- 22. Gifts from FSMC—The SFAs or SFAs officers, employees, or agents shall neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from FSMC or potential FSMC. To the extent permissible under State law, rules, or regulations, such standards shall provide for appropriate penalties, sanctions, or other disciplinary actions to be applied for violations of such standards either by the SFA or SFAs officers, employees, or agents or by the FSMC or their agents.
- 23. **Conflict of Interest**—If the FSMC is aware of any prohibited conflict of interest, real or apparent, and knows the conflict has gone unreported, the contract may be void under applicable federal, State or local laws.

- 24. Any silence, absence, or omission from the Agreement concerning any point shall be regarded as meaning that only the best commercial practices are to prevail, and that only materials (food, supplies, etc.) and workmanship of a quality that would normally be specified by the SFA are to be used.
- 25. **Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement**. If the Federal award meets the definition of "funding agreement" under 37 CFR §401.2 (a) and the recipient or sub recipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under that "funding agreement," the recipient or sub recipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from discriminating based on race, color, national origin, sex, disability, age, or reprisal or retaliation for prior civil rights activity in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program information (e.g. Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.), should contact the Agency (State or local) where they applied for benefits. Individuals who are deaf, hard of hearing or have speech disabilities may contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program complaint of discrimination, complete the USDA Program Discrimination Complaint Form, (AD-3027) found online at: http://www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint\_filing\_cust.html, and at any USDA office, or write a letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form. To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights 1400 Independence Avenue, SW Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

This institution is an equal opportunity provider.

# **Non-Collusive Bidding Certification Form**

By submission of this bid, each bidder and each person signing on behalf of any bidder certifies, in the case of a joint bid each party thereto certified as to its own organization, under penalty of perjury, that to the best of his knowledge and belief:

- 1. The prices in this bid have been arrived at independently without collusion, consultation, communication, or agreement, for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any matter relating to such prices with any other bidder or with any competitor;
- Unless otherwise required by law, the prices which have been quoted in this bid have not been knowingly
  disclosed by the bidder and will not knowingly be disclosed by the bidder prior to opening, directly or indirectly, to
  any other bidder or to any competitor; and
- 3. No attempt has been made or will be made by the bidder to induce any other person, partnership or corporation to submit or not to submit to bid for the purpose of restricting competition.

Name of Bidder/Company
Name of Company Official *Con Poless
Name of Company Official *See Below
Signature of Company Official (Sign in Blue Ink Only)
Print Name
Print Name
Date
Facil Address
Email Address

\*Article IX, Section 139-d of NYS Finance Law provides that any bid made to the State or any public department, agency, or official thereof by a corporate bidder, where competitive bidding is required by statute, rule or regulation, and where such bid contains a signed certification of non-collusive bidding is deemed to have been authorized by the board of directors of the bidder, and is deemed to include the signing and submission of the bid and the certificate as to non-collusion as the act and deed of the corporation.